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INCOME STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
W 3 % i %

For the year ended 31 December 2012 4,198 million

T 419,807 3,735 mill 3,784 million
22012512431 AL F R e L

¢ Recognised revenue: RMB3,893.84 million
(+RMB54.76 million or +1.4%)
EHERMA - AR ¥E381E9,3848
(NN R¥5,4768 TT5k1.4% ) 2010 2011 2012

* Contracted sales: RMB6,529.13 million Progglft  Sales
(+RMB2,233.18 million or +52.0%) # % ! ﬁ '%
BHHE L ARIS65E2,9138 T T

(3% hn A R#22183,3188 T 5152.0%) e Falion 1684005 1,543 million

15%4,3008
e Gross profit: RBMB1,543.07 million e

(-RMB341.39 million or -18.1%) PN

EF: AR15184,3078 7T

O AR ¥3184,1398 7T 5018.1%) 2010 2011 2012
e Core profit: RMB810.43 million Gross Profit

(+RMB227.44 million or +39.0%)
Z O FE - AR ESE1,0438 T
(1A R# (82,7448 7T 5(39.0%)

e Core earnings per share: RMB0.28

(+RMBO0.08 or +40.0%) 1,848 million

SR LERF: ARE0.28TT Dmisoonn plSESXER
(10 A R #0.087T 8¢40.0%) 14/86,600% 7

e Dividend per share: HK12 cents
(+HK8 cents or +200%)
AR 12781
(3% hnsi {1l 2 200%)

2011

EBITDA

810 million
81%1,000& T

757 million
7#5,7008% 533 mijlion

5f“8 300& 7T K%;E\f/fijﬁ % &
R, 45 54 A0 A
2010 "()11 2012
Core Profit
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

3,729 million

L P POSITION HIGHLIGHTS
2,733 million Ej‘ i’% ;Ik iﬂl i’% m g

271&3,3008 T

1,957 million As at 31 December 2012
— R2012412A31 8

e Total Assets: RMB22,277.84 million
(+RMB4,024.73 million or 22.0%)
BEMRTE: A\RIE222(87,7848 T
($hn A R#40(82,4738 7T 522.0%)

Caf?h /l\)(ﬂ)j?i]tti'on « Total Liabilities: RMB16,186.36 million
L2 A L (+RMB3,589.17 millon or 28.5%)
BE®EE: AR%161{88,636% T
(#2hN35(58,917% T 3(28.5%)

e Total Equity: RMB6,091.49 million
(+RMB435.57 million or 7.7 %)
e M BT A%ﬁ%qof%wn 498 7T
(#IN4183,557 8 7L 7.7%)

2011 2012

5,557 million
4,780 million S5(85, 7008 7% e Cash and Bank Balances:

RS RMB3,728.62 million
(+RMB1,772.08 million or 90.6%)
B4 MIRTTH R

AR #E3T7{E2,8628 T

(A R#17187,208E 7T 5(90.6%)

e Total Debts: RMB7,509.23 million

2011

Total Debts (+RMB1,952.47 million or 35.1%)
; ERMRE  ARMT5(E9288 T
BER AR B ARMBT5/E9238 T

($ 0 A R#19(85,247 8 7T 5035.1%)

22,278 million
2221%7,800& T

18,253 million
182%5,300& T
14,593 million
145(%9,300& 7t

2011 6,001 million

553',?5511%5!.‘25)“ 60/&100% T
4,567 million &S, T
Total Assets

& A8

45(86,7008 ¢

2011 2012

Shareholders’ Equity,
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Major Events of 2012
20124 & Kk % i

.,_m".:
January 1 H St

IR I

On 25 January 2012, Yuzhou City Plaza
Phase |, located in Quanzhou, was
officially launched for sale. This was

a successful practice of the primary
and secondary development model of
Yuzhou Properties.

20124F1 258 » i 52 N B9 & M 38 5
EE—HEXRE ERMtbE—
B EABEENKINEE -

On 23 February 2012, Xiamen Federation of
Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs, the first
overseas Chinese entrepreneurs association
in Fujian Province, was established in
Xiamen. Mr. Lam Lung On, chairman of the
board of directors of Yuzhou Properties,
was successfully elected as the president of
the inaugurated session.

201242 A23H - EEAEAGEE —EM
TmERHESREEMKY  BMtEESS
ETEMREZEERNEEaEE R

March 3 H On 23 March 2012, Yuzhou Properties was ranked 45th
of “China’s Top 100 Real Estate Developers” awarded
] by Enterprise Research Institute of the Development
r E \.... ' * Research Center of the State Council, Institute of
] T Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua University and China

_anw mn-r nbd Index Academy, and was successively awarded as

= AT the “China’s Top 100 Real Estate Developers” for
——— seven consecutive years, continued to maintain its
o - i leading position in the real estate market in West Strait
- Economic Zone.
| A A p 2012F0A208  EHNEBABRERT TR 0%
FRITFR - B ERBEHET PN & T B8 B Je b A&

BIPBEEMERMRMDE| F6060 EE L FEY [P
BEMERREE | RE BEFNEAFHETS -
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Major Events of 2012
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On 22 May 2012, Yuzhou Properties was ranked the
“2012 Top 50 China Real Estate Listed Companies
with Comprehensive Strengths” awarded by China
Real Estate Research Association, China Real Estate
Association and China Real Estate Appraisal.

2012F5 228 M EEF B EHERTE
BEmEZERE P BEEMERFHOFES 2012
PEEHE F¥ELSEE 5058

April 4 A

On 9 April 2012, through primary and secondary
development model, Yuzhou Properties again successfully
acquired a plot of land in Quanzhou at a consideration of
RMB282.5 million. The purchased land plot is over 241,700
sg.m. in size, with a total GFA of approximately 823,400
sg.m., including residential and commercial portions. The
purchased land plot will be the subsequent development land
of Yuzhou City Plaza, a non-comparable city complex in West
Strait Economic Zone.

2012F4 98 - @MEB BB —  —AESFAEMEL
AR M2188,2508 T 8 RN — 1B IR - sZ s (h b 7
B24TEY K BEEEELNG2.M4BY K BIEEER
FEISD - ZIRBIEASHREEE —ENHTLEEE—
SN T E SN ERER-

June 6 H

A g g

On 9 June 2012, Yuzhou Properties was ranked the
“The 2012 China Mainland Real Estate company TOP
10 Listed in Hong Kong in terms of Investment Value
Ranking” awarded by China Real Estate TOP 10
Research.

20125F6 H9H - &M b ZE & B 55 s ZE TOP1 OFff 55 4
AER 20120 B AREEEHE FTARKREEE
TOP10] »
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On 6 July 2012, Yuzhou Properties successfully
acquired a plot of land (Lot No. S1205) in Hefei at a
consideration of RMB505.44 million. The land plot
is 96,000 sg.m. in size, with a planned total GFA of
288,000 sg.m.. The average transaction land price
in terms of GFA was approximately RMB1,755

per sg.m.. This successful land acquisition

had demonstrated Yuzhou Properties’ firm
determination in expanding the Yangtze River Delta
Regional Center and intensifying its development in
the Hefei market.

201247 A6H ' | b E LA A R EESES448 TR
It 15 A BES12051 58 © 7% i B8 14 Hh 1 7296,000F
T oK 38 B 48 7 A T 75288,000°F 77 » AR A4 T i
BLEFHK1,755T o WR KD &M R T &
MpERRE=ARSF L A#HEEMSER
TEIR DN o

On 10 August 2012, Yuzhou Properties successfully acquired
a plot of land in Longyan City for residential and commercial
purposes at a consideration of RMB600 million. The land plot
is 100,878 sqg.m. in size, with a planned total GFA of 312,330
sg.m. The average transaction land price in terms of GFA was
approximately RMB1,921 per sq.m.. This land acquisition

had signified Yuzhou Properties marching its first step into the
Longyan market and it also formally opened up a frontier in the
south-western region of Fujian Province.

20128 A10H » @MbEUAREE TR HEREMR —
BRRG{E R o RN M B FE 100,878 7 oK - SR B4R SR E 7
312,330F A K » i RIEEHE L) EF 5 2K1,92170 ° X 2
ERERMEEE OEREEMS B EARE T EERAE
TSRS A -

| On 6 September 2012, Yuzhou Properties was
Septe er 9 H ranked the “2012 TOP 10 Brand of Regional Real

Estate Company” awarded by Enterprise Research

? ll- lﬁ Institute of the Development Research Center of
-y ﬂ l}r- the State Council, Institute of Real Estate Studies

P of Tsinghua University and China Index Academy.
e —— 201249468 * BN EEE SR EERWES L
—— DRI EEABE M E I R EEK

—_ Wbt A (2012 B R B i E A 7] RAEE

& = A v fETOP10] »




Fﬁ‘iJ‘lHtﬁ%E)’ﬂﬁﬁBEﬁﬂ
K AR AR R

i

Major Events of 2012
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On 18 October 2012, Yuzhou Properties announced the issue of US$250 million senior notes
due 2017. The issue received overwhelming subscription from international markets with an
over-subscription of over 35 times.

2012410 A 180 BN ES M BT N017E B B2 5B ETEAEE BEmESA%E
October 10 H B BT R RIS R350S o

Fa A A S rEIRAS
YUZHOU PROPERTIES company

(Stock Code - 01628 LIMITED

November 11 A

On 30 November 2012, Yuzhou Properties was awarded the
“2012 China'West Strait Five-Star Real Estate Enterprise”

by Fujian Daily, and Yuzhou Central Coast was awarded
the “2012 China — West Strait Economic Zone Five-Star
Property” by Fujian Daily.
201211 3308 BNME | # -
R H i RTE & [ 201270
BlegFah EMMEDE] & zel  BERRES LTS
M o L = BIZEFR 2 B st &= oSN PH
FEA 2012 H e B H 2 201200 - BEEEHIER
4 .
i) [ On 20 December 2012, Mr. Lam Lung On,
T
L"( - chairman of the board of directors, was
. - =0 St ] .
z awarded as one of the “2011-2012 Top
20096 - NERGRFSHE 10 Influential Persons in Xiamen Economy”
B R by “Hai Xia Dao Bao”.
201208 - BEERRET R0 2012912 8200 * CE W ER) 371 &M
WY WEEFEETREMEREER2011-
3 e }_" 2012EFIRBETAREAY] Z2—-
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Chairman’s Statement
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To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited (“Yuzhou Properties” or the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 December 2012.

Year 2012 was just the third anniversary year of the listing
of Yuzhou Properties and was also a fruitful year for Yuzhou
Properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, turnover of the Group was
RMB3,893.84 million and gross profit was RMB1,543.07 million.
The average selling price of our properties sold was RMB7,593
per sg.m. and gross profit margin was approximately 40%.
Profit attributable to shareholders was RMB726.21 million. Basic
earnings per share was RMB25 cents. Core profit attributable
to shareholders surged from RMB582.99 million in 2011 to
RMB810.43 million in 2012, reaching a historic high. Core profit
margin soared by 6 percentage points to 21%. Core earnings per
share was RMB28 cent. The full year dividend was HK12 cents per
share (2011: HK4 cents).

BRR:

BREZREBMEERKB AR A (BMH
ESARNR)ZESE (EFE) REARAK
HB AR (ANEE)EHZE2012F12A31 B 1LE
BREERFEE-

2012FMIF—REMBE LT =ZBF TE&
MBEBRRRRH—F -

HE20126F12A31H  AEENEXETFEAAR
#38189,384& 7T ' EF A AR K15(84,3078
T RMEEMENTHEEREFEFRKAR
#7,6937T * EFERL)40%  IREEGEFEAAR
KT7182,6218 L - BIRE AR EF B ARE255 °
F% B3 8 15 4% 0 A1) 2011 4E B9 A R #55188,299
ST AR EAZE20126M8181,0438 T BIES
e ROFFEREMEE D EHE21% - &
Bz OEFAARE8S - 2F R EBEIBEE
12l (201148 B HE44L) -




BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the PRC property market rebounded with increases in
both selling prices and volume. With strong inelastic demand
and on-going loosening of the credit policies in Mainland China,
customers purchasing sentiments were improving. Therefore, the
Group’s contracted sales also increased significantly to a historic
high of RMB6.5 billion and had significantly improved the financial
conditions of the Group.

In 2012, the Group adopted flexible strategies in project development
and marketing and had successfully attained increases in both prices
and volume. For instance, the selling prices of Yuzhou Shoreline and
Yuzhou Central Coast increased from RMB11,000 and RMB8,000 at
the beginning of 2012 to RMB16,000 and RMB13,000 respectively
by the end of 2012, satisfying both the profit margin and sell-through
rate requirements simultaneously. Contracted sales reached RMB6.5
billion, a significant increase of 52% as compared with 2011. Of
which, sales performance in Xiamen was outstanding with contracted
sales reaching RMB4.8 billion. Both the saleable area and contracted
sales amount ranked top in Xiamen, attaining a market share of
9.3%. Furthermore, with contracted sales reaching RMB900 million,
the sales performance of Hefei was blockbusting after years of
relentless consolidation by the Group, which ranked among the top in
Hefei with very encouraging results.

AR AR
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Chairman’s Statement
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INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

With sufficient cash and relatively low net gearing ratio, the
Group leveraged on the opportunity of industry adjustments to
supplement its land reserves, and had focused on the execution,
sell-through rate and profit margin of its investment projects
especially to achieve its continuous development.

For the development of the West Strait Economic Zone, the Group
acquired one land parcel in Quanzhou in April 2012 in which
the average land cost was significantly below market norm. The
average floor price was RMB343 per sg.m. with total saleable
GFA of approximately 820,000 sg.m.. In 2012, Quanzhou was
permitted to become the third National Financial Comprehensive
Reform Pilot Region (R A & @R A N EHARE) to form a
diversified and dynamic financial system. We are fully confident
about the development of Quanzhou. With over 1.30 million
sg.m. land reserve in Quanzhou, it is expected that Quanzhou
will become an important growth driver of the Group in the future.
In August 2012, the Group had again successfully obtained the
Longyan Project at an average floor price of RMB1,921 per sg.m.
with total saleable GFA of approximately 310,000 sg.m.. It signified
the formal establishment of the Group’s foothold in western
Fujian and had laid a solid foundation of Yuzhou Properties’
expansion strategy in the West Strait Economic Zone. Longyan

ERFMHR S MEERNFRERKY  REE
MATERBNRZE  mrtibHEE FHESR
BREBRBORNITN  HERRFBE - UERIR
BERRBMW-

EamEM R ERTE  AEER201254 H AF
HEEEET T RKAREI4STEA RN R
M9 3 B S A K AR KRR P T 5 K
BT EMIEA82E 7K - 20124F - RME A
MAEE -EERECRGENEARE K —
BTt RBENEFHER RMERMEE
RIWMEL B R INE T BB IB1308 F
TR FEERERMEXNAREESEAIERE)
710201298 F  AEBE XK I A FHEREREA
R¥1,921 MBS MIEE - P EEE K31
SR EREAREZEARRE  ARME
A EERERETFER EeEREEE
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is an important mining and tourist region in Fujian Province.
With the improving infrastructure in Longyan City, its real estate
development is growing rapidly. By complementing with the brand
effect of Yuzhou Properties in West Strait, it is expected that this
investment will generate satisfactory returns to the Group in the
future.

For the development of the Yangtze River Delta Region, the Group
acquired land parcels in Hefei in July 2012 and January 2013 with
an average floor price of RMB1,755 per sgq.m. and RMB1,421
per sg.m. respectively, and respective total saleable GFA were
approximately 290,000 sg.m. and 920,000 sg.m.. With 7 years of
real estate development history in Hefei, a sophisticated and highly
efficient team was already in place. Such investment can further
consolidate Yuzhou Properties’ leading position in Hefei. In January
2013, through equity acquisition, the Group acquired a land parcel
in Bengbu City at RMB440 million with total GFA of approximately
670,000 sg. m. at an average cost of approximately RMB660 per
sg. m.. Located in northern Anhui Province, the midstream of Huai
River, and the intersection between Jinghu Railway and Huainan
Railway, Bengbu City is the traffic hub of Anhui Province. The land
parcel acquired is in the vicinity of Bengbu City Government with
lake landscape nearby, which is about 5 minutes’ drive to Bengbu
High-speed Railway Station. By benefiting from the solid brand
effect of Yuzhou Properties in Hefei and the proximity of Bengbu to
Hefei, we firmly believe that we could replicate our success in Hefei
to Bengbu and the profit that is expected to generate from this
acquisition will be very substantial.

FINANCING STRATEGIES

To achieve sustainable development, the Group actively organizes
various financing channels to further optimize its financial structure
to maintain a steady and sufficient cash flow. The sound financial
position and development prospect of the Group are widely
recognized by the rating agencies. Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
and Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services maintain the Group’s
credit rating of “B1” and “B+” respectively with a “Stable” outlook.
In 2012, the Company issued US$250 million senior notes which
are due in 2017 were over 35 times oversubscribed and bears a
coupon interest rate of 11.75%. The senior notes were subscribed
emphatically in international capital market, proving the market’s
confidence towards the Group’s outlook.

ZHREERRER BEESMERRIENT
2 EETEHEERRLE KERMBETSE
ﬁ%&%@ﬁ'ﬁ%gﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
HimBE e E R

ER=ZAEEEHE 201297 A %2013F1
A AREES R TFHEEEARE,755T R
ARE1 221 TREREA LI AR E@EESD
R4 B8 T 5K RO2E T oK - @MHEIET
EETENEHEZEERS  DEY —EKRA K
BRENEEK  BRIREE—SERRMBE
NEIEEE LA 201351 B AEBEFEBR
WA REAAMBETRBERTRREER
W BBTE T KM i FIRR AL ARG
T ° SR T M R AR AL ~ VR R AT~ B FE R
BERER R2E BB - FPIUE &R AL
PRI T BRSBTS - A B S B BB IR
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SFH AR AR RUE - SR B A BBt IE R BT UL R
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
and corporate governance. Through the establishment of an
efficient communication system with investors, it facilitates a win-
win investor relationship to enable all parties the accessibility of
Yuzhou Properties’ business development strategies and growth
potentials. During 2012, the Group facilitated communications with
investors and analysts of over 450 man-time, in which it included
such different types of communications as conducting 7 road
shows domestically and abroad, participating in 20 domestic and
overseas investors summits or symposiums held by prominent
investment banks or securities dealers, 111 meetings and
telephone conferences with investors and 77 site visits.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to improving the development and
management capabilities of its investment properties. During the
year, the Group’s total annual rental income before taxation reached
RMB 57.03 million, of which the overall occupancy rate of Xiamen
Yuzhou World Trade Center Phase | and Phase I, with Xiamen train
station nearby, was over 95%; while the average occupancy rate
of the Yuzhou World Trade Plaza Phase | and Phase Il in Hai Cang
District, Xiamen was also above 98%. With the addition of Xiamen
Yuzhou Center (EFF&iMA 1), Shanghai Yuzhou Center ( i
&M ) and Yuzhou International Hotel of the Group that will be
completed in the forthcoming years one after another, the rental and
hotel revenues of the Group are expected to witness an explosive
growth. The Group’s business will become more diversified and it
will generate more stable revenues with dispersed operational risks.

AWARDS

The Group received a number of widely recognized honours and
awards with its excellent comprehensive strengths. For instance,
the Group was awarded “The 2012 China Mainland Real Estate
Company TOP 10 Listed in Hong Kong in terms of Investment
Value Ranking” from China Real Estate TOP 10 Research Team,
consisting of Enterprise Research Institute of Development Research
Center of the State Council, Institute of Real Estate studies of
Tsinghua University and China Index Academy. The Group was also
awarded the “2012 Top 50 China Real Estate Listed Companies
with Strongest Comprehensive Strengths” from China Real Estate
Research Association, China Real Estate Association and China Real
Estate Appraisal, and also the “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises
2012” from Economic Digest, an authoritative financial magazine in
Hong Kong, illustrating that Yuzhou Properties is widely receptive by
people from different communities.

& % # B 1R

REBZN#HFEEPERDEERKE Wil
BEVSUMNEEBREBR REEENRE
HEER UAFESTEBRBRMNENERERRE
BE 32 KB ) o 20124F - REBET T7TRBER
INEE IR - 220X MBI E IRITHFE H R R E
WINBHIEE R B G FTE  EIREEETT
MR EAMEFESE THT7TREE2ESS
B BIEEE D ITAE BB IE450 AN -

Wx&kE
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

By pursuing its corporate mission of “Serve the community and
requite the community” ( R4 & « B3R+ E ) , the Group has been
actively committed to its social responsibility since its incorporation.
Alongside the Company’s development, we always keep this in
our mind. Yuzhou Properties has placed as much emphasis upon
fulfilling its social responsibilities of being a good corporate citizen.
It strives to establish a harmonious relationship between enterprises
and the society and actively participates in various public welfare
businesses and activities. It cares about children education in
poverty regions, concerns about home rebuilding for residents in
disastrous areas as well as advocates energy saving, environmental
protection and sustainable development. For instance, the Group
organized a grand public welfare evening event in December 2012
in which all donations raised from different parties were bestowed to
Xiamen Charity Federation.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND
PROSPECT

With US Federal Reserve Board committed to maintain a low
interest rate policy until the end of 2014 and the massive low-
interest loans made by European Central Bank to banks in Europe,
the financial market is becoming more and more stable. The
National Academy of Economic Strategy, CASS has estimated
that China’s GDP growth in 2013 will be about 8.5% and China’s
economic performance in 2013 will excel that in 2012. The
global economy will be more promising if the US and European
economies are also recovering.

In view of this situation, Yuzhou Properties has planned to adopt
the following development strategies.

FOCUSING ON WEST STRAIT ECONOMIC
ZONE DEVELOPMENT

Firstly, the Group shall continue to adhere to its development
strategy of becoming the leader in the West Strait Economic Zone.
As a hub between China and Taiwan, the geographic location of
West Strait Economic Zone is of strategic significance where it is
adjacent to Taiwan and is linked to the Pearl River Delta Region and
the Yangtze River Delta Region. With the backdrop of increasing
economic integration between China and Taiwan, the West Strait
Economic Zone has all along been one of the faster development
regions in China. Most of our projects that are under construction
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or have already been launched are located in this area where we
have attained competitive advantages in both land reserve and
market share. The Group is also placed prominently in the leading
position of property sales in the area. Moreover, with our extensive
social network in Fujian and the surrounding regions, the Group
has many collaborative projects with the local government, like the
Quanzhou project pending for development that was acquired in
April 2012. Under the current massive real estate market integration
process, the market share in West Strait Economic Zone is of
great significance to Yuzhou Properties. By learning from the
past experience of abrupt market changes, the launching of new
projects of the Group will be flexible and more orderly in 2013 and
will continue to target its sales focus in Xiamen with solid inelastic
demand from end users. Selling apartments will continue to be the
key focus in our product portfolio and the proportion of villas and
quality houses will also increase under gradual market recovery. It is
expected that the West Strait Economic Zone market will remain a
key drive of Yuzhou Properties’ rapid growth in 2013.

EXPLORING FINANCING CHANNELS

Furthermore, another important objective of the Group is to
strengthen our cash flow management and healthy financial policy.
Given the unused credit facilities of RMB3.8 billion as at the end of
2012 and compare with other developers of similar size, the lower
loan interest through our well-established regional relationship with
the four largest state-owned banks (weighted average interest rate
of onshore and offshore funding is as low as 9.7%), we believe
that the Group has sufficient capital for future development. The
Group will also actively participate in international capital market,
maintain an efficient two-way communication with various institutes
in establishing long-term and stable relationships, in which it will
facilitate the Group in expanding sources of financing as well as
reducing financing costs.

SEEKING TRUTH FROM FACTS AND
TAKING ACTIONS TO SUIT LOCAL
CONDITIONS

The Group will seek truth from facts, taking actions to suit local
conditions, and promote products that are in line with market
needs according to the economic standards of different cities, such
as improving the saleable ratio of products with good design to
make products more humanized while launching the products that
have a rigid inelastic demand. The Group intends to launch various
brand new projects nationwide in 2013 with current projects to be
launched one after another under new portfolio. It is expected that
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about 13 major projects in 7 cities will be sold in 2013, namely
Yuzhou Shoreline, Yuzhou Central Coast, Yuzhou Golf, Yuzhou
Riverside City Town and Yuzhou Cloud Top International in Xiamen,
Yuzhou Oriental Venice and Yuzhou Gushan No. One in Fuzhou,
Yuzhou City Plaza in Quanzhou, Yuzhou Castle above City in
Longyan, Yuzhou Skyline and Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire in Hefei,
Yuzhou Land Dream in Shanghai and Yuzhou Palace Country in
Tianjin. These projects will further expand Yuzhou’s brand influence
in the West Strait Economic Zone, Yangtze River Delta Region and
Bohai Rim Region. We are confident of making further progress in
contracted sales in 2013.

ENHANCING THE PERFORMANCE
APPRAISAL SYSTEM

The Group has incorporated financial indicators, such as sales
income and proceeds from sales and selling expenses, into the
integrated performance ranking appraisal system and each city
will need to enhance and increase its efforts in sales and cash
collection to fulfill these indicators as they have direct impact on
individual performance appraisal and bonus scale. Moreover, the
Group convenes monthly coordination meetings with every city
and holds quarterly large scale working conferences to solve
municipal-related problems and improve working efficiency. We
implement city ranking, quarterly appraisal, year-end summary with
such appraisal stringently linked up with bonuses. The appraisal
and management of the performance ranking was carried out
within the Group with satisfactory results. For instance, contracted
sales in 2012 reached up to RMB6.5 billion which was 130% of
sales target, proceeds from sales in 2012 exceeded RMB6 billion
with contracted sales collection rate exceeded 90%, and selling
expenses controlled within 2% of contracted sales.

OBSERVING STRINGENTLY THE
INVESTMENT DISCIPLINES

With credit lending easing up and sales rebound, the land markets
of various cities in China have recorded new historical high recently.
As the current land reserve will be able to meet the needs for the
next five years, the Group will face the situation unexceptionally
and will not acquire any land without any purpose. Apart from
acquiring land parcel through public bidding, auction and listing,
we will also increase our land reserve through first and second-tier
collaborative development and corporate shareholding acquisition.
We will strictly observe the investment disciplines and pay greater
attention on execution, sell-through rate and profit margin of
project investments. It is envisaged that the West Strait Economic
Zone will remain as the key region for our future development
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with the proportion in land reserves at or above 50%. For areas
outside the West Strait Economic Zone that we have already had
a foothold, we will also allocate resources appropriately to increase
local land reserves at reasonable prices and put our existing
brand advantages into full play, with an ultimate aim to solidify our
presence in the region.

PURSUING A STABLE DEVELOPMENT
AND TAKING ACTIONS TO SUIT
SEASONAL CONDITIONS

According to current cash flow situation, the Group will take
actions to suit seasonal conditions and existing commitments
to maintain a stable financial position for the Company. The
gearing ratio at the end of the year was only 62% with cash on
hand reaching a new historic high of RMB3.7 billion. For the
medium-to-long term, by upholding our philosophy of “Building
Cities with Heart, Building Homes with Love”( A, - LA &£
%K), we will continue to conduct our business with integrity and
utilize our brand equity and resources. In particular, efforts will be
made to strengthen our dominance in the West Strait Economic
Zone, progressively expand our presence in the economic zone
of Yangtze River Delta Region and further intensify our penetration
in Bohai Rim Region, thereby to achieve the strategic objective of
business development nationwide.
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OUTLOOK

With urbanization pushing the property market forward
continuously, we believe that the property market outlook in the
PRC will continue to flourish. The past regulatory policy annexed
by the government was aimed at cooling down the overheated
property market, which in turn was conducive to the healthy
development of the entire property market. We believe that with
the execution of effective strategies, Yuzhou Properties can achieve
better performance in the future.

APPRECIATION

The excellent performance of the Group in 2012 was really
founded on the tremendous support from all circles and the diligent
fulfillment of all staff. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take
this opportunity to express our heartfelt thanks to all shareholders,
investors, partners and customers for their trust and support.
We will adhere to our spirit of “Building Cities with Heart, Building
Homes with Love” and dedicate to maximize the value for our
shareholders and investors in creating the best returns.

Lam Lung On
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year, turnover of the Group was RMB3,893.84 million
and gross profit was RMB1,543.07 million. Gross profit margin
was 40%. Profit attributable to shareholders was RMB726.21
million and basic earnings per share was RMB25 cents. Core
profit attributable to shareholders amounted to RMB810.43 million
while core basic earnings per share was RMB28 cents. The Board
proposed a bonus issue of 2 bonus shares for every 10 existing
shares held. The full year dividend was HK12 cents per share.

LAND RESERVES

The Group possesses quality land reserves at low cost. As at 31
December 2012, the aggregate GFA of the Group’s land reserves
was 6.66 million sg.m., located in seven first and second tier cities
in the West Strait Economic Zone, the Yangtze River Delta Region
and Bohai Rim Region, with an average land cost of approximately
RMB1,522 per sg.m.. In view of the primary land development
qualification of a project obtained by the Company, the Group
believes that its land reserves currently held and managed are
sufficient for future development over a period of five to six years.
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SALEABLE GFA OF LAND RESERVES (SQ.M.)
T o okl T O S R TR (R 7 oK)

As at 31 December 2012
20129128318

West Strait Economic Zone i 1 48 # [&

0

Xiamen =P 2,606,406 gleZ/)
Fuzhou &M 306,614 /i
Quanzhou S 1,315,200
Longyan = 312,330

% i 39%
Sub-total NEE 4,540,550 Xiamen

20% & P
Yangtze River Delta Region + = fi & i [ uﬁanhOU
Shanghai i 520,145
Hefei = 1,148,845
Sub-total NEF 1,668,990 0
8% ~ 5%
Bohai Rim Region TR K Shanghal 506 6%  Fuzhou
ianii 3 L Tianjin f’

Tianjin RE 450,656 %Eo%gyan P
Sub-total NEF 450,656
Total 4T 6,660,196

PRIMARY LAND DEVELOPMENT
QUALIFICAT IQN (SQ.M.)

— St BEE (FFX%K)

As at 31 December 2012

72012912 A31H

West Strait Economic Zone i 1 48 # [&
Quanzhou N 867,675

*

It represents the aggregate GFA agreed under the
framework agreement

N IEE 7R AR 2R 190 % O O AR SR TN R
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During the year, the Group acquired 3 new parcels of quality land
with an aggregate GFA of 1,423,730 sg.m., at an average land
cost of approximately RMB975 per sg.m., which is far below
the market level. The new parcels of land acquired are located
in Quanzhou, Hefei and Longyan and are expected to provide
satisfactory returns to the Group in the next three to four years.

Particulars of these parcels of land are set out in the following
table:

FA AEEFBASHEE M AR ERE
[ 18 /31,423,730 75 K - FHBE R A KB
RIEKF BHEFHARARBITET % E
FBANMIBL R RN AIEAMES B AR
AR=ZENFREBRRPEHENLR-

TREIZFHROFEE

West Strait Economic Zone

BEAREE

Phase Il of Yuzhou City Plaza* Quanzhou 282,500 823,400 343
SR T B % — B

Yuzhou Castle above City Longyan 600,000 312,330 1,921
R o 3 I BEE

Yangtze River Delta Region

R=ZAEW

Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire Hefei 505,440 288,000 1,755
il o 3522 EB alhe

Total 1,387,940 1,423,730 975
waEt

*

After the primary land development on this project, the Group
acquired it through public bidding and auction.

- ZMPMBAEEET R MAER BBR
FRREERS-
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Recognized area sold and recognized sales of each project in 2012 FXR &7 & 1B B P01 2F MR IEEmE &
are set out in the following table: HREE SR

West Strait Economic Zone
BEEE

Phase Il of Yuzhou University City Xiamen 443,356 64,298 6,895

Bl o RE — & F1

Yuzhou Castle above City Xiamen 399,080 30,664 13,015

Bl o I _E3 EF9

Phase Il of Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 387,689 17,492 22,164

B o W77 EEHT — 87 &I

Yuzhou Sunshine City Xiamen 341,739 56,510 6,047

Bl o B3I = P

Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 152,878 9,398 16,267

BN e Bl —5% &I

Others Xiamen/Fuzhou 114,924 11,378 10,101

HAitb E PR A&EIM

Sub-total 1,839,666 189,740 9,696

NEE

Yangtze River Delta Region

R=ZAEW

Phase II of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 1,074,136 219,720 4,889

Bl e RIFE 8 =y

Phase IV of Yuzhou Jingiao Shanghai 548,797 27,791 19,747
International (Land Dream)

Bl e SIEBIPR Y EY (BE588) £

Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 321,527 61,151 5,258

Bl o RiF—HA =

Others Shanghai 295 22 13,409

EHh fubi!

Sub-total 1,944,755 308,684 6,300

NEE

Total 3,784,421 498,424 7,593

st
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Recognized area sold and recognized sales of each project in 2011

are set out in the following table:

West Strait Economic Zone
BEEE

TRETNEEEB P20 F AR HE S M

ERHETHR:

Yuzhou Castle above City Xiamen 1,656,711 108,744 15,235
B e 5 Lk =

Phase II of Yuzhou University City Xiamen 905,045 138,464 6,536
B o K2k — Hj =P

Phase Il of Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 404,078 26,471 15,265
B e R B e — 5 &M

Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 286,556 15,041 19,052
B e kil —5% &M

Yuzhou World Trade Center Xiamen 105,573 4,650 22,704
= = ]S EFT

Phase | of Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 99,398 10,687 9,301
B o 375 B fE BT —HA 2

Yuzhou Galaxy Garden Xiamen 54,727 10,453 5,236
RN e 2MIEE EFT

Phase | of Yuzhou University City Xiamen 47,470 2,250 21,098
Bl o KE3 —H EF1

Yuzhou Golden Seacoast Xiamen 24,908 6,503 3,830
Bl EBRER = F1

Others Xiamen 33,077 3,142 10,527
HAitb & F1

Sub-total 3,617,543 326,405 11,083
et

Yangtze River Delta Region

REAREE

Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 114,047 23,628 4,827
Bl o RiFE—HA =

Yuzhou Jingiao International Shanghai 3,775 568 6,646
Bl o S B i

Sub-total 117,822 24,196 4,869
NEE

Total 3,735,365 350,601 10,654

@t
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Contracted sales and area of each project in 2012 are set out in N &RFHHIEEI1E B R2012F WA NHELER
the following table: [EIEi

West Strait Economic Zone

BEARKEE

Yuzhou Shoreline Xiamen 1,917,035 155,174 12,354

Bl e B8 =P

Phase | of Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 1,113,608 119,731 9,301

Bl o R E—H =P

Yuzhou Castle above City Xiamen 558,161 44,996 12,405

Bl o I _E3 =P

Yuzhou Golf Xiamen 319,798 34,380 9,302

BMemBE = P

Phase Il of UnlverS|ty City Xiamen 284,438 39,994 7,112

B o RE — 1 & F1

Phase Il of Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 276,875 23,779 11,644

Bl o G RE —H = F1

Yuzhou City Plaza Phase | Quanzhou 240,260 55,048 4,365
B B ey

Phase Il of Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 233,120 10,731 21,724

Bl o 77 B HT — 8 2

Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 184,383 10,616 17,368

B e L —5% =P

Yuzhou Riverside City Town Xiamen 173,822 17,901 9,710

B o EIR I =1

Yuzhou Sunshine City Xiamen 94,447 16,124 5,858

BN o 5 R IERK L=

Others Xiamen 73,103 20,101 3,637

H A, EFT

Sub-total 5,469,045 548,575 9,970

et

Yangtze River Delta Region

REZARBRE

Phase II of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 562,457 103,131 5,454

il o K35 — B A e

Phase lll of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 220,397 39,218 5,620

Bl o X35 =Hj L

Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 139,264 24,212 5,752

Bl o KR35 —HA ahe

Phase IV of Yuzhou Jingiao Shanghai 67,429 3,587 18,798
International (Land Dream)

Bl e BRI (855 i

Sub-total 989,547 170,148 5,816

e

Bohai Rim Region

RYBREERE

Yuzhou Palace Country Tianjin 70,535 10,697 6,594

Bl e BT RE

Sub-total 70,535 10,697 6,594

NEE

Total 6,529,127 729,420 8,951

)
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Contracted sales and area of each project in 2011 are set out in

the following table:

West Strait Economic Zone
BEEE

;ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%mﬂﬁméﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Phase II of Yuzhou University City Xiamen 683,867 93,393 7,322
Bl o KB —H =P
Phase Il of Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 567,830 29,691 19,125
Bl e R EEHT — 5 &M
Yuzhou Castle above City Xiamen 404,141 23,063 17,523
M e 3 Ik EFT
Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 291,696 15,372 18,976
B e L —5% &M
Yuzhou Sunshine City Xiamen 289,214 42,314 6,835
Bl o B3I EF
Yuzhou Shoreline Xiamen 210,221 16,375 12,838
Bl e B8 !
Yuzhou Golf Xiamen 66,260 5,750 11,524
Bl e mmE EFT
Phase | of Yuzhou University City Xiamen 52,246 2,575 20,290
B o Kk —H] EF
Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 41,677 5,006 8,325
B e ARG F = F1
Phase | of Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 32,452 2,204 14,724
B o 3757 B fE B —HA =
Others Xiamen 112,977 19,242 5,871
HAitb I
Sub-total 2,752,581 254,985 10,795
NEE
Yangtze River Delta Region
REAREE
Phase II of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 789,406 156,281 5,051
Bl o K% —Hj &he
Phase IV of Yuzhou Jingiao Shanghai 472,671 22,150 21,340

International (Land Dream)
Bl e 2B IUE () g
Phase | of Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 262,560 47,263 5,655
BM o K35 —Hf &he
Phase II of Yuzhou Jingiao

International Shanghai 18,730 579 32,349
@M e B R —H fabi!
Sub-total 1,543,367 226,273 6,821
NEE
Total 4,295,948 481,258 8,926

HEt
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Yuzhou World Trade Center (Xiamen)

The rental income (before tax) of World Trade
Center during the year was derived from the
mall and amounted to RMB43.81 million
(2011: RMB51.92 million), representing
a decrease of 16%. The rental income
dropped as retail business remained weak.
During the year, the mall at Phase | of

P& e it H

B et Z oLy Uk A
REBEDHL HafHe
WA EARK4,3818 T
(20114 - AR ¥5,1928
JC) iR A16% T EE
XERTETERE I
DREEWAR L - FR

World Trade Center continued to maintain
high occupancy rate of approximately 97%
(2011: 100%). The drop of occupancy rate
resulted from the proposed decoration plan
of World Trade Centre in 2013 and the
optimization of tenant mix. The occupancy
rate of Phase Il of World Trade Center
increased to 92% (2011: 88%). We expect
the occupancy rate of Phase Il of World
Trade Center will increase to the level of Phase | of World Trade
Center in the coming year. The mall not only managed to retain the
existing tenants but also has attracted new high profile tenants of
such renowned brands as PCD Stores, Walmart, Starbucks, Sony,
Haagen-Dazs and Hai Di Lao Hot Pot.

Yuzhou World Trade Plaza (Xiamen)

The project, Yuzhou World Trade Plaza (&Ml e tHZ A EES) |
has an area of approximately 44,000 sg.m. which comprises
Phase | and Phase Il. The rental income (before tax) of Yuzhou
World Trade Plaza during the year increased by 9% from RMB5.34
million in 2011 to RMB5.82 million in 2012. With the steady
economic growth of Hai Cang District, we expect the revenue
of Yuzhou World Trade Plaza will increase steadily. The plaza will
be our commercial flagship in Hai Cang District in Xiamen with
restaurants, supermarkets and retail stores.

Yuzhou Jingiao International (Shanghai)

Yuzhou Jingiao International is designed as a one-stop commercial
complex and features famous brands. The rental income (before
tax) was RMB7.41 million (2011: RMB8.61 million). The Group
has disposed of some retail shops in the second half of 2011,
contributing to the decline of rental income in the current year.

B F o0 — R A ) A SR
M AEI7T% (20114 ¢
100% ) * = Z 2 [E /22013
FHERL—HHFEHET
B IE - EBLBEFPASE
FTE o it B o ZHI Ry
A E £ ZE92% (2011
F:88%)  AEEEEH
B ZHMEBEERRR
g FAEMHERL—HRKF B LK
NRBEBLRSIFTHMNERENERERE
5 ARG EBRR - RE - BREMEREEX
MEAE -

P& et A R

ZIEEBRBNIABT RN RMNe B LT E
o@m— ZHIER FABAIESBRARAR
#5828 7T (20114« AR #5348 70) 1818 &
% FERZENLIBLNEHBAEL T
RHMAEN - BEEG R RAAEEE BB
HoREEBHEMe EBETESHRASEE
F LA HSIERBAMERESE BB

TE—EER-

L e £ 45 B IR
Bl e EBEIR A— X5 WERRDERS
FOAE  HRHAIIASKRAABARBTHNETT
(20114 : AR¥EB618 L) - AR AN S E 72011
FTHFHETEH > mEE ELE3T]HBEA
HEeR B TRLE TR
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Hotel Operation

We see a huge potential for hotel business in China. We believe
that the expansion into the hotel industry would widen the source
and stability of revenue, and reduce the risks of over reliance on
any particular real estate segment. Hotel business can also help to
strengthen the Group’s brand image. The hotels of the Group are
still under development and construction. There was no income
generated from hotel operation during the year. Going forward, the
Group will continue to expand its hotel business in a sound and
prudent manner so as to achieve a diversified property portfolio.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group aims at providing quality property management services
to, and creating a warm and harmonious community for, our
respected residents. The Group is committed to continuously
improving the living environment and enhancing service quality
in order to maintain high level of customer satisfaction. In 2012,
the property management service companies of the Group
recorded property management fee income of RMB61.17 million,
representing an increase of 17% as compared with 2011. As at
31 December 2012, the aggregate GFA managed by the property
management service companies of the Group in the Mainland
China was about 200 million sg.m., and these companies serviced
around 20,000 owners.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB1,543.07
million in 2012. The gross profit margin was 40% in 2012. The
drop of gross profit margin was attributable to the recognition
of projects with higher gross margin such as Yuzhou Castle
above City in 2011. The gross profit margin was maintained at
a satisfactory level in industry. The ratio of land cost to average
selling price was maintained at a reasonably low level of 17.0%,
and this ratio is expected to remain at a low level in the coming
years.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains decreased by 27% from RMB93.37
million in 2011 to RMB68.43 million in 2012. It was mainly due to
the recognition of net gain on disposal of investment properties in
2011.

i %
BPREEEEBETRAGREARREM
MREEE RS & EARPIOBARIREE
REM XRERMABNEER - ERLET
SEEE - TABRAANEENRETR Ak
NS DERFEERER FRLERS
EEEER WA - R NEBABEBEATSR K E
Ry ReERIE T RBE %15 BRETZ Tk
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/E BB
REENARBEEXFPRHEBEMEETERS A
O BERBAFENEE  RORTERER
FRERMERGERE  #ESKENERRE
[£ o 2012F - NEENYMEEERB A RREY
¥EEEWAABARES,1178 70 82011FF
HAIN17% 20124 - AEE R EE B IR
AR B A FE A 4B B SR E AR 492008 F 5
Ko A B B 1R RIS MX20,000F ¥ 1R
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REBE2012F 8 EF A ARE15(84,307E 7T -
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EXPENSES ON SELLING AND
DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by 7%
from approximately RMB116.36 million in 2011 to approximately
RMB108.36 million in 2012. The portion of selling and distribution
expenses to the total contracted sales decreased to 1.7% in 2012
(2011: 2.7%), which was at a lower level in industry. The Group has
paid more attention to management of sales strategy, thus saving
some advertisement and promotion expenses. We cherished the
relationship with existing customers in a bid to increase referral
sales and we also adopted creative ways to stimulate sales such
as production of microfim. Even though our contracted sales
increased dramatically, total selling and distribution costs dropped.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 10% from
approximately RMB159.76 million in 2011 to approximately
RMB176.33 million in 2012. The portion of administrative
expenses to the total contracted sales deceased to 2.7% in 2012
(2011: 3.7%), which was at a lower level in industry. The Group
established management teams and recruited more experienced
personnel, contributing to increase in staff costs. The Group had
imposed strict cost control system to curtail other administrative
expenses. As a result, the portion of administrative expenses to the
total contracted sales had dropped.

FAIR VALUE (LOSSES)/GAINS ON
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The slowdown of retail business in China increased the level of risk
and uncertainties of property investment and the retail business
still remained weak in the second half of 2012. Take Yuzhou World
Trade Center as an example, its rental income dropped by 16% in
2012. Thus, fair value losses on investment properties amounted to
RMB132.39 million.
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SHARE OF RESULT OF A JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITY

Share of result of a jointly-controlled entity came from the Group’s
20% interest in Xiamen Vanke Maluan Bay Properties Limited.
As the company did not deliver any properties during the year,
the share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity was approximately
RMB3.17 million. Xiamen Vanke Maluan Bay Properties Limited has
commenced to sell its properties since 2012. We believe that, with
the delivery of properties in 2015, contributions from this jointly-
controlled entity will significantly increase.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

Profit attributable to shareholders decreased by 23% from
approximately RMB941.63 million in 2011 to approximately
RMB726.21 million in 2012. Core profit attributable to shareholders
increased by 39% from approximately RMB582.99 million in 2011
to RMB810.43 million in 2012.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
BORROWINGS

The Group will continue to comply with the prudent financial
policies. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank loans and
bonds balance of RMB7,509.23 million, with maturities as follows:

JE Al — B 3 [ f 0O K A

HEEH BB EERE RN EBEF20%E =
WEFMERSZEBXEERAF - ANZAA
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BEB S E RIEE M-

ik 5K Al A i

% 3R & 15 FE R2011F M) 89 A R #59184,1638
TG T FE23%ZE & 22012F Ky 49 A R #57182,621
BT o R FEMLIZOAERIBH2011FHHARE
5{88,2998 T _E F39%ZE2012F Hy#) A R 88
1,0438 7T e

Bt %5 Iu B8

fii 3

ANEE B EE BN FENT K - 1R2012F
128318 AEBNRTERMNESFGBEAA
REE75/89238 T XM T ¢

2012 2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

Maturity B (AR®TRr) (AR®FT)
Within 1 year 1F 2R 2,479,012 1,335,211
1 to 2 years 122F 7 [ 1,090,913 1,523,386
2 to 5 years 2FE5F 2 [ 3,754,400 2,431,659
Over 5 years BB A F 184,906 266,502
Total aH 7,509,231 5,556,758

As at 31 December 2012, the bank borrowings of the Group
was RMB3,372.77 million, and were secured by the investment
properties and properties under development of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of RMB8,701.31 million.

R2012F 128318 NEBMRITERBAR
B33IE7 2778 L HASEBERHAEAARK
87TEISIE TR EME R EEYEEHRF -
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2012, the net current assets of the Group
increased by 15% to RMB6,972.38 million as compared with
2011. The current ratio decreased from 1.8 times in 2011 to 1.7
times in 2012. As at 31 December 2012, the net debt to equity
ratio (interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash divided by total equity) of the
Group decreased to 62% (2011: 64%). It was mainly due to the
excellent performance of contracted sales and significant increase
of proceeds from contracted sales.

FINANCE EXPENSES

During the year, the total cost of borrowings of the Group was
RMB641.58 million, an increase by RMB134.80 million as
compared with 2011, of which RMB487.03 million were capitalised
as cost of projects, representing an increase of RMB136.49 million
as compared with 2011.

CURRENCY RISK

The proportions of bank borrowings, bonds, senior notes balance
and cash balance of the Group in terms of currencies were as
follows:

AR E

M20125F12A31H  AEEW R & E/FHEL
2011 3B IN15% 2 A K #69187,2388 7t it
B ER2011FM1.81& FEE2012F M 1.715
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HK$ B 902,977 32,316
RMB AR 3,847,449 2,758,959
uss$ ETT 2,758,805 935,870
SG$ =911k - 1,472
Total & 7,509,231 3,728,617
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A reasonably possible change of 1% in the exchange rate between
the Hong Kong dollar or United States dollars and the Renminbi
would have no material impact on the Group’s profit during the
year and there would result in an increase/(decrease) in other
components of the Group’s equity by RMB16.81 million (2011:
RMB20.63 million) in 2012.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provides buy-back guarantees to banks, which offered
mortgages to domestic properties buyers in the Mainland China of
the Group. As at 31 December 2012, undue buy-back guarantees
amounted to RMB5,531.12 million (2011: RMB4,171.66 million).

RETURN ON EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2012, return on equity
represented profit attributable to shareholders divided by the
average of equity attributable to shareholders of the Company at
beginning and end of the year. Return on equity in 2012 was 13%.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

RN BB R A B
(ANR®ETT)

Profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company (RMB’000)
Less: fair value (losses)/gains on
investment properties,
net of deferred tax (RMB’000)
Less: fair value gains on derivative
financial instruments (RMB’000)
Core profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company (RMB’000)
Weighted average number of ordinary

B (B8 s
(AR®TIT)

(ANRETT)

(ANR®ETT)

shares in issue ('000) (LAF5)
Basic earnings per share BRERRBF
(RMB per share) (BRAR®IT)
Core earnings per share Rz LT
(RMB per share) (BRAR®T)
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2012 2011
726,214 941,628
(99,290) 358,635
15,078 -
810,426 582,993
2,880,000 2,880,000
0.25 0.33

0.28 0.20
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As the share options outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2012 had no dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per amount, diluted earnings per share was the same as basic
earnings per share. The core profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company is the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company excluding fair value gains/(losses) on investment
properties net of deferred tax and fair value gains on derivative
financial instruments.

COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had commitments in respect
of development expenditure on real estate of approximately
RMB1,302.54 million (approximately RMB1,518.50 million in 2011).
The Group is also committed to the payment of land premium in
respect of land acquisition of approximately RMB252.72 million
(approximately RMB110.70 million in 2011).

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group is led by an experienced and professional management
team. Since the establishment of the Group in 1994, the Group
has been undergoing rapid development and expansion under the
leadership of the Board. Senior management is very experienced in
properties development industry with over 10 years’ experience for
most of the senior executives. With the strong leadership as well
as effective execution, together with strict implementation of the
best international practices according to the actual situation of the
Company, the Group has become one of the strongest real estate
developers in the PRC within a relatively short period of time.

We believed that the competence of human resources, particularly
the senior executives and professional project management team,
is of critical importance to maintaining the strong competitive
strengths of the Group. The Group aims to achieve and exceed
the international standard of outstanding performance through
compliance with the best international practice in respect of
strict management system and corporate governance. As at 31
December 2012, the Group had a total staff of 1,641. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, the total staff costs (including directors’
fees) amounted to RMB57.68 million (RMB42.86 million in 2011).

RN AEE £2012F12A31 B IEFE A& RITHE
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XIAMEN & M
Yuzhou World
As at 31 December 2012 ]}ﬁade Center
o ,
MR2012412H31H % (/” ° ﬂ_fé] L_P ’L:'
Area T & :
Region & .
g (sq.m. F Jj k.)
West Strait Economic Zone i i & 7 [&
Xiamen =r 2,606,406
Fuzhou = 306,614
Quanzhou N 1,315,200
Longyan A 312,330
Sub-total INET 4,540,550
Yangtze River Delta Region & = A& [&
Shanghai 5 520,145 T
Hefei =Y 1,148,845 | ; ’__:
Sub-total NE 1,668,990 3
TR
Bohai Rim Region IR 1) 1 45 9 R i : ;
Tianjin X2 450,656 -
it
Sub-total NEE 450,656 : : :
Total @3t 6,660,196 53
rNa
TRE
TR
Tt
1L
i bl
B
As at 31 December 2012
72012912 H31H
Area T &

Ltz i (sqm. F 7% %.)

West Strait Economic Zone i i & i [&
Quanzhou R 867,675*

*

It represents the aggregate GFA agreed under the
framework agreement

* EAERBEBRENEZERE
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With total site area
and total saleable

GFA of 19,454 sq.m.
and 182,640 sq.m.
respectively

48 15 b T 519,454 °F
LVESE LS % TN
182,640F 7 %

Lk

Project description

TH H fif it

[t comprises the World Trade Center of 66,000 sg.m. and
two 43-storey high-rise buildings, being the first city complex
project and the highest landmark of commercial and residential
complex in Xiamen.

It is adjacent to the train station and BRT of Xiamen, embracing
the perfect geographical advantages of pouring crowds and
flourishing logistics.

The World Trade Center is the first mega shopping mall in
Xiamen with an annual turnover of almost RMB1 billion.

H16.6/% 7 /7 KAVt B B ok fe RIZ43[E iR = |8
BEMAR REME—ERTHEEEERE
12 B AEFIR SRR ERE-

EMEPIAEIEMEPFITRE AR HIE
REMIMBLE  ARYRMAEE -

WEEHREEMATE —EARBYHL F
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Yuzhou Golf
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With total site area
and total saleable

GFA of 55,986 sq.m.
and 114,574 sq.m.
respectively

48 1k 3t 48 Tl B /555,986
Fhok oM ERR
i 7 B 114,574°F % %

T g A -

Project description k =

H H i ft

e Itis located adjacent to Xiamen Orient Golf Club, conveniently ~— ® ZEMEFIRTSBKREL T2 8] it
access to the best natural resources; well-located next to MEEER - SRR AZHEERR - ERN
the Local Municipal Government with well-established living EEMBERREEE AREESALER
and commercial facilities. It is a unique set of golf villas with a M- REIMAERSFREENEMR
panoramic view of 194km coastline in West Strait Economic AIEE o
Zone.

e It comprises 4 blocks of high-rises with 508 apartments, and ~ ® B H H4R608E R E R E © 41fR105E 5| 22

41 blocks of 105 villas, and a club house. KK -

e The project was launched in August 2011. As of 31 December ~® M B B2011487 [ # - & 1L2012F12H31
2012, it recorded sales of RMB386 million with accumulated B REHESBEARKES.86(ET - RFtHE
GFA of 40,130 sg.m.. Contracted average selling price (‘ASP”) 840,130 F 5K SHEEREF KA
is RMB9,620 per sqg.m.. R#9,6207T °

o Crowded as “Asia’s International Green Living Environment of ~ ® 20104 &l ¢ &5 f X &R [ 2 M B BR (£ =
2010” in 2010 and “Best Architectural Appearance of 2011” by ABIRIFE | 2012F L EEMHERN R
2012 Xiamen Real Estate Oscar Award. [2011F € A= RREELINER |
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Yiuzhou Shoreline
&l e B i .

b L With total site area .

and total saleable
GFA of 107,622 sq.m.
and 421,316 sq.m.
1'espectively
48 1 1 @ 55107 622°F
5 ﬁ**mﬂﬁﬁ L i fE
™ 121,316°F % %

Project description

5 H

e |t is located at the heart of Xiamen Haicang CBD, offering a o {ZAEFTEACBDH L & - B=KE
panoramic view of ocean, lake and forestry. Its design took %%L% o JH B LR BIRRET L - T R AR
good advantage of the ocean view and the lake view, creating a SHERER kB S BEERKAL:

magnificent landscape.

e With a plot ratio of 2.796 and greenery coverage of 41%, the o RIERE A2.796 ' £kt E41% - THH R EI A
project will be developed into low-density residential units, BEEXE SE BERHERAN -
high-rise and commercial buildings and a kindergarten.

e The project was launched in October 2011. As of 31 e H20114107FBLANK - # 112012412 A31
December 2012, it recorded contracted sale of RMB2.13 billion H IEEAAEEEE17T1,548F 5K &4
with accumulated GFA of 171,548 sg.m.. HESBOARK2127ET.

e Award received: “2011 China’s Best Ten Properties with e 2011 [REEME+ ARKEAFERIBEHE
Exemplary Living Environment” and “Best Landscape Design of 1R 20124F 45 3’éf P9 b 25 B8 A K 2011
2011” by 2012 Xiamen Real Estate Oscar Award. FEREEMSERET] -
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Yuzhou Central Coast
& ot S i

With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 123,240 sq.m.
and 535,000 sq.m.
respectively

48 1 1 i F5 R 123,240
5 ok 48 n] s SR R
$5535,000°F 7 %

Project description

TH H i it

It is located right at the transportation hub with well-established
network of education institutes, banks, hospitals, thus with
unlimited appreciation potential.

It is located at the seafront of Xiamen Jimei, and it comprises
high-rise residential, commercial and SOHO office buildings.

Since the launch in December 2011, the project has been
ranked as one of the best-selling properties in Xiamen in terms
of contracted saleable GFA. As of 31 December 2012, it
recorded contracted sale of RMB1.43 billion with accumulated
GFA of 148,516 sg.m..

Accredited as one of the “10 Most Desirable Properties” by
members of xmhouse.com in 2011, “Best Natural Scenery of
2011” by 2012 Xiamen Real Estate Oscar Award and “2012
China-West Strait Economic Zone Five-Star Property” by Fuijian
Daily.
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HE-
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FE+REBE| 2 — 20125 & &= PIith A& B HT
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Yuzhou Riverside City Town
& o o IZ 32 14 9%

With total site area
and total saleable

GFA of 284,414 sq.m.
and 512,600 sq.m.
respectively

48 15 3 1/ £5284,414°F
Ji oK 48] B B SE R

512,600°F # %

Project description

H H i it

It is located at the center of northern Tong’an, north to Tong’an
Movie & TV City; and surrounded by national parks, tourist
attractions and a 4-star spa hotel.

[t mainly comprises villas, garden houses and high-rises.

The project was launched in January 2012. As of 31 December
2012, it recorded contracted sale of RMB174 million with
accumulated GFA of 17,901 sg.m..

Awards received: “The National’s Best Living Environment”
by Asian Properties Summit and the 2011 International Green
Properties Selection; “Best Room-type Designed Residential
Property” and “Best Low Block Residential Property” by 2012
Xiamen Real Estate Oscar Award.

R EFMRZZRMALE - B2 Wit E iz
DAL - FRA2ERFKAARR R - B Ak
PR B ARBORSRIBE

HAMNRIE EEFFE SEABRE-

T8 B 8201291 A F B LA 3K - & (F2012412
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Yuzhou Cloud 'Top International

XIAMEN J% ']

A e Z IA B B

'With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 15,652 sq.m.
and 69,730 sq.m.
respectively

4845 #15,652F 75 % - 48
o £ # % [ $569,730°F
TR S

Project description

H H i it

It is located at the new center of Xiamen Island, being the first
city integrated project linked to Bus Rapid Transit (BRT).

[t will be a sleepless town comprising three high-rise residential
buildings with 28 to 29 stories, and a 10,000-sg.m. GFA for
commercial use.

Presale is expected to start in 2Q2013 with planned ASP no
less than RMB30,000 per sg.m. for residential apartments.

Accredited as one of the “Most Notable New Project in 2012”
by 2012 Xiamen Real Estate Oscar Award.
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LONGYAN it 5

Yuzhou Castle above City
& M o 3% | 3

With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 100,878 sq.m.
and 312,330 sq.m.

r espectivel)

4 15 #1100,878F % % -
48 ] £ 2 2RI £$312,330
¥ VRS

o gy
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Project description

5 H 7+

e It is situated at the center of Dongshan Zone, Xinlu District, e {7 FABES T # Z& [& B LR SEAZ O b ER - A 1L
Longyan City; and surrounded by mountains and rivers with B -EAEHE BEE - BE B £468
well-established network of education institutes, hospitals, EMRE—EEZ-

stores, supermarkets and commercial complexes.

e |t is planned to have 18 high-rise residential buildings with 18 o THHEZ|H181E18-34EB S EEERII1.558

to 34 stories and a 15,000 sg.m. GFA for commercial use. The FHARAEEREME TERELERE
residential part comprises variety house type and the unit area MERERT73-136F 5 K& -

is between 73 to 136 sg.m..

¢ Presale is expected to start in June 2013 with panned ASP of ¢ M B B&H 120136 A 1A T8 ’%_' TEHEAE
RMB8,000 per sg.m. for residential apartments. EHETESFTKAKMES0007T
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FUZHOU 75 M

Yuzhou Gushan No. One
& W e 3¢ 1l — 5

With total site area
and total saleable

I

ey ¥

!‘ .

7/

o GFA of 234,160 sq.m.
i e TG and 79,923 sq.m.
== | T .‘ respectively
e | | t ! spectively |
=== gy 49 41 0 T Bt #9 %5234,160
WE-ae S L F 77 K o ] s 55 T
» - 79,923 F 7 ¥

Project description

I8 H 4+

e |t is situated at the mid-level of Gu Shan, the 4A National e “EARRMBIARSE 5L H ) 1A
Scenic Spot. The project is located east to Fuzhou City, south BREEINNE MEEERET  mEEN
to the scenic Minjiang, west to the panoramic view of Fuzhou mEecs tEZERmIERE WwENE
City and north to several main avenues of the city, enjoying an BREXEE-

exclusive geographical advantage.

e |t is planned to have approximately 300 detached and semi- o RZ|AL300FEIE L ERRIZ - RERE R
detached villas with a plot ratio of merely 0.28 and building 0.28 " EERE13% °
density of 13%.

e The project was launched in August 2010. As of 31 December o I8 E B20104F8 A F£8 LA 3K » & 1F2012412

2012, it recorded sales of RMB629 million with accumulated A31H EEB R E4HE2EARE6.29
GFA of 30,620 sq.m.. Contracted ASP is RMB20,526 per BIr B4 48 ™I A30,620F 5 X

sg.m.. BRIHEBEREBF T KARK20,5267T
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Yuzhou Oriental Venice
& W e 5 7 i B A

With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 706,397 sq.m.
and 355,431 sq.m.
respectively;

48 1t 3l 129 B 706,397
0 SRy, 4B T s SR T
355,43 1F % %

i

‘f

Project description

5 H i it

It is situated at the northern coast of Wulong River, Fuzhou,
along the amazing coastline of 1,750 meters, overlooking the
Five Tiger Mountain which sits on the opposite river banks. The
project is surrounded on three sides by Wulong River and links
to the protogenic water vein of Wulong River, offering a natural
environment for living.

The project is being developed in three phases with a water
surface area of approximately 100,000 sg.m. upon completion.
It is designed to have a total of over 20 isles and peninsulas.
The water channeling in the villa area will be streaming from the
source of the Wulong River.

There are three phases: Phase | almost has completed and
delivered; Phase Il was launched in September 2010, and 80%
was sold. Phase Il was prepared for commencement and
presale is expected to start in 4Q2013.

J:%Waad\l\l BRI E A1, 750K B —

RIS MAREHENARIL-ZEAS
S’E/Iﬁﬁf& RN REE SR RAEK
IR - BRIT M JE ©

BB ZHIRE  EREKERBL108F
F oK LR BH20ZE/NEFES - R E R
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QUANZHOU % M

Yuzhou C1§y Plaza Phase 1
1% oM 34, Tir JBE %

--_-agr;_ms;'amf_:i:_'-_i.

o mr = gl

Project description

5 H i it

e |t is situated at the prime location of Huian, Quanzhou with
convenient transportation network, wonderful surrounding and
well-established facilities.

e |t was designed into the most representative large scale city
integrated project in Huian comprising residential, commercial,
office, leisure, entertainment and cultural projects.

e This project is developed under primary and secondary
mode. The land was acquired in May 2011, construction
started in July 2011 and began presale in January 2012. As
of 31 December 2012, it recorded sales of RMB240 million
with accumulated GFA of 55,048 sg.m.. Contracted ASP is
RMB4,365 per sg.m..
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SHANGHAI F i

Yuzhou C1§y Plaza
& W o iy

With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 50,628 sq.m.
and 98,494 sq.m.
respectively

TH H 4845 ¥ i & B
50,628°F 7 K - 48 ] £ &
% B98,494°F 7 %

Project description

Y6 H il f

It located at Lin Gang New District of Shanghai Pudong,
10-min walk to MTR station line 16 (to be operated in 2013).

It comprises high-rise offices, service apartments, commercial
units and low-rises.

The project is expected to launch onto market in 3Q2013 with
target contracted ASP of RMB13,000 per sg.m..

(s e T —

TH B A7 8 5E RER S F 0 B i i AR 2
165547 (2013F 12K ) RB109 EITEKIE

HEAESEHLR EEAAE BEH
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%A B A N2013F £3FEME - FBET )
HAWHEDERE T RARK13,0007T °
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Yuzhou Center
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Project description

H H i At

The Project is adjacent to Jingiao International Community and
is surrounded by headquarters of the world top 500 enterprises
and the nearby there are offices, residential buildings,
commercial complexes, hotels, parks and transportation
networks in the area.

Stories 1 to 3 are commercial podium and Storeies 4 to 21 are
5A first class offices.

Accredited as “Business Outlook Gold Award” of the “Most
popular Projects in 2012” by Shanghai Evening Post.

9

With total site area and
total saleable GFA of
6,818 sq.m. and 28,670
sq.m. respectively

Y6 H 4845 3t 1 % 56,818
oK 48] B B SR AR
528,670 7 %

BEMREETHRRESB BRI
0 ZHEMe B EBRLE -t R50058 42
MR AEWRE - FEREEN SR B
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HEFEI & /It

Yuzhou Skyline
5 e X 1% ky

e

With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 446,757 sq.m.
and1,222,859 sq.m.
respectively
ﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
446,757 J K o 4B
& 1,222,859? 75 ZS

Project descrlptlon

H H i it

It is located at the intersection of New Municipal and Cultural
Zone, Economic and Technology Development Zone and High
and New Technology Development Zone in Heifei, adjacent to
the municipal government, embracing a prime geographical
advantage.

[t is an over 1,200,000 sg.m. community comprising high-
rise and multi-story residential buildings with facilities such as
schools, shopping malls and street-level shops.

As of 31 December 2012, the project recorded accumulated
contracted sale of RMB2.34 billion with contracted GFA of
453,221 sg.m..

Awards received: “Hefei’s Most Influential Property”; “Best
Living Environment Property”

R EIETHE X R EBERMFEER
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Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire
& W e %5 3 i B

HEFEI 4

Project description

TH H fif 5t

It is located at the Economic and Technology Development
Zone in Hefei with convenient transportation network,
well-located next to the Jade Lake with wonderful surrounding.
It is adjacent to the new campus of Hefei University of
Technology, Anhui University and other national Universities.

It comprises 20 blocks of high-rise residential buildings with
variety house type and the unit area is between 85 to 130 sg.m..

Presale is expected to start in November 2013 with panned
ASP of RMB7,000 per sg.m. for residential apartments.

Awards received: “Most Notable Project in 2013” by
www.soufan.com; “Notable Model Property in 2013” by
www.xafc.com.

With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 96,000 sq.m.
and 288,000 sq.m.
respectively
ﬁﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
96,000°F 7 & - 48 ] & g
] f§288,000¥ K S
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TIANJIN X i

Yuzhou Palace Country
& M o B Jif

With total site area

and total saleable

GFA of 135,173 sq.m.
and 319,748 sq.m.
respectively

48 1 +h 0 15 135,173°F
oK o 48] £ B 5L B
319,748% ¥ *

Project description

TH H i it

It is located adjacent to Tianjin South Station of Beijing-
Shanghai Express railway, and next to the Tuanpo Lake with
green coverage ratio of 40% with a classical Chinese garden
design.

It comprises 34 blocks of high-rise residential buildings, with
unit area between 60 to 130 sg.m..

The project began presale in October 2012 with current
contracted ASP of RMB6,700 per sg.m..

BN RENRUE S E K2 UM -
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GFA
Total GFA Held for
Unit Land Total GFA under Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed Development Development
BRI
EH AR [AE BESE i AREER AEEER BASEER
(sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (sqm.) (sqm.) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (L/FHK) (FHK) (FRX) (FRx)
Completed Projects
ERIER
Yuzhou Overseas City 27,703 Xiamen 830  North of the Junction of Hexiang West Road 239,627 - -
and Hubin West Road, Siming District
BlN-E6ERR EM BHEREAREREABRINALA
Yuzhou Shuilian Manor 12,909  Xiamen 910 West of Jinshang Road North 29,126 - -
Bl KEILE EM S HEILRER
Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza 6,316 Xiamen 396  Xiagang Yongfugong, Siming District 65,104 - -
Bl BXES EF BREEEXES
Yuzhou Harbour City 20,089  Xiamen 761 Hubin North Road, Siming District 191,649 - -
B EEHR EM BREMAILE
Yuzhou New City 25,610  Xiamen 647 Haotou, Dongdu, Huli District 93,473 - -
Bl Ef HERREEE
Yuzhou Garden 27,345 Xiamen 586 Jinshang Road, Huli District 92,388 - -
BNER Ef HEESHE
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden 26,367  Xiamen 1,718 Fanghu, Huli District 93,925 - -
BM-2M7E EM HERH
Yuzhou New Manor 45,619 Xiamen 493 No. 414-417, Nanshan Road, Huli District 118,892 - -
B Ef 2 & HILBR414-41755;
Yuzhou World Trade Center 19,454 Xiamen 845  No. 75, Xiahe Road 204,476 - -
BMl-tEE LY Ef ERBET5:
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast 70,793  Xiamen 1,590 West of Xinggang Road, Haicang District 245,073 - -
BlN-EELER EM BRERBRAN
Yuzhou University City 90,750  Xiamen 932  Tongji Road, Xike Town, tong’an District 480,252 - -
BM-REH EM Rl % & 75 17 S SR 3
Yuzhou Castle above City 52,715 Xiamen 1,273 Fanghu, Huli District 235,984 - -
Bl EM HERGH
Yuzhou Sunshine City 22,868  Xiamen 1,301 North of Wulv Road, West of Tongsheng Road, 66,899 - -
Tong'an Industrial Zone
Bl BAER Ef AZIZSTERREIA FEEER
Yuzhou Jingiao International 49,738 Shanghai 1,242 No. 333 Jin'gang Road, Pudong New Area 234,484 - -
Bl 2 RER b=} HRETE 2 BH333%
Yuzhou Gushan No. One 234,160  Fuzhou 1,831 Niushan Village, Yangli, Gushan Town, 88,287 - -
Jin"an District
BM- 8L —5% = BREHREF BT
Sub-total 732,436 1,038 2,480,139 - -

INEE
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7%
Total Sold Saleable GFA Total unsold Saleable GFA
ANECEREER BNERERE
Sold and
Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable  Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for  Investment Land Interestin  Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve  the Project GFA
#BuE EE EE
REEHR BEAE #EEER EREER ARFER HAREDR BEHE BERE TifEE AREDEL EEREER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) % (sq.m.)
(EAR) (ERR) (EHXK) (FERXK) (ERXK) (EHXK) (EHXK) (EHK) (ERXK) (EHK)
239,627 236,745 235,644 235,644 - 1,101 - 1,101 1,101 100% 1,101
29,126 27,325 27,325 27,325 - - - - - 100% -
65,104 64,575 63,093 63,093 - 1,482 621 861 1,482 100% 1,482
191,649 186,013 186,013 186,013 - - - - - 60% -
93,473 90,770 87,144 87,144 - 3,626 262 3,364 3,626 100% 3,626
92,888 92,119 90,042 89,751 291 2,077 385 1,692 2,368 100% 2,368
93,925 91,689 91,437 91,437 - 252 252 - 252 100% 252
118,892 118,652 118,590 118,590 - 62 62 - 62 100% 62
204,476 182,640 133,049 131,710 1,339 49,591 491 49,100 50,930 100% 50,930
245,073 226,679 186,129 179,982 6,147 40,550 8,900 31,650 46,697 100% 46,697
480,252 467,112 408,793 405,514 3,279 58,319 51,223 7,096 61,598 100% 61,598
235,984 231,017 213,387 139,408 73,979 17,630 14,872 2,758 91,609 98% 89,777
66,899 72,278 58,438 56,510 1,928 13,840 13,840 - 15,768 100% 15,768
234,484 230,955 181,393 159,852 21,541 49,562 16,847 32,715 71,103 100% 71,103
88,287 79,923 30,620 24,439 6,181 49,303 49,303 - 55,484 60% 33,290

2,480,139 2,398,492 2,111,097 1,996,412 114,685 287,39 167,068 130,337 402,080 378,054
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GFA
Total GFA Held for
Unit Land Total GFA under Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed Development Development
BRI
EH AR [AE BESE i LEZEE LEEDR BESEEE
(sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (L/FHK) (FHK) (FRX) (FRx)
Projects Under Development
ERER
Yuzhou International Hotel 60,018  Xiamen 1,175 East of Huli Avenue, South of Huandao East - 125,221 -
Road, Huli District
BNBERKBE EF HERRSRENE  HERBEUR
Yuzhou Center (Previously known 3,333 Xiamen 2,417 North of Minggong Building, Hubin South Road, - 60,130 -
as Yuzhou Square) Siming District
Bifd 0 EM BRRMRRERAERELA
Yuzhou Golf 55,986  Xiamen 1,165  Maging Road, Haicang District - 129,187 -
Bl-m@x Ef BEREER
Yuzhou Shoreline 107,622 Xiamen 3,560  Area of 05-11, East of Xinggang Road and - 473,184 -
North of Jiaosong Road, Haicang District
BM-gk EM BERE1TAR  EERNE  ASHL
Yuzhou Central Coast 123,240  Xiamen 2,657 Area of 11-10, East of Xingbin Road and - 412,673 250,864
North of Xingdong Road, Jimei District
Bl-frER EM EXEN-10FEDERRA  ARHELA
Yuzhou Riverside City Town 284,414 Xiamen 1,696 Area of 12-07, North of Movie & TV City, - 83,452 429,148
South Wuxian Area, tong'an District
Bl ER I Ef EEIAVAVER =2 b 4
Haicang Vanke City 189,752 Xiamen 2,921 Northwest of the Intersection with Wengjiao - 517,690 -
(Joint Venture Project) Road and Xinyang Bridge, Haicang District
BEER (RERAEE) EM BERSARENEABINAELA
Yuzhou Center (Previously known 6,818  Shanghai 2,616 Qiu 3/6, Qiu 2, No 9 Street, Jingiao Export - 35,837 -
as Yuzhou Financial Tower) Processing Zone, Pudong New Area
BifidL i ARIFESELONIEREH6R 28
Yuzhou City Plaza 50,628  Shanghai 1,445  Site A0403, College Community, - 100,489 -
Lin'gang New Town
BMETES i ER 7B B3 B I At [ AO4033 3%
Yuzhou Skyline 446,757  Hefei 377 West of Songlin Road, Northeast of 370,496 229,763 630,000
Planning Road, Ranfang Village,
Taohua Town, Feixi County
BM- X% e ERGHICERI N EBRRIA DHEIE
Yuzhou Oriental Venice 706,397  Fuzhou 2,568  Longjiang Village, Chengmen Town, 144,954 - 220,558
Gangshan District
BN RAREH = BB PRI
Yuzhou Palace Country 135,173 Tianjin 1,060 South of Beihua Road, East of - 320,374 -
Guihua Chunxi Avenue, Jinghai New Town
aM-BF RE B ERAN REFEERA
Yuzhou City Plaza Phase | 125,000  Quanzhou 338 South New Zone of Huian County - 162,177 329,623
BlpmES— 5 M BREu R
Sub-total 2,295,138 1,620 515,450 2,650,177 1,860,193
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A A5 4 PR
— AR

Business

%

59

Total Sold Saleable GFA

Total unsold Saleable GFA

ANECEREER BNEREER
Sold and
Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable  Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for  Investment Land Interestin  Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve  the Project GFA
#BuE EE EE
REEHR BEAE #EEER EREER ARFER HAREDR BEHE BERE TifEE AREDEL EEREER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) % (sq.m.)
(EAR) (ERR) (EHXK) (FERXK) (ERXK) (EHXK) (EHXK) (EHK) (ERXK) (EHK)
125,221 102,142 - - - 102,142 - 102,142 102,142 100% 102,142
60,130 57,861 - - - 57,861 - 57,861 57,861 100% 57,861
129,187 114,574 40,130 - 40,130 74,444 74,444 - 114,574 100% 114,574
473,184 421,316 171,549 - 171,549 249,767 235,367 14,400 421,316 100% 421,316
663,537 535,000 148,516 - 148,516 386,484 361,484 25,000 535,000 100% 535,000
512,600 512,600 17,901 - 17,901 494,699 414,199 80,500 512,600 100% 512,600
517,690 517,690 - - 161,029 356,661 356,661 - 517,690 20% 103,538
35,837 28,670 - - - 28,670 28,670 - 28,670 100% 28,670
100,489 98,494 - - - 98,494 63,217 35,277 98,494 100% 98,494
1,230,259 1,222,859 457,568 362,014 95,554 765,291 667,991 97,300 860,845 100% 860,845
365,512 355,431 146,526 104,301 42,225 208,905 193,172 15,733 251,130 100% 200,904
320,374 319,748 10,697 - 10,697 309,051 309,051 - 319,748 100% 319,748
491,800 491,800 55,048 - 55,048 436,752 436,752 - 491,800 100% 491,800
5,025,820 4,778,185 1,047,935 466,315 742,649 3,569,221 3,141,008 428,213 4,311,870 3,847,492
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GFA
Total GFA Held for
Unit Land Total GFA under Future
Project Site Area  Location Cost  Address Completed Development Development
BRI
EH hHEE AE EHYE it LEZEE LEEDR BESEEE
(sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.) (sqm.) (sqm.) (sq.m.)
(F7%) (%/F5K) (FrK)  (FRK) (FAK)
Projects Held for Future
Development
RFERHEER
Yuzhou Cloud Top International 15,652  Xiamen 3,241 South of West Liangian Road, West of - - 95,586
Yundingzhong Road, Siming District
Bill-ZTRER EF BREENAKEN EETEE
Yuzhou Commercial Plaza 40,911 Shanghai 2,367 No 9868 Hunan Road, Nanhui Industrial Park, - - 135,880
Pudong New Area
BNEEES Lig HRIERETXEERMARIS8H
Yuzhou Jinshan Project 174,814 Shanghai 1,324 Site 2988, North of Tingfeng Road, Zhujing - - 211,418
Town, Jinshan District
Bil&ILmEE i 2 IERTESAREKIL29885 5%
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire 96,000 Hefei 1,765  East of Ziyun Road, South of Feicui Road, - - 288,000
Taohua Town, Feixi County
BN HRME &l RRGHIEEXERUR EREUE
Yuzhou Tuanbo Project 109,090  Tianjin 1,275 East of Tuanbo Road, South of Duliujian River - - 130,908
South Road, Tuanboxi District
BNEREA PN EAARERAENR - BRRTEENE
Yuzhou Castle above City 100,878  Longyan 1,921 East of Lianzhuang Road, Xinluo District - - 312,330
B B#E MEEBEEER
Yuzhou City Plaza Phase || 241,707 Quanzhou 343 South New Zone of Huian County - - 878,525
BT RS 5 M ERERENE
Sub-total 779,052 1,193 - - 2,052,647
it
Total 3,806,626 1,376 2,995,589 2,650,177 3,912,840
E4
Projects with Primary Land Development Qualification
DE-RLHHEREENER
Yuzhou City Plaza 539,706  Quanzhou NA  No 1 Yingbin Avenue, Chengnan Industrial Zone,
Huian
BMHTES M TER BRENENEIEAEISH
Total 539,706

E#
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Total Sold Saleable GFA

Total unsold Saleable GFA

ANECEREER BNEREER
Sold and
Total Delivered Pre-sold Total Held for
Saleable  Total Sold Saleable Saleable Unsold Held for  Investment Land Interestin  Attributable
Total GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA Sale Only Only Reserve  the Project GFA
AAE EE g2E
REEHR BEAE #EEER EREER ARFER HAREDR BEHE BERE TifEE AREDEL EEREER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) % (sq.m.)
(EAR) (ERR) (EHXK) (FERXK) (ERXK) (EHXK) (EHXK) (EHK) (ERXK) (EHK)
95,586 69,730 - - - 69,730 48,618 21,112 69,730 100% 69,730
135,880 110,460 - - - 110,460 - 110,460 110,460 100% 110,460
211,418 211,418 - - - 211,418 211,418 - 211,418 100% 211,418
288,000 288,000 - - - 288,000 288,000 - 288,000 100% 288,000
130,908 130,908 - - - 130,908 130,908 - 130,908 100% 130,908
312,330 312,330 - - - 312,330 297,730 14,600 312,330 100% 312,330
878,525 823,400 - - - 823,400 664,680 158,720 823,400 100% 823,400
2,062,647 1,946,246 - - - 1,946,246 1,641,354 304,892 1,946,246 1,946,246
9,558,606 9,122,923 3,159,032 2,462,727 857,334 5,802,862 4,939,420 863,442 6,660,196 6,171,792
867,675 812,551 - - - 812,551 812,551 - 812,551 100% 812,551
867,675 812,551 - - - 812,551 812,551 - 812,551 812,551
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of seven Directors, of whom four
are executive Directors and the remaining three are independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors are appointed for a term
not exceeding three years. The power and duties of our Board of
Directors include convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting
the Board’s work at shareholders’ meetings, implementing
resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings, determining our
business plans and investment plans, formulating our annual
budget and final accounts, formulating our proposals for profit
distributions and for the increase or reduction of registered capital
as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by our Memorandum and Articles of Association.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Lung On (MFE R), aged 48, was appointed as the
Chairman of our Board and our Executive Director on 9 October
2009. He founded our Group in December 1994. He is also a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of our Company. Since December 1994, Mr. Lam has
held positions including but not limited to chairman, vice chairman,
director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for formulating our development strategies and
supervising our project planning, financing, design and marketing.
He has over eighteen years of experience in residential, commercial
and hotel property development and investment. Mr. Lam is an
adjunct professor and an executive member of the Council of Jimei
University in Xiamen. In 2006, Mr. Lam became an honorary citizen
of Xiamen accredited by the mayor of Xiamen. He has been a
member of the 9th Standing Committee of the All-China Federation
of Returned Overseas Chinese, the 9th Central Committee of
the China Democratic National Construction Association, the 7th
Standing Committee of the Fujian Provincial Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese and the Standing Committee of the 11th Xiamen
Municipal Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Lam also serves as executive deputy chairman
of the 3rd Council of the China Federation of Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs, deputy chairman of the 14th Xiamen Municipal
Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese, life honorary chairman
of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations, life honorary
chairman of the 8th Hong-Kong Xiamen Friendship Union and
deputy chairman of the 11th Committee of the Xiamen General
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Lam graduated from the University
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of Science and Technology of China with a master’'s degree in
Engineering in November 1996. Mr. Lam is the spouse of Ms.
Kwok Ying Lan, our Executive Director, and the brother of Mr. Lin
Longzhi, our Executive Director and brother-in-law Mr. Lin Conghui,
our Executive Director. Mr. Lam has not held any directorship in
any other public listed companies in the past three years. Mr. Lam
worked for Xiamen Land Development Company, a state-owned
enterprise, before he founded our Group.

Kwok Ying Lan (E8% ), aged 42, was appointed as our
Executive Director on 9 October 2009. She is also the Vice
Chairman of our Board. Since joining our Group in April 1997, Ms.
Kwok has held positions including but not limited to chairman,
director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for overseeing our Purchasing Department.
Ms. Kwok has over 15 years of experience in property
development and financial management. Ms. Kwok has been an
executive director of the Xiamen Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment. She is the spouse of Mr. Lam Lung On, our
Executive Director, and the sister-in-law of Mr. Lin Longzhi and Mr.
Lin Conghui, our Executive Directors. Ms. Kwok has not held any
directorship in any other public listed companies in the past three
years. Ms. Kwok worked for China Construction Bank Xiamen
Branch, a state-owned bank, before she joined our Company.

Lin Longzhi (MEEE) , aged 44, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 9 October 2009. Since joining our Group in December
1997, Mr. Lin has held positions including but not limited to
chairman, director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries
and is primarily responsible for the supervision of daily operations
of our Office of General Affairs, Human Resources Department,
Initial Development Department, Customer Services Department
and Legal Department. Mr. Lin has almost 15 years of experience
in property development and investment. Mr. Lin has been a
member of the 12th Xiamen Municipal People’s Congress and an
executive director of the 4th Standing Committee of the Xiamen
Real Estate Association. He also serves as a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Quangang District, Xiamen, and deputy chairman
of the Xiamen Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment.
Mr. Lin is the younger brother of Mr. Lam Lung On, our Executive
Director, the brother-in-law of Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, our Executive
Director and the brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Conghui, who is also
our Executive Director. Mr. Lin has not held any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the past three years.
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Lin Conghui (# B8 ) , aged 42, was appointed as our Executive
Director on 9 October 2009. Since joining our Group in July 1998,
Mr. Lin has held positions including but not limited to chairman and
director in most of our subsidiaries and is primarily responsible for
our Group’s quality control, budget formation, approval and review.
Mr. Lin has over 14 years of experience in project management.
He graduated from Tongji University with a diploma in Architecture
Engineering in January 2006. Mr. Lin is the brother-in-law of Mr. Lam
Lung On, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lin Longzhi, our Executive
Directors. Mr. Lin has not held any directorship in any other public
listed companies in the past three years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Gu Jiande (E&f&) , aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 October 2009. He is also a member
of the audit committee and the chairman of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of our Company.
He has been an independent non-executive director of Xiamen
International Trade Group Corp., Ltd., a PRC incorporated
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (600755), since
May 2009. He has been an independent non-executive director
of Xiamen International Airport Co., Ltd., a PRC incorporated
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (600897),
since May 2008. He was the president of Jimei University from
May 1997 to September 2009, and is an executive member and
secretary-general of the Council of Jimei University. Mr. Gu has
been awarded Special Government Allowance by State Council of
the People’s Republic of China since October 1993 recognizing
his outstanding contribution to the national higher education; Tan
Kah Kee Outstanding Contribution Awards by Chiyu Tan Kah
Kee Education Fund in October 2002; second prize of Scientific
and Technical Development of Fujian Province and Xiamen City
by Fujian provincial People’s Government in 1992 and Xiamen
Municipal People’s Government in 1995, respectively; the second
prize of Institute of Higher Learning Scientific and Technical
Achievement by Department of Education of Fujian Province in
June 1984. Mr. Gu is the author of a number of publications and
articles on various natural science and social science publications,
including Ordinary Differential Equations (Xiamen University Press,
August 1993); Systems Engineering and Forecasting of Talents
Demand (Xiamen University Press, November 1991); Forecasting
of Talents Demand in Fujian (Xiamen University Press, September
1991); Economic and Social Development and Demand for
Talents in Fujian (Xiamen University Press, April 1991); Stability and
Boundary of a Class of Generalized Continuous Hopfield Neural
Network (Dalian Maritime University Press, August 1996); Stability
and Boundedness of a Class of Second Order Ordinary Differential
Equations (Journal of Xiamen University (Natural Science), August
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1993); The Stability of the Large Scale Systems of a Class of
Differential Equation with Delay (Theory of Ordinary Differential
Equation and its Applications, Science Press, October 1992);
Estimation of Delayed Quantity of a Class of Differential Equation
with Delay (Journal of Xiamen University (Natural Science), March
1991); and Motion Stability of Linear Large Scale Systems (Control
Theory & Applications, 2nd Phase, 1985). Mr. Gu graduated from
Peking University with an undergraduate certificate in mathematics
in August 1966.

Lam Kwong Siu (#kEJk) , aged 78, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 October 2009. He is also
a member of the audit committee of our Company. He has more
than fifty years of banking experience. In addition, Mr. Lam has
held the following positions in the banking sector:

e a non-executive director of Bank of China International Limited
(formerly known as BOCI Capital Limited) since July 2002;

e an independent non-executive director of CITIC Bank
International Limited (formerly known as CITIC Ka Wah Bank
Limited) since January 2002;

e the vice chairman of BOC International Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank of China Ltd since October
2001; and

e an independent non-executive director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as CITIC Ka Wah
Bank Limited) since 1996. CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited is a Hong Kong incorporated company which was listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (00183) until the withdrawal
of its listing in November 2008.

Mr. Lam has served the following companies in the capacity of:

e an independent non-executive director of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited, a Cayman Islands incorporated company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (00868) since August 2004;

e an independent non-executive director of Fujian Holdings Ltd.,
a Hong Kong incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (00181) since December 2003;

e an independent non-executive director of China Overseas
Land & Investment Ltd., a Hong Kong incorporated company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (00688) since
September 2003;
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e an independent non-executive director of Ananda Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited (now known as Wing On Travel (Holdings)
Limited), a Bermuda incorporated company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (01189), until January 20083; and

e anindependent non-executive director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited,
a Cayman lIslands incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (01125), from June 1999 to July 2001.

e an independent non-executive director of Far East Consortium
International Limited, a Cayman Islands incorporated
Company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (00035),
since September 2011.

Mr. Lam was awarded the HKSAR Silver Bauhinia Star in 2003. He
was a delegate of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the PRC to the 10th National People’s Congress. He currently
serves as the honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Federation
of Fujian Associations, life honorary chairman of the Hong Kong
Fukien Chamber of Commerce, deputy chairman of the Fujian
Hong Kong Economic Co-operation, life honorary chairman of
the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, adviser of the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association and the honorary president
of the Chinese Bankers Club of Hong Kong.

Wee Henny Soon Chiang (also known as Wee Toon Kian) (& 1&
%8 ), aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 9 October 2009. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of our Company. He has more than thirty
years of experience in public accounting practice. Mr. Wee was
an independent non-executive director of the then The Quaypoint
Corporation Limited (now known as China Uptown Group
Company Limited), a Cayman Islands incorporated company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (02330), from September 2001
to November 2006. He is the founder of Henny Wee & Co., a firm
of Certified Public Accountants (Practising) registered at Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February 1988.
Mr. Wee is the partner of Henny Wee & Co. since 1988. He worked
at Glass Radcliffe Chan & Wee as a partner. Mr. Wee received a
bachelor’s degree in Commerce from the University of Newcastle,
New South Wales, Australia, in March 1971. He became an
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
(Australia) in July 1975, and a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, now known
as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, since
1988.

o A2003F1 A MARTE R E KT IR e (FEA%)
ERAE REAREKTIRE (R ER
DA —HER BRI RE BB
Fr Em& AR iR RI5AR01189) : &

o 19996 A E2001F7TAEEELERE
AR (—ERHASESEMK I RES
B E R AR IR I5E01125) BB
SMIEHITES -

o WOOMFOAMMBEFTRERERERAF
(—ERFESESEMAY I RE B ZFT
ETHARE D ARE A00035) 858 IEH
TESE-

PRSE A TR20034F SR 1 78 15 51l 1T K [ R 55571 8
B MEEBTETEEZEAKRNBRAEK M
EERTEAREEERERETR KERE
HEKEREER HEKHEAIFRERESE
TE - BATEARGKEREGR BAT
rEHEBELRESRTEEGERESR-

EE® 665%  N2009F10A9REZ T AH M
B IERTES - BNAERRAEZZEEN
IR FTHNEZESRREEESNNE SR
B0F AR SHEBLR - E L EH2001F9A
FE2006F11AEELBEEER AR GREF
B EHEBRERAR)NBYIIENTES ZA
AlAE—HRHSHEEMR IR E BT L
m (B RS 202330) M ARl - R AR EERGET
B ESETEAIE A - 5% A B JhRN1088F2 B &
BE AR E SR E5AT - 51988
FLA B EXEAEREESTMESINGE
A 11 BIE R A B AMERF Glass Radcliffe Chan
& Wee » &= o £ i197143 A 8 22 78 )M ¥ /3 L
MIEMREAS THRERESELEM Tt
HEMO7TEET A ESRNS st E S R
1988F K A BB G A S ESEHAD -



AR AR

F— AR

Senior Management’s Biographies

A E g

67

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Chiu Yu Kang (BBF &) , aged 35, is our Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary. Mr. Chiu joined our Company in October
2008 and is responsible for our Group’s strategic planning,
corporate finance activities, investor relations and oversight of
financial reporting procedures, company secretary matters, internal
controls and compliance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules with regard to financial reporting, company secretarial and
other related issues. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chiu worked
in an international C.PA. firm. Mr. Chiu has over 11 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
Mr. Chiu graduated with a master’s degree in Economics and a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise property
development, property investment, the provision of management
services and hotel operation. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS, DIVIDENDS AND BONUS ISSUE

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 142 to 256.

The directors recommend a bonus issue of 2 bonus shares for
every 10 existing shares held in respect of the year to shareholders
on the register of members at the close of business on 7 June
2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and the prospectus
of the Company dated 20 October 2009, is set out on page
257. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment properties
are set out on page 258.
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SENIOR NOTES %%k F %

The Company issued US$200 million senior notes and US$250
million senior notes (the “Notes”), with a maturity of five years and
bearing a coupon interest rate of 13.5% and 11.75% in December
2010 and October 2012. The Company intends to use the net
proceeds to repay certain of the Group’s existing loans, fund
the acquisition of land for residential and commercial property
development (including through the acquisition of equity interests
in entities that own development sites or assets) and for general
corporate purposes. For the details of the senior notes of the
Company, please refer to note 27(d) and note 27(e) to the financial
statements.

BONDS ISSUE

The Company issued 10% bonds in an aggregate principal value
of HK$1 billion with a maturity of three years to China Life Trustees
Limited in July 2010 and November 2010 respectively. The
purpose of the proceeds from such issue is to provide financial
support to the expansion of the Group’s property development
business. For the details of the bonds of the Company, please refer
to note 27(a)(vi) to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

AR F D RIR2010F12 8 2012610 A 31718
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 32(a) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB608,469,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB1,864,000 (2011: RMB3,318,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, no sales to the Group’s five largest
customers and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for over 30% of the total sales for the year and of the
total purchases for the year, respectively.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman)

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lin Longzhi

Mr. Lin Conghui

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gu Jiande
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang

fif
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In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, Mr. Gu Jiande and Mr. Lam
Kwong Siu will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors are appointed for periods of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Messrs. Gu Jiande, Lam Kwong Siu and Wee Henny Soon
Chiang, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 62 to 67 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, no
director had an interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2012, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES OF
THE COMPANY:

EHMEHME R

RS EHRMEITAEIN  FR - HEEER
EASAEEXEBEAN - BAR B HEMHE
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Ms. Kwok Ying Lan @
MRBWL L

1,080,000,000

(@  Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lam Lung On are married to each other.

Save as provided above, none of the directors have any interests in
the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations.

1,080,000,000  2,160,000,000 75.0
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ ¥ 2R E A Rk R
INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2012, the interests of relevant persons (other than 2012512 A31H B IEFE 5 & 5 14515336
the directors of the Company) in the share capital of the Company, §F E &Ptz BEA LT (BA
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 A FIEEIN) RA QR AR Ry EZR T

of SFO, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES OF & % 7 5 % i it i) 4 & °
THE COMPANY:

China Life Insurance (Overseas)
Company Limited (@) 526,234,800 526,234,800 18.27
R EASZRER 8N RO BERAF]

(a)  China Life Insurance (Overseas) Company Limited is directly wholly- () — FEIA ZREE (FE50) 17 B IR 2 7] 5% B A

owned by China Life Trustees Limited which is, in turn, directly EBEEHAERANGMEREZEH 2 EF A A
wholly-owned by China Life Insurance (Group) Company; therefore, MHAENFBETERR ]I EBHEAZE
each of China Life Trustees Limited and China Life Insurance (Group) Rz (EE)RAERZZEH 2 EF A AT
Company is deemed to be interested in the 526,234,800 shares held K A ZREE (5)) R 17 EIR A I EH)
by China Life Insurance (Overseas) Company Limited. 526,234,800 7 1\ A1fR (7 B9 ## 2 I1 42 [5] B

AFEAFRAFTR A EIAFRE (£E) 2 7]
o=l
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 May 2010, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted and approved by the then shareholders of the Company
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of any
member of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors,
contractors, customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint
venture business partners, service providers of any member of
the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group to participate in the
Scheme (“Participants”).

On 31 December 2012, the Company has granted share options
(the “Share Options”) under its share option scheme adopted on
24 May 2010 to certain directors and employees of the Group (the
“Grantees”) which, subject to the acceptance of the Grantees,
entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of 36,690,000
new shares of HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) in the share capital of
the Company. Details of the grant of the Share Options are set out
below:

Date of Offer: 31 December 2012

Exercise price: HK$2.25 per Share

Number of underlying 36,690,000 Shares
Shares subject
to the Share Options:
Closing price of the Shares  HK$2.25 per Share
on the Date of Offer:

Validity period of the Share
Options:

10 years from the Date of Offer

40%, 30% and 30% of the
Share Options will be vested
on the third, fifth and seventh
anniversaries, respectively, from
the Date of Offer

Vesting period:

i ik 4wt
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The exercise price of HK$2.25 per Share represents the highest
of (i) the closing price of HK$2.25 per Share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the Date of the Offer; and (ii)
the average closing price of HK$2.122 per Share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Date of Offer. Among the
Share Options granted, Share Options to subscribe for 33,000,000
Shares were granted to the following directors of the Company:

BRBMITEEEE225  HER TI&EBH
PrERE (RENBHEERERIMAER
A ([ ) BEHERRERIRZKHE
TN B2 2570 (NBEELH B HAT R EE
XM ELE 2 BRRERMTRN 2T
Wi (B &R IR (7 7B #52.1227T » AT IR 1O BE A% 4
# - 33,000,000 EERE DR T ARG A TE
=

Number of underlying
Shares subject to the

Name of Grantee Position Share Options granted
B AR T R

AERAER B RE#E

Lam Lung On Chairman

MEER R 1,000,000

Kwok Ying Lan Vice-chairman

SPEE =B 1,000,000

Lin Longzhi Executive Director

MEEE HITES 20,500,000

Lin Conghui Executive Director

MR8 HITEE R

Save as disclosed above, none of the Grantees is a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules).

The grant of Share Options to each of the above directors had
been approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company in accordance with Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules
and approved by the remuneration committee of the Company.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide Participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company, to
encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole, and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to Participants.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the Scheme shall
not exceed 240,000,000 shares of the Company in aggregate,
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representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the date of adoption of the Scheme (i.e. 24 May 2010), and the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company to each Participant
in any 12 month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. At the time of grant of the options under
the Scheme, the Company may specify any minimum period(s)
for which the options must be held before it can be exercised.
The period within which the options under the Scheme may be
exercised will be specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant
date of grant.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option to be granted
under the Scheme is HK$1.00 and the exercise price of the
option shall be such price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to the Participant at the time an offer of the
grant of an option is made, but in any event, shall be no less than
the higher of:

(@ the closing price of the share of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(c) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the date of
grant.

R Z 20 B E (2010558248 ) 2 317K
R2Z210% ) » A A28 B BHE R R B &
EIRADNFHEMEMBERESSESIHERTE
SEENEREEITERTEITRE TR
BRDBETBBBDEITRODBEZ1% - MR
PRRLAT B3R R AR RS - R R B AT R E I AR Y
ATE RS ER A MR &S AR - ZETEITE T
MR R TITE M BRI B A AR A R R L B
B - ILHAR M ETER B BB E A HiesT+
FfEm o

REZMRIBZ T EA TR A BRSO E A
EER1.008TT MBRENTEEERESES
RELBRERE2ENBEETLNE2HEN
BRRER  HEREABER T AEER TS ED

ReE:

(@ ARE RO B HEE B T
&R REXRMIIHETE:

b) ARFRODVEERLBHAIAMBEEA
EEBBMIATENE BRERMAIINF
HYTHE K

© ARFBRHUEHAHANEE-



A A1 R

AR

Report of the Directors
ERQHE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report, being the latest practicable date prior to the
date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed the accounting
policies, accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group, discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters, and reviewed the consolidated financial statements and
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of directors
are considered to have interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. There has been no change of the auditors of the
Company since the listing of the Company’s shares on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on 2 November 2009.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lam Lung On
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2013
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The Board of Directors (“Board”) and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful
business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability
to all shareholders. The Company has applied the principles
and complied with all, except A.2.1, where applicable, of the
rules of the Main Board, code provisions and, where applicable,
the recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code on CG Practices”), which has been
renamed as Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) with effect
from 1 April 2012 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2012.

Key corporate governance principles and corporate governance
practices of the Company are summarised below:

I. RULES OF THE MAIN BOARD

AREEEL ([ESC ) REEERNEFR
TR EEAERERER - ARARERIFHD
EEREEAERNER 202 TFXXE - BRI
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BTt EErRAZEEsEZ 85 @
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Listing Rules

(effectively from 1 January 2012)
Rule Ref. LRl
SZHEl  (B-B--FE-A-HEEX)

3.08 Duties of Directors
EZBE

The Directors must take an active interest

in the issuer’s affairs and obtain a general
understanding of its business. They must
follow up anything improper that comes

to their attention. Delegating Directors’
functions is permissible but does not prevent
them from their responsibilities or from
applying the required levels of skill, care and
diligence.

ESERBROBITASE THETAZ
BEZEER EEREMNKESZENLA
RE-EZEREREA ERETE
fRMMOBENERRARE 2HENY
BITEMELE-

Corporate Governance Practices
LEERER

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year in which it
involves active participation by majority of the Directors, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, for business.
EFETHEHREF R ARNR RBNESHUFRFLE JEREME
FRAFTNER2EFASE-

Communications between Directors, on one hand, and the Company
Secretary who acts as coordinator, for other business units of the Group on
the other hand, is a dynamic and interactive process to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further
supporting information is provided if appropriate.
EZAASER RPN MNER ARAANERA EREDRIET
REZFERMREREFE 2 FHEFEE WERMEE —SEEER (M
#E) -

Every Executive Director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas
and operation in which he/she is in charge with.

RPTESHHARNEBEREEOAERAZERER

Memoranda are issued by the Company to Directors, from time to time,

on updating the legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to
Directors in the discharge of their duties.
RATRBELAEREUBAESSNNERRAEEY URANEHES
BUEEAMNZEH.
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Rule Ref.

SERA
3.10A

3.28,
3.29

Listing Rules
LHRA

Number of Independent Non-executive
Directors in the Board
BYFGTESLESEAY

Independent Non-executive Directors shall
represent at least one-third of the Board.
BUFATESARBETAESEARESD

=pz—

Qualifications, experience and training
of Company Secretary
RRHENER CREE

The Company Secretary shall have academic
or professional qualifications acceptable by
the Stock Exchange, including as a Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, a solicitor or a qualified
accountant. The Company Secretary also
shall possess “relevant experience”as
required by the Stock Exchange, including
length of employment with the issuer,
training taken, familiarity with the Listing
Rules and other relevant law and regulations
and professional qualifications in other
jurisdictions.
DEIMEEREH R R AR SN
EXER DEEBRANEAGER £
BSL & AT o A R E TNABE A B T EK
N ERER] A EERTEIANES.
S2meEd - E CEmRA) RIAEEE
MATREAREACAZEERNERE
o

The Company Secretary must take no

less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in each financial year. As such, a
transitional arrangement for such rule shall
be provided.
ARWEAEBEMBEE2MAPRE/)
FNAEEEE - T AERARRERER
B

Corporate Governance Practices
LEERER

The Board consists of a total of seven Directors, comprising four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Therefore, in the
Board composition, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
exceeds the minimum number required under the Listing Rules. The Company
also considers that there is a sufficiently independent element on the Board to
provide the Company and its shareholders with fair and independent advice.
EFeRtNESER REONATEERMBIFRTES Ft-
EFQERBUNTE S HARA FTRAZKERE -ARRRA
ESeRARMBUL ARRAAIRBRRRERTRBELZER -

Mr. Chiu Yu Kang is our Company Secretary. Mr. Chiu graduated with

a Master’s Degree in Economics and a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

BFEABEMORAAUE BEERERBEAE HHREIHERSE
TBEUREESELTEM RARTAREHMAGNERG ENE Bt
MREMEE-

Mr. Chiu joined the Company in October 2008. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Chiu worked in an international C.PA. firm. Mr. Chiu has over 11 years

of experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and company
secretarial practice. He is very familiar with the Listing Rules and the relevant
laws.
BEERZZENETAMARDE - EMAKRRF - BEEEBR—F
B estMERA BES 85t MKERRARNNEELEABET—
FEB U (ETRAD REBERTARE-

Mr. Chiu has taken no less than 15 hours of professional training on company
secretarial course in each financial year. He has sufficient knowledge in respect
of the duties of a company secretary and the relevant laws.
BEEEGEMBREE2MTOMSN R A RERENTEEN H2
AMENBENEBLOER AR
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Rule Ref.  Listing Rules Compliance  Corporate Governance Practices
2ZKH  EHRA By ERER
13.25A Exercise of the share options of the
issuer by the Directors of subsidiaries of
an issuer
RITAMBARNESTRBTANRGHE
Upon the exercise of the share options of N/A Well aware of his/her obligations under the Listing Rules to announce any
the issuer by a Director of subsidiaries, the NER information that is considered to be price-sensitive.
disclosure obligation only arises where the RORBER ETRAAREERR AN EREBEAMERTNEE-
event, either individually or when aggregated
with any other events, results in increase or Makes reference to the “Guide on Disclosure of Price-sensitive Information
decrease of 5% or more of the issuer’s share and Recent Economic Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed
capital in the last monthly return. Issuers” issued by the Stock Exchange in 2002 and 2008 respectively;
MERRAEETEETANRMHER R BTHIAR -2 _ERMNREGREHBRRESI RN ST N\EH
AEMEpSEREEEHAacHRERETA HRERAREERRERR FBETANRBEE L
BRAR E—10 A RFIELRE% A LRER
TREH A The Company had no event which resulted in an increase or decrease of 5%
or more of the issuer’s share capital in the last monthly return during the year.
ARAAFENLBEEHETARER E—H) ARFIZRME%HA LR Z -
13.51 Circulate information on change of
Directorship and disclose information
on Directors (including Chief Executive
Officer)
BRESASHDRERES
(BRTHAR)ER
(i) The issuer requires disclosure of N/A The Company has no Chief Executive Officer who is not acting as a Director.
remuneration of Chief Executive TER ARARY EFEEENTHES
Officer who is not acting as a
Director. The Board of the Company had timely disclosed on its website and Hong
i BOANERBRIEEESHORAR Kong Stock Exchange’s website that Mr. Huang Zhibin had resigned as Chief
HOH B - Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1 January 2012. Save as
above, there is no change in Director and supervisor.
(i) It requires disclosure of information v AREBUREFHER FMNBN D ENREES LR T — 25—
on the retirement or removal of a A—BREARARTHER B RUEMINIEESHEZNAZEE-
Director or supervisor.
i) AREREFREZREIREELN
Bhlo
(i) It requires disclosure of information v/ Mr. Huang submits his resignation due to fact that he needs to devote
on the appointment, resignation, more time to his personal matters. Mr. Huang had confirmed that he had
re-designation, retirement or removal no disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to his
of Chief Executive Officer. resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
(i)  ARETRERHRERE BE B Company or The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The duties of Chief
B REIBEENEH - Executive Officer will be undertaken by Mr. Lam Lung On, the Chairman of the
Company.
(iv) It requires disclosure of Director’s N/A BEREAREERSRAREAASHMRELER EEERREESEY
information on all civil judgments TEA ESAHE BESBEEBENENEARABRERESHARIMERA

of fraud, breach of duty, or other
misconduct involving dishonesty.

v AREAWERH BEREMLH
CHEEAENTETANREHR
BER o

AZEH MARRHNBEAARRIEREL SRR EST-

The Company is not aware of any Directors’s fraud, breach of duty, or other
misconduct involving dishonesty.

ARARAREERREMNEREENF BEREEXECARAGNTETR.
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Code

Ref.

Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice

2£38  FHKX By LEERER

Members of the Board Attendance

Ezgns HERY

Executive Directors

HTES

Lam Lung On (Chairman) 4/4

WER (/)

Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) 4/4

BEE (FLE)

Lin Longzhi 4/4

mEes

Lin Conghui 4/4

MR

Independent Non-executive Directors

BURUTES

Gu Jiande 4/4

ZRE

Lam Kwong Siu 4/4

MEK

Wee Henny Soon Chiang 4/4

ERR

Note:  The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone or through
other means of electronic communication or by their alternate Directors (if
applicable) in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Mis: REARAZRAA BSANURS BREFFIAMETBAH LR
% JHAREES (MER)RALE -

A1.2 All Directors are given an opportunity to v/ o All Directors were being consulted as to whether they may want to include any
include matters in the agenda for regular matter on the agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
board meetings. issued.

PRERRAHRERIBNSEINESE . HEEFETHERULIEN BANEEEREAERLEMNENER

EHEEAR- UNIUN-++ 2

A13 - At least 14 days notice for v/ o Regular Board meetings in a particular year are usually scheduled towards the

convening regular board meetings end of the immediately preceding year to give all Directors adequate time to
should be given. plan their schedules to attend the meetings.

- PHESSEHeRRELED . BEARCES SRR VAN —FFERIABETEE FE5ESE
IR A o FRERTHELEa®.

- Reasonable notice should be given v/ o At least 14 days formal notice was given before each regular meeting.

for other board meetings.
ARENESEERRELSER
o

RERBREREAANES TOREHIEAA-



Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Annual Report 2012

Corporate Governance Report

¥ &G W
84
Code
Ref.
Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice
2E38  FHKX By LEERER
A14 - Minutes of Board meetings and v/ o The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps
meetings of board committees records of the matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board and
should be kept by a duly appointed Board Committee meetings.
secretary of the meeting. . ARNERBFEESERABTZEeERERARRAGRLHE Ui
- BEAZENEENERBERES $E LERNEERERNRE
eREBETZEENEELH.
o The Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all Directors/
- Such minutes should be open for Board Committee members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
inspection at any reasonable time v/ after each Board and Board Committee meeting.
upon reasonable notice by any . BREFERABETR %@@%?ﬁ%ﬁ Féfiﬁ%ﬁﬁw (—BR+EER)E
Director. EFRRABTZEQER T/ RABREARZRES/HETZE8KE
- EEAMEFHLAERN EAR
FReRLREEEENE BN . The Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are available for
BRER - inspection by Directors/Board Committee members.
. ESg R ABETZEeeR T/ RERIHES/AETZE e BEMH-
A15 - Minutes of Board meetings and v/ o The minutes record sufficient details of the matters considered by the Board/
meetings of Board committees Board Committees thereunder and the decisions reached.
should record sufficient details of the . CROHHESE/EETREeME RN T HRERMATER MM
matters considered by the Board Eat> )
and the decisions reached.
- EZeRHBETZEeNSET: . Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board minutes.
FEHEeZ LR ESHEREERE J ESOReNESeeRIBURRERR
BERTE IR S AR sx -
o The final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a reasonable time
- After the Board meeting, the draft v/ after the Board meeting.
and final versions of Board minutes . EZeREARE N ERBAREEZL BN KR ERELRLA
should be sent within a reasonable
period of time for all Directors to
comment and to keep records within
a reasonable time after the Board
meeting.
= EZTC9RERE  BERAERENA
feke %uﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁn&ﬂ%%
B REE REEERE
R E%ZEM‘H’F%EﬁZ%
A1.6 - A procedure agreed by the board to v/ o Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange
enable Directors, upon reasonable independent professional advice, at Company’s expense, should such advice
request, to seek independent be considered necessary by any Director.
professional advice in appropriate . EECRRN AAMNEERAENESRBEUILER DANETRE
circumstances, at the company’s T BRMAAAT e
expense.
- EXeRABTEF RESRAE
Rk EEENBER T ERBLE
XER - BRARAX(.
- The board should resolve to provide v/

separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist the
relevant Director or Directors to
discharge his/their duties to the
company.
EZERARSIIRESREB Y
BEXER B EHESRETHY
ARMEE-
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Code
Ref.
Practices
2E38
A17

A1.8

A2

Code Provisions

F AR

- If a substantial shareholder or a
Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the
matter should be dealt with by a
board mesting (but not by a written
resolution).

- EEARRAEEHEESEHRTE
ENEBERFRESERREAN
FaER FH=ERNETESZS
22 HARE (MFEMAZE) -

= Independent Non-executive
Directors and his associates who
have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at
such board meeting.

- ERGHRGREBEAGRES
AFRNBUEHNTEEEALRE
ERmEZg g

Arrange appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
HEZARERHNERTHEEZHRR
ZHo

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
EERTHAR

Corporate Governance Principle

Compliance
By

v

Corporate Governance Practice
LEERER

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions so that
all Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) are aware of and
can comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval is granted.
EZEE-RUEARERSAEE UNERBES (AFBERTES)
ERZEREE UHARKER (WER)& FREZSE-

Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the
resolution, if applicable.

EZRRARRNEHFRBCEERHNE (HER) o

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and
regulations and, if appropriate, an independent Board committee will be set up
to deal with the matter.
EEARRAEZEEST R TERMNEEFTFEEZERAEANE
FR FAFESREEARNABRRIEE TEEEBER TRV ESS
ETBUZEgRE-

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and officers liability
insurance coverage for its Directors and officers since its listing in 2009.
ARRBZZENFEMES VEAZEERBERHEENESRBEE
ERR

There should be a clear diivision of responsibilities between the Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer of the Company to ensure a balance of

power and authority.
LEERRA

ARALEREETRAERANEFEERES HEREINRES 15 -
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Code

Ref.

Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice

2£38  FHKX By LEERER

A22 The Chairman should ensure that all v/ o With the assistance of the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary,
Directors are properly briefed on issues the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at board meetings. arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information on a
IRERRESSCE LEESEEAN timely basis.

BERIMEE- . E%ﬂﬁi%& AWERY T FRBNRRESG LS LHASSHEE
BEANMNZE TEBESREARTEMNER
o In addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of the Executive
Directors in 2012. Details of the attendance records of the meeting is as
follows:
. RE=gEHes/) E2eIREBVNTESA S —_FRURE
MHTEENERTROIER SRLRRABENT:
Members of the Board Attendance
Ezgns HERE
Executive Director
HTES
Lam Lung On (Chairman) 11
MEER (£/E)
Independent Non-Executive Director
BYFHTES
Gu Jiande 1/1
ZRE
L.am Kwong Siu 1/1
MBI
Wee Henny Soon Chiang 11
U
Note:  The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone or through
other means of electronic communication or by their alternate Directors (if
applicable) in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
Pt : $E< I% AERMA EFANURS EREFEIHMEFRALALRE
% NHAREES (MER)RALE-

A23 The Chairman should be responsible for v/ J The Board papers including supporting analysis and related background
ensuring that the Directors will receive information are normally sent to the Directors at least three days before Board
adequate information, which must be meetings.
complete and reliable, in a timely manner. . EZeeREOREEIMRERERER  —RREEBHATIR=X
TREAERRESREKIZIOER KRES-

MEREMMYATH %

o Communications between Independent Non-executive Directors on the one
hand, and the Company Secretary as coordinator for the other business units
of the Group on the other hand, is a dynamic and interactive process to ensure
that the queries raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt
with and further supporting information and/or documentation is provided if
appropriate.

. BUFMTESRASEREBHMN cHER BRANERA ERE
PREY BRREZHARMRERBE L EHEGOE TEREE—S
EEERR I XM (HEE)
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A24 - The role of the Chairman is to v/ o The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director, responsible for the
provide leadership for the Board. leadership and effective management of the Board.

- IRNAEREEERE . . EZQIRANTESHE RRAERBRERESE

- The Chairman should ensure that v/ o The Chairman sets the overall strategic direction of the Group after consulting
the Board works effectively and the Board and is responsible for the inspection of the management on the
discharges its responsibilities, and macro level.
that all key and appropriate issues . IREEAAES LRI ASERRRB AR CAENABEREEER
are discussed by the Board in a BRI
timely manner.

- IRERRESSAULEN B . The Board holds regular meetings and meetings were held in January, March,
TEERE U RKHABEEMNE August and December in 2012.

EEEETH R . Exerdfe N=Z——5-R =R NART-RBREg#E"

- The Chairman should be primarily v/ o With the assistance of executive Directors and the company secretary, the
responsible for the drawing up and Chairman ensures that all Directors are being informed of all important and
approving of agenda for each board applicable affairs in an appropriate and timely manner.
meeting taking into account, where . EHTESRARAWERY T ERBNBRABESDEE WER AR
appropriate, any matters proposed BEERERERE
by other Directors for inclusion into
the agenda. The Chairman may o The company secretary prepares the agenda of every board meeting and
delegate such responsibility to a ensure that all matters to be discussed have been listed on the agenda (if
designated Director or the company applicable) and all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
secretary. . AENEGHETERESEZTLLRAR URRALMEFRENEME

- IREIEEEEFIHARRE AEE (WER)EEIACEZRE URMEERBIRBOIEEST -
FEEENER EEEBERT &

BREPESREMESREMAZ
REEMEE TRAISEHEE TS
RETHESHARNWE -
A25 The chairman should be responsible to v/ o All Directors and the management of the Company strive to maintain good
ensure that good corporate governance corporate governance practices and procedures.

practices and procedures are established. . ARAZREZRERERNARRINCEERERARER-

TREFEARRARGERFNCEER

BRRER

A.2.6 The chairman should encourage all Directors v U For details please refer to A.2.4 and A.2.5 in Section Il above.

to make a full and active contribution to the . HEFLHALEXE IBZE A24 RA25F

Board'’s affairs and take the lead to ensure

that the Board acts in the best interests of

the issuer.

I%Eﬁiﬁbﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ&A%%A%F

WAFER BREFGTENE N AIRE

Flzao

A2.7 The Chairman should at least hold one v o In addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with

meeting annually with Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors), and without the
presence of Executive Directors.
ITREESBFEIENTES (REBUH
BAEE) BT ORBRTESHENE

Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of Executive
Directors in January 2012. All Independent Non-executive Directors were
present at the meeting.

. KREZETHERN EFCIREBUFATESR 2 ——F—AKY
EEMATERNERTRTER - FEBUFRTESERHLEARE

3
% °
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Ref.
Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice
2%38 FHKX By EERERER
A4.2 - All Directors appointed to fill a v/ o In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, newly appointed Directors
casual vacancy should be subject are required to offer themselves for re-election at the next following general
to election by shareholders at the meeting (in the case of filing a casual vacancy) or at the next following annual
first general meeting after their general mesting (in the case of an addition to the existing Board) following their
appointment. appointment.
- MERERBRERMEZENE J REARAERMBA MENECESHRERXZARN TRARRAE £
SEEERZACNEARRAE (MBEABRRZR) I TERRBFAG L (WBEAREEFERE)E
FEIRRER. EEf
- Every Director, including those v/ o The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of new Directors and

appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.
BEES (PRAETASNES)
EfWnRE EPB=F—KR-

Directors’ nomination for re-election by shareholders at the general meeting of
the Company. Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board may from time to
time appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board. Any such new Director shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filing a casual vacancy) or until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an
addition to the existing Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
same general meeting.

. ERE R RARZANESRREEENARAIRRAE LERREE B
BANRERMR ERCA RZAZENERBRERINTREES
eXE MEEEZEHZADATARRAG (NEBERGERER)RER
RAITERREFAE (MBEARFEEENE) BRI LABERRE—R
RAS FERE(HE-

o All Directors (including Non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and are subject to re-election in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Code on CG Practices.

J REARAERBUARCEERBRATUZRAT HAES (BEFRTE
2)EG=FRNER VAKEEE T

o The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to
time to ensure the Board has a balanced composition of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the Company. The
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors is assessed
according to the relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules.

. THENEZSNRE ABRAER BREZSHABRARAREBM
FRE R ALK - BUIFTESE N B IR E A RIAER 5
I R FRE M fE I AP AR o

J Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors makes an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the
terms of the guidelines.

J BBEUFHTEFERB LTRAZAERRERAT B 2 BFHE
RE-ARARBRABELIFNTESENS LT RRBEBLIRS 24
i WREZES X RBLAL
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Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice
2£38  FHKX By LEERER
A5.2 - The nomination committee should v/ o The Company has terms of reference for the nomination committee.

be established with specific terms of . ARRBEMIPARAZEERE -

reference which deal clearly with the

committee’s authority and duties. o The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and

- AREERIHIREZECAEN composition of the Board at lease once every year to ensure that it has a
BEEE SENPZENBEN balanced composition of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
Bffe of the businesses of the Company, identifying, screening and recommending
to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors, overseeing
- It should perform the following the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, assessing the
duties: independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
- BERAZECRBIUTEE: . REZEGEERF-RULENES G2 RE ABRAK BRESE
HABRSARAEBMBRARERIALTAR NE KERANESS

(@)  review the structure, size v KEHAKAZEESNEMAR EETCETSREMNER, TRBLE
and composition (including HAEEMB YL
the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on o The Board Committee members have been advised that the Company
a regular basis and make Secretary can arrange independent professional advice, at Company’s
recommendations to the expenses, should such advice be considered necessary by any Board
Board regarding any proposed Committee member.
changes; J EZeE T REQRER RN EANESEETZECZERRAUE

(B TEHRIEZSNRE AZ EXBUEEER RAREIRARE ERRARRRI-

RAK (BERE DHRE
BAE) Wt EmEREL
ZPnETSRLES:

(b)  identify individuals suitably v/ U Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board may from time to time appoint a
qualified to become board Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board.
members and select or The Company adopts a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
make recommendations to appointment of new Directors. Before a prospective Director's name is formally
the Board in the selection proposed, the opinions of the existing Directors (including the Independent
of, individuals nominated for Non-executive Directors) are sought. After considering the proposal for the
Directorships; appointment of a new Director, the Board as a whole will make the final

b)) YEEESEEARIEEES decision.

MALT UHRERBEBAL . REANAIERAL EXGAIREEESVARBRZRIEFNEE

HEESIGUtAESSRME FEHE ADANER BERAEZHEZBFEZENES - REART

BR: EZNBRSNABARAES (BRBUHATES) 2 ER EF8LZ
EZANEENERR SRR RIELRERTE

() assess the independence of v/
independent non-executive
Directors; and

(© FIRBUERTESNBY
1 &k

(d)  make recommendations to v o The Board as a whole is responsible for assessing the independence of the

the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for
Directors in particular the
chairman and chief executive
officer.

(4 HEZZEXENEEURE
S (LERERRITHER)
BEAENEHEENESS
RES -

Independent Non-executive Directors according to the relevant rules and
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

. EFe2REER EMABERENIRRER B LFRTES 2B UILE
HEHE - ARRRRMEB LN TESEN S LMARBRE LIRS 2
MIE  WIRRZIR S R BB IUA L
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Code
Ref.
Practices
2E38
A.6

A6.1

Code Provisions

SRR g3

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
EZEf

Corporate Governance Principle
Every Director is required to keep abreast of the responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the operation method, business activities and
development of the Company.
PEERRE

BEEERTREREERARTEENBE URELANEE T FHEHRER -

Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice
LEERER

- Every newly appointed Director v/ o The Company Secretary and key officers of the Company Secretarial
of the company should receive Department liaise closely with the newly appointed Directors immediately
a comprehensive, formal and before and after his/her appointment to get the newly appointed Directors
tailored-made induction on the first acquainted with the duties and responsibilities as a Director of the Company
occasion of his appointment, and and the business operations of the Company.
subsequently such briefing and . AFENAESEREERAARAAESNRERER URAREINERKE
professional development as is B RRARNERAFANENEFEABRTEEZEZ AR EEREREY
necessary. Ko

- BENZENESHRERNER
ZANESZE  EXREAEMR . A package compiled and reviewed by the Company’s legal advisers setting out
MEAER  HEMERGHRZNN such duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance
BREXRRE- and other related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong

Kong is provided to each newly appointed Director. A revised information
- To ensure that he has a proper v/ package comprising the latest developments in laws, rules and regulations

understanding of the operations

and business of the Company

and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities under statute

and common law, Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and o
other regulatory requirements and
the business and governance
policies of the company.
BREMHRRNEEREBEF
BENER URTR2HEAFEA

relating to the duties and responsibilities of Directors will be forwarded to

each Director from time to time for his/her information and ready reference.
Guidelines for Directors issued by the Companies Registry of Hong Kong and
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors have been forwarded to each Director for
his/her information and ready reference.
BUHEESHEE—NAARAAEREMTREMNNEEER 55 L
mRAl REGEE AR EMREDI R EEEHEE RO A ESH
BEREE-RESHTRERE—NETEN ULERETERESRE
REEZED BARRONSHER mBEBRAZMERESEZEE
Bz ES DR TEESUHLERME -

HRRERZE LHRA BRMEE . Memoranda are issued from time to time to keep Directors up to date with
HERAMEERTARRANE legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the
BREQBE THBE- discharge of their duties.

THELBCENBNESRINEZELAEEEY URAERESRT
HEAMFH-

Seminars are organised from time to time at which distinguished professionals
are invited to present to the Directors on subjects relating to Directors’ duties
and corporate governance, etc.
THBTHEETBFEMEEALIMESERERESRERCEERE
i ES=R
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Ref.
Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice
2£38  FHKX By LEERER
A6.4 - Directors must comply with the v/ o The Company had adopted the model code for securities transactions by
Model Code. Directors of listed issuers (‘Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
- EXVEBTEESH Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the Directors’ securities
transactions and was effective from 11 February 2009.

- The Board should establish written Explanation e ARBEEHM L TRAINSET BB ETRTAESETBELRRSNTETA
quidelines on no less exacting terms i3 (MEEFA]) ERARRESEERF CIRETA £EHABMA-TTN
than the Model Code for relevant FZA+—H-
employees.

_ Ere N EREHESRTEMAE . Confirmation has been received from all the Directors that they have complied
S| AR BRI E with the required standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
£o December 2012.

. MEESERR RNEZ2-Z—-FT-A=+t-RILFERN —E&TE
ESFRIBFE °
o Written guidelines on securities transactions for employees was issued to
relevant employees.
. FRESEERE S EARIBEERTIHENES -
A.6.5 All Directors should participate in a v/ o The Company regularly reminds all Directors of their functions and

programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to help ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company should
be responsible for arranging and funding a
suitable development programme.
MEESR2ARES S ERHNE BRY
BEHHMBREY ABRREEETAE
2EEARIEAENERA THES 2L
B AREAERHSENERTEILR
HEBLE-

responsibilities. Through regular Board meetings and the circulation of written
resolutions, memoranda and board papers, each of the Directors is being
kept abreast of the objectives, business activities and development of the
Company.

ARRERENRESHRABERET ERESECHEA RGN E
ARZER BRaREZER SEFBUEBADAZEEHH £BE
PRER-

A package compiled and reviewed by the Company’s legal advisers setting
out the duties and responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules,
Companies Ordinance and other related ordinances and relevant regulatory
requirements of Hong Kong is provided to each newly appointed Director. A
revised information package comprising the latest developments in laws, rules
and regulations relating to the duties and responsibilities of Directors will be
forwarded to each Director from time to time for his/her information and ready
reference. Guidelines for Directors issued by the Companies Registry of Hong
Kong and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors have been forwarded to each
Director for his/her information and ready reference.
BUNESEHEE - HNBARAZRERTREROEEEH 55
mRA ARGEH AREMEEENIREEEBEERIIFMIA L ESHE
BREME-REBESHTRERE—HETEN ULZREXEHESRE
REEZED BARRONSNER HBEBRAZMEREEESZEE
B ESRIBRATRESUHLZRHE -

Memoranda are issued from time to time to keep Directors up to date with
legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the
discharge of their duties.
TEBELESSFNBNESSNNERRAERE WA EHESET
HEAMEH

Seminars are organised from time to time at which distinguished professionals
are invited to present to the Directors on subjects relating to Directors’ duties
and corporate governance, etc.
THBTHEETHFENEEA AT MESEREAESRERCEERE
EEESER

The Directors have provided to the Company their records of continuous

professional development during the year 2012.

EZERAARAREN T —FRIFBIEEI 2R
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Compliance
By

Corporate Governance Practice

EEERER

o The Directors” knowledge and skills are continuously developed and refreshed
by, inter alia, the following means:

. BB (HTeRE) 2RI EIATEIARRYEHESE 2 MB R

(1)

©)

Reading memoranda issued or materials provided (for example,
in-house directors’ seminar) from time to time by the Company to
Directors, and as applicable, briefings and reports by the Company
Secretary, as regards legal and regulatory changes and matters of
relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties with the
latest developments in public consultations, laws, rules and regulations
relating to the duties and responsibilities of directors and corporate
governance;

MEARANRRETES 2 BRHNER (DRARAFENR 2 E
ERE) R (IER) A ARWEEL 2 G RRE  RRBRERR
RERY URESRTAREZERSE BERAREAZRTE
BREMESBE AR ROIRERRCEXEREE:

Participation in continuous professional training seminars/conferences/
courses/workshops on subjects relating to directors’ duties and
corporate governance, etc. organised by the Company and/or
professional bodies and/or government authorities; and
2MBARAR/FEEERR/IRRERBEHESRER
TEERTEERE HESEEEE g R /g
&

Reading news/journal/magazine/other reading materials as regards
legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the Directors
in the discharge of their duties.

MERMAERRERE URANAHESRTEEANAEE
ZHE /BT AR A o

o Records of the Directors’ training during 2012 are as follows:

J BER T _FRARXEIZTEMT

Members of the Board

EZgRE

Training received

53 a 1]

Executive Director

HITES

LAM Lung On (Chairman) (1), @ &(@)

HWEZ (Z)

KWOK Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) (1), @ &(@)
DBER (FZE)

LIN Longzhi

MR

LIN Conghui

iR

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

GU Jiande

EEE

WEE Henny Soon Chiang (1), @ &(@)

BfER

LAM Kwong Siu

MEK
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A.6.6

A6.7

A6.8

A7

Code Provisions
FAIRI

- Each Director should disclose
to the issuer at the time of his
appointment, and on a periodic
basis, the number and nature of
offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant
commitments, and thereafter should
disclose timely for any change
thereof, if any. The Board should
determine for itself how frequently
such disclosure should be made.

- BRESRREXZERAETA
RE (TREEEHRE) AR AR
RRRARECBANEE RIEE
NREMBRAE B EREME
PERERE - SFQRBTRAEMR
B%AMEL — IR

Non-executive Directors, rank pari passu
to other Board members, should give the
Board and any committees on which they
serve such as the audit, remuneration or
nomination committees the benefit of their
skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. They should also attend
general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.
FHTEREREAMESRARF A
EXgKE ETHLREZERARKL
EZEeKENEEE (fINEREES.
FHMEEGFRARER)NERLBES
HEK NERME FXMBRTANER
REREHER - FRTESLRHERR
g HARKRRMERAAERNER

Non-executive Directors should make a
positive contribution to the development of
the Company'’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed
comments.
FRTESRBBREB Y ERRURE
REMNE R E BT ARIERE RERELE
EE RS-

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO
INFORMATION
ERRERER

Corporate Governance Principle

Compliance
By

v

Corporate Governance Practice
LEERER

The Directors, when accepted the appointments, have disclosed (and
thereafter will disclose from time to time) to the Company about the number
of positions held in public companies or organisations and its nature, and
other major appointments, together with names of such public companies or
organisations.

EZNEXZERERARARE (LRERRRE) AR AR A FRA
RECBUNSE REE URAMEREE TREZSZARAARAL

PELE

There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee
meetings, the meeting between Chairman and Independent Non-executive
Directors and the general meeting during the year. Please refer to A.1.1, A.2.2,
B.1.1, C.3.1 and E.1.2 of Section Il above for details of attendance records.
FREESEES ESCETRE08R TREBUFNTESERAR
BRERBZHREHLANE ABLBRE LA BF2H L XEIH 2R
A1.1-A22-B1.1-C31KE1218-

The extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both
quantitatively and qualitatively.

2REBRIEHERNEERNKEREEBMAEENE

There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee
meetings, the meeting between Chairman and Independent Non-executive
Directors and the general meeting during the year. Please refer to A.1.1, A.2.2,
B.1.1, C.3.1 and E.1.2 of Section Il above for details of attendance records.
FAREFLES EFETRE0ES TREBUFATESEER
RRAGZHFERHTARE BRERCEZHEF2H LXE IR 2E
A11-A22-B11-C31KkE1.218°

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
agecision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

PEEEFA

EFREHERIBENEN AVARZERREFLHELEFHENDEN TIEHRE W BTRIERAAFEFNBEREE -
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Code
Ref.
Practices
2£54
B.

B.1

Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice
TR By LEERER

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRERERASHEM

THE LEVEL AND COMPOSITION OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCLOSURE
FMREEHKERAR

Corporate Governance Principle
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for
all Directors.

PEELRA

BXBIERMEZRENET U EBHTEENEHRERETEEENFTHFE

Establish a remuneration committee v/ o In accordance with the Code on CG Practices, the Company has set up a
with specific written terms of reference remuneration committee (‘Remuneration Committee”) with a majority of the
comprising @ majority of Independent members being Independent Non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors. J RECEERERTA RAREKLABAKE RBULFRITES 5
ERIABRERNEESEENTMES zEg ([§Mz8el)-

& FMZEMAT DK ERARBE LI

TEZ- o The Company established its Remuneration Committee on 9 October 2009.

J AREAER_FRNFLANAKUFHEES -

o The Remuneration Committee comprises the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
L.am Lung On, and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Gu
Jiande (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Wee Henny Soon
Chiang.

J FMERENEORESSERMERRE URMLBFHTESER
Brk (FHEEeFR) RERREE.

o Since the publication of the Company’s 2011 annual report in April 2012, a
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held in December 2012. Details
of the attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

J B2 —HNANEARA_E——55RE FHEEeN_2——F
TZRERgR -FHMEEEZE L MBERFENT

Members of the Remuneration

Committee Attendance
FMEEEZE HERE
Gu Jiande (Chairman) 1/1
ZRE(FF)

Lam Lung On 11
WER

Wee Henny Soon Chiang 1/1
L

Note:  The members of the Remuneration Committee may attend meetings in
person, by telephone or through other means of electronic communication
or by their alternates (if applicable) in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

fist: REARFEERAN FHZESZEANRSY ERSFXAMETR
AAXHESR HEEBEA (WER)RALRE-
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Code

Ref.

Practices  Code Provisions

2E38  FHKX

B.1.5 The Company should disclose details of any
remuneration payable to members of the
senior management by band in the annual
reports.
AREEHFERE R NREGERR
EBABNME WIHEBESRERAR

iof<Zap

c. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
MR

C.1 FINANCIAL REPORTING
MHER

Corporate Governance Principle

Compliance
By
E

Corporate Governance Practice

EERERER

o The overall remuneration payable to senior management represents only a
small portion of the turnover or profits of the Company. As a matter of practice,
disclosing details of the remuneration payable to senior management on
an individual basis does not bring any significant benefits or provide useful
information to the shareholders.

. BREBASHBRFMAANR 2 2 XBIENM = RIEENLH 5K
REANSREBASHMURRM L EEAGH BREEER-

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Company's performance, position and prospects.

PEEERA

EFRETE BMREZENTEELANZE BEARAIR -

C.1.1 - The management should provide
sufficient explanation and
information to the Board that will
enable the board to make an
informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the
board for approval.

- EREERNEZERERHINFE
RRANER BEZEARER
R REE BT R E AR (e
BRIBH RS-

C.1.2 - The management shall supply the
updated information to members of
the Board on a monthly basis, giving
a balanced and understandable
assessment regarding the
performance, financial position and
prospect of an issuer, which shall
be sufficient to allow the Directors
to fulfill the duties as required under
Rule 3.08 and Chapter Xl of the
Main Board.

= EREESARNESENERHETE
MER HIFABRITAER B
MR RAIRE D ER SRR
AR RABRESZREIT (ERA
H) E3.08ERET=FFMFER

=

v

o Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities
and key financial information on a monthly basis.
. BB ANEREASE I EEBEDNBREENABER

o Monthly updates had been provided to all members of the Board since April
2012, the effective date of code provision C.1.2, for the purpose of providing
a balance and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail and to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

. BREERTAUECI2RR S ——FNALNE ESZQMEKEDER
HEREMEMN FRAINEALARR WHERRRARNAERFIRE
B RABESERREERITARE
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C.2.2

Code Provisions Compliance
TR By

The Board’s annual review should, in v/
particular, consider the adequacy of

resources, qualifications and experience

of staff of the Company’s accounting and

financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and respective budget.
EXeEFETRARK BEAZERAE

S RMBERRETENER BTERE
RESHET RS ARETAEX MR
BREHRERARR

C3 Audit Committee
ENZEY

Corporate Governance Principle

Corporate Governance Practice

EERERER

o The Board, through the Audit Committee and with the appraisal performed
by the Internal Audit Department, reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget at the
Board meeting held in December 2012 and noted that the Company has been
in compliance with the Code Provisions for the year 2012. Please also refer to
the Code Provisions C.3.3 of Section .

J ERONERZ G NRANENBHEZTE ERZ2—Z4T-A%
TEFEER IAARAAGH RUBERBL I ENER B8TEER
BRRDRA UREBIMERMEIRERERRERARRETRA -
YERZZ-——FETEHETAUR F2HEIPECIIE-

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal control principles
and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company's auditors.

LEERRA

EZE RIS HERRAF SRR AT EAL a B B R B ER R AZERRL S o

C.3.1 - Full minutes of audit committee v/

meetings should be kept by a duly

appointed secretary of the meeting.

- BERZEENTEGRLHEALE
ARENEZUERT

- Draft and final versions of minutes v/
of the audit committee meetings
should be sent to all members of the
committee for their comment and
records respectively, in both cases
within a reasonable time after the
meeting.

- R b R GILIL NS
EREEEEE —RAEREAL
BRXERZEER2ENKE Mk
KEFREER RRTEREEREZ
=B

o Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to the members of
the Audit Committee within a reasonable time after each meeting.
. SHLHFAAAWERE NERSER RABRENERGSERES

28%8-

o Audit Committee meetings were held in March, August and December 2012.
Details of the attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are
as follows:

. ERZEBER-T—-F=A NART-ABREH EREEECZEEY
HEEFENT

Members of the

Audit Committee Attendance

ENZEBZE HERE

Wee Henny Soon Chiang (Chairman) 3/3

EXCEAES )

Gu Jiande 2/3

ZEE

Lam Kwong Siu 2/3

MEJ

Note:  The members of the Audit Committee may attend meetings in person, by

telephone or through other means of electronic communication or by their
alternates (if applicable) in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Miz: BEARAZRAN BERZEEZEUNRY ARTAIEMETR
AARHREE S FRABEA (PER) R ARE-
o The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2012:

. ERZEEN -2 —EMTEBMRNT

0 Review of 2012 interim and 2011 annual results;
() BH-Z-—FHhHEA-_T-—FFFXE:
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2Z38 AKX

Corporate Governance Practice
LEERER

2 Review of the findings and recommendations of the Group Internal
Audit Department on the work of various divisions/departments and
related companies;

@ EHSENSEAPRIEBSBFARMEALALENFRERR
B

3) Review of the effectiveness of the internal control system;

B  BERSEEARMNNE:

@) Review of the external auditor’s audit findings;

@  ERNERBEMNEGER

5) Review of the auditor’s remuneration;

()  ERGEEMHE

©6) Review of the risks of different business units and the analysis thereof
provided by the relevant business units; and

6 BHEIAREBHMIzERREEXHDARERRMRR O
X

7 Review of the control mechanisms for such risks and advising on
action plans for improvement of the situations.

(N BHZERBREERS YARSEARRR LT BIRERS -

After due and careful consideration of reports from management and the
internal/external auditors, the Audit Committee was of the view that no
suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found, and
concluded at the meeting held on 27 March 2013 that the system of internal
controls was adequate and effective.
ERZEGHFARBEERERERNN SNERHMRRAME R  RA
WRERSRFERIER RENABERTRRSRERED AAHA
BMER YR=F-=F=A-TtARTNEE LIEL R BERHE
ERZBR AR

On 27 March 2013, the Audit Committee met to review the Group’s 2012
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external
auditor. After review and discussions with the management and external
auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by
the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability assured
itself that the disclosure of the financial information in the 2012 Annual Report
complied with the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee therefore recommended the Board'’s
approval of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

RZZ-=F=A-1++H BRZECRTEE BRNERHMEHA
SE-Z-_EENERMBRE BEEERANEHRIIREREL.
REHERHERREERERINERHD I RE FRZEQERARH
FRANEHEELN YRR NRR-Z—_FFRBEBNYBEENFS
ERMETERR ETRAMET A AE Rt EREECRZESE
WEBABZE-T——H+-A=T—-HLFENGAHBEE-
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Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice

2£38  FHKX By LEERER

C.3.5 Where the board disagrees with the audit N/A . The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to
committee’s view regarding the selection, TERA shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, Ernst &
appointment, resignation or dismissal of Young be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for 2013.
the external auditors, the Company should . ERZBENESS RS EFEARKSHMEEMEERARZS—=
include in the Corporate Governance Report FEMMNEZEA  EECRERNBETHRREAFEAES LBUE  HAE
a statement from the audit committee E-
explaining its recommendation and also the
reason(s) why the board has taken a different o For the year ended 31 December 2012, the external auditor of the Company
view. received approximately RMB2.5 million for annual audit services and
NEZSTREERZBCHEE T approximately RMB1.682 million for other non-audit services rendered.
BHESBRNERHAEENER RAlE . REZEZT——F+ZA=T—RIEFE  FARANEZSEMEREEZ R
ECEERRETIHERZEGMN AR B R ARK2,500,00070 R R4 Kt 25 AR 7S < B A4 AR 1,682,000
HIRE UREEEHTRAERORA- e

C.3.6 The audit committee should be provided v/ o The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary can
with sufficient resources to discharge its arrange independent professional advice, at Company’s expenses, should the
duties. seeking of such advice be considered necessary by the Audit Committee.
BRZEGRERGRRERABTAR J BEREZEGEERN AENEECRRBLESBUSEER NAW
Bo EURARH ERBARAR.

C.3.7 The terms of reference of the audit o The Company has established a mailbox for anti-fraudulent issues, in which
committee should also require the audit it contains the mechanism for employees to raise any questions they may
committee: have to address to the internal audit department for any necessary action
ERZESNBREGENEDSE: (whether these are related to their career development or any other grievances

and complaints they may have). The Company considers such mechanism
= to review the arrangements by which v/ to be sufficient to ensure that there is a channel for employees to have direct
employees of the Company may, in communication with the management of the Company.
confidence, raise concerns about . ARAIRERELBE  ET8E 8 T ERRATEHREEREE (R
possible improper acts in financial AeREE TEXERRAMTRREFER) ARELAETEIMMH -
reporting, internal control or other ARAIRALBHENBRREIARAAZ EBRERERER-
matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are o The audit committee of the Company acts as the key representative for
in place for the fair and independent overseeing the Company’s relationship with external auditors.
investigation of such matters and for . AREMBHZESEAARENNEREM ENEIERR ARER S
appropriate follow-up action; and ZRRERE.
- RERRRENA TR ARESR
AR R T IEIR - R B
FEAEEENTEETRARNE
o BRZECRRREEE T
FLRHEEERELATEN
HERFRELETE: Rk
- to act as the key representative v/

for overseeing the company’s
relationship with external auditors.

= RERRENERHAM 2 BHEE
RE BEER-_ZZHNEE.
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2E38  FHKX By LEERER
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
ESgRINER
D.1.1 When the Board delegates the aspects of its v/ o Executive Directors are in charge of different businesses and functional
management and administration functions to divisions in accordance with their respective areas of expertise.
the management, it must at the same time . HATEEREHERARTRAMER KRB
give clear directions as to the powers of the
management, in particular, with respect to U Please refer to the Management Structure Chart set out on page 129.
the circumstances where the management . FLHNENFE120B 2 EERER
should report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or o For matters or transactions of a material nature, the same will be referred to
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Board for approval.
the Company,. . —MMEERZFHEARHHIRAES SR
EEZONATERITRY A ANENE
RTEEER VEARRREEEMNES . For matters or transactions of material nature that requires disclosure under
BTEWNES  BRRENERR TER the Listing Rules or other applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure
ERERNESSERURERRRAFELER will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’
SRR LA IERSESEIAES approval will be obtained in accordance with the requirements of the applicable
EHAE: rules and regulations.
J REEmRASEMBRNBALROIMETRE SEZSHARS 198
EHEE 2 RE UTRBERREBER 2RB RO 2 Zk - FIEEmE KRR
FRRR 2B -
D.1.2 Formalise functions reserved to the board v/ o The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the Group’s future
and those delegated to management and development directions; overall strategies and policies; evaluation of the
to review those arrangements on a periodic performance of the Group and the management; and approval of matters that
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate are of a material or substantial nature.
to the needs of the company. . EEIFEET EECREASERKREERR BRRKERECR WA
RARERBLRE FTES AR R LE SERERENRR ARBEEAREEFE-
R ERENRAE D BT TR W HfE
RANEREBLHERARAANEE - . Under the leadership of the Group Chief Executive Officer, management is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.
J EEETHAEFAT ERERRSENEREE-
D.1.3 The Company should disclose the division v/ o Please refer to the Management Structure Chart set out on page 129.
of responsibility between the Board and the . FLMY BN FE120B8 2 EEEERE -
management to assist those affected by
corporate decisions to better understand the
respective accountabilities and contributions
of the Board and management.
RREREEZSHERE L HNBED
T UBHBLRCERRY EEE RS
ZeHERESBNMEARBERELE
D.1.4 Directors should clearly understand the v/ o It is not the Company’s practice to have formal letters of appointment for its

delegation arrangements that are already in
place. To this end, the Company should have
formal letters of appointment for Directors
setting out the key terms and conditions of
their relevant appointment.
ESREEERMTENRNERER R
I AREEERNESFZAE FHER
ZENEEGRR G-

Directors. Nevertheless, the Directors clearly understand their duties to the
Company, to which they are collectively and individually responsible for. In
addition, section of these duties that are related to fiduciary duties, duties of
skill, care and diligence established under common law are over a long period
of time, and it is not feasible to attempt to formulate these comprehensively in
writing. To have a formal letter of appointment may also lead to inflexibility.

. MARREERHEXZAE WAL A ER HEZERBRRESLR
RIERIEARREITZBE Lo AR B BERANRBER L BEM
Al R BRARENTERE BRERANEANAZANEE
B T AEEAZAENARRBEE L
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Code
Ref.
Practices
2£34
D.3.1

D.3.2

E.1

Code Provisions
FAIRI

The terms of reference of the board (or a
committee or committees performing this
function) should include at least:

Bxe (FBRTLBENEZES)NBES
EEBE:

(@) to develop and review an
issuer’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;

@  HERBEAARNCEERRRR
R URESERIES:

(o) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional
development of directors and senior
management;

(b) R REREERRRERAEN
B EEERR:

() to review and monitor the
issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

© BAREERAEETEEREE
REFEMBRRER:

(d) to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

@  HE R RERESRESNERT
LA RafFM(0F) K

() to review the issuer’s compliance
with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

© RERAEFEEERTAUNER
RECEERRENMHKE -

The board should be responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties
set out in the terms of reference in D.3.1

or it may delegate the responsibility to a
committee or committees.
EFQREERIDIIERESEAHN
CEERBE TUSEERERT A%
EZEg-

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

BRRNEE

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION
RAEE

Cormporate Governance Principle

Compliance
By
v/

Corporate Governance Practice
LEERER

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were effected from 9 October
2008 to include the following corporate governance functions delegated by the
Board:

ERZE e BEGEE RN _ST\FTANBAN RERESSERN
TZREERBA:

1. Develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

1. HERRAARRZAEERBRRRER LAEFSREES

2. Review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

2. RIAREREERSAEBEARZEIRFESERR:

3! Review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
3. R RERANREBTEEREERELHRRER

4, Develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and
4, HE BRI REREEREFCRTEARAAFM (0F) : K

5. Review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.
5. BERDAIETOEERTAUAZERARCEE RREMELRE -

At the Audit Committee’s meeting held in March 2013, members of the Audit
Committee had performed the above-mentioned corporate governance
functions by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance as well as legal and regulatory compliance.

RIB-ZF=ABI7ERZECEHE BREEENEEEHEARRZ
CRERRETAEREERTLBRRER UET LG RERRAE-

The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee. To that effect, the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee as set out in D.3.1 above were effected from
8 October 2008 to include the corporate governance functions delegated by
the Board.

EZ e ERAEERRE RTRETERZEE SR EXEDI1EL
BERZE e BESECR ST /\FTANBAN RERESSEERY
BEERBE -

The Board should be responsible to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage their participation.

PEERFA

EFRERRARTRERAFHE L EERRFEAFACKEM L REZLRTBARZ AN E A -
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Code

Ref.

Practices  Code Provisions Compliance  Corporate Governance Practice

2E38  FHKX By LEERER

ERIS] In respect of each substantially separate v/ o Separate resolutions are proposed at the general mestings of the Company on
issue at a general meeting, a separate each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.
resolution should be proposed by the . BHEERBIMNZE HELADARRAS LUAENRZRER BIERE
chairman of that meeting. Putting different fEplES-
issues into one resolution should be avoided.
ERRAE L @RFEEREREREY
MEEERIRIRAER BB EMERE
£

E.1.2 = The chairman of the board should v J In 2012, the Chairman of the Board chaired the 2012 annual general meeting

attend the annual general meeting
and arrange for the chairmen of the
audit, remuneration and nomination
committees (as appropriate) or in
the absence of the chairman of such
committees, another member of the
committee to be available to answer
questions at the annual general
meeting.
EZIRRLRRRBEAS I
THERZES HIZEERRE
ZEg (RAEERAME)NER
FEZEZEENERAERES
—ZZEEREBFAE LRER
B

and was available to answer questions. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee attended the 2012 annual

general meeting and was available to answer questions.

. WIT——5 BESCIREA_T—FREBFALERE TRELEE
- ERRERIRNFHWEE@IRCHE_S —FRREF S

WG EEZ LR -

o Details of Directors’ attendance records of the 2012 annual general meeting

are as follows:

. BEN T —FZRRBAFASHFERFENT:

Members of the Board Attendance
ESgHE HERE
Executive Director

HITES

LAM Lung On (Chairman of the Board) 1/1
MER(EFETE)

KWOK Ying Lan 11
BEE

LIN Longzhi 0N
Mg

LIN Conghui 0/1
MR

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

GU Jiande 11
ZpE

WEE Henny Soon Chiang 11
HRR

LAM Kwong Siu 11
MEK

In 2012, the Company’s external auditor attended the annual general meeting
and was available to answer questions.

REB-——F ARTVIECEHERERRBFAE TAING LHZRMA-
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Code
Ref.
Practices

$Z38

E13

E1.4

Code Provisions

TR

- The chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions
at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval.

- EFRETNBUZES (INE)M
FRMEEEAR AT ZNK
RAE LIRS BEERH T
A RSB R AR 5

The Company should arrange the notice

to shareholders to be sent, in the case of
annual general meeting, at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and to be
sent at least 10 clear business days in the
case of all other general meetings.
MERRRAFAE RNARENSBITA
FORTHAEEXARMRREABA Mt
FEAMKRRAGM S RIBERSBITA
ELRTHEEFBERBA-

The board should establish a communication
policy and review it regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.
ESRHITRIBABR, W 5E BT
HRER A

Compliance

gy
v/

Corporate Governance Practice
LEERER

The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders
and investors, including () printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, notices of
mestings, circulars and proxy forms) required under the Listing Rules, and
shareholders can choose (or are deemed to have consented) to receive such
documents using electronic means through the Company’s website; (i) the
annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; (i) updated and key information on the
Group is available on the website of the Company; (iv) the Company’s website
offers a communication channel between the Company and its shareholders
and stakeholders; (v) regular press conferences and briefing meetings with
analysts are arranged from time to time to update interested parties on

the performance of the Group; (vi) the Company’s Branch Share Registrar
deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters; and (vi)

the Corporate Affairs Department of the Company handles enquiries from
shareholders, and investors generally.
ARAERRRREEZUARNBARE : (R LETRART FEAR
B (ERaRETRNER PHRE 3RS BARRREZARR)
ENRIZR - IRR A& (SRR AR R E) AEF AR A AR I Z
S (IRRARRREFAG LERESRBEEHRER (A RARH
HHEREZ S REZEM: (VAR A RRE kiR AREEADF
BRZAL WARRTKBRNBENRE RRESMEMHERNERAL
REAEERIZEEH: ARAZRAEEARAREEE—IRAHZE
EREBEER: R VRARCESBEBRERRIREE 2 —REA-

The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2013 annual general meeting of
the Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.
ARARBE-E-=FBIRRBEAGRETHZIR-TEZEAMR
REREZEEBA -

The Investors Relationship Department of the Company sets up the
shareholders communication policy, for details please refer to E.1.2 of Section
Il 'above.
ARANREEBRDRERRBALR, FEFLH LXEIBZEE2
Eo
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Code
Ref.

Practices  Code Provisions

$Z38 AKX

F1.4

All Directors should have access to the
advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that the
Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.
MEESRIRGARNENERANZRAM
MR% BENRATRREZSRFRAE
ERRIRRGIEEEST

Shareholder’s Rights
RRER

The issuer should disclose the information of the following
shareholders’ rights:
BIANARE TR ERN 82 .

(@)

the way for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting;
RRBAERRERIAGH LA

the procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings, together with sufficient contact
details; and

ERRAGRLZZNEF (ERFTHEKE
’) Rk

the procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the board, together with sufficient contact details.
MEZERHBANET (ERTROBEE
B

Investor Relations

REEBHE

The issuer must disclose any significant
changes of articles of association during the
year in its corporate governance report
EOAREHCRE RRENREFAEA
BERNANENERES-

Compliance
By
v/

N/A
TER

Corporate Governance Practice

LEERER

o Directors have access to the Company Secretary and key officers of the
Company Secretarial Department who are accountable to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
being followed.

J RRMERAANEDEEASHERASEREEZR TRAAEFEEEI
BRESRERFRAEERRARAGILEET.

o Memoranda are issued to the Directors from time to time to update them with
legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the
discharge of their duties.

. TRBHESENBNESSHNERRAELD IRANEHESET
HEANEH-

o In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, any shareholder
holding more than one-tenth of the shares shall have the right, by written
notice to the Secretary or the Board of the Company (the contact information
of the Company is published at the website), to require the Board to convene
a general meeting for the respective topics, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the submission of such requisition.

. RERRAERAA EAHETHZ—ALRAORE JUEAF B
MARRELEZE (BUERHAANBEEN) EREZQHERER
BRARERAIAG ZeRUAERRBFEMEARNRT.

o The investor relations section at the website of the Company has installed a
tool for shareholders to send enquiries and shareholders can enquire any time.

J KARPUANREEBEDORBRRAADAEANTE - RER T BERHR
HEH-

There is no significant change of articles of association of the Company during the year
0f 2012 and 2013.
- CENZE-ZERNARANARERREHRENEAES -
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE CHART
BHRM

Nomination committee
REZE®
Gu Jiande (Chairman) &= (/&)
Lam Lung On #EEZ
Wee Henny Soon Chiang = 1& 32

Remuneration committee
HWEES
Gu Jiande (Chairman) &2 (E£/%)

Board %f Dgectors
= Lam Lung On #gE%

(=]
Executive Directors:

HTEE Wee Henny Soon Chiang = & 3%

Lam Lung On #MEEZ
Kwok Ying Lan 3B

Lin Longzhi MBEEs Audit committee
Lin Conghui #ER#E EREEE
Wee Henny Soon Chiang (Chairman) & 1&38 (/E)

Independent Non-executive Directors: Gu Jiande ==

BYEYTES : Lam Kwong Siu 7 EJk

Gu Jiande ZiEfE

LLam Kwong Siu #REJK
Wee Henny Soon Chiang = 1&38
Audit Department
Ear

Corporate Office
EEBLAE
President Office
Group Chief Executive Officer Rk g
EEHTEE Legal Department

Lam Lung On ##E= AR
Investor Relations Department
REEBERD
Investment Affairs Department
BEEHE
Human Resources & Administration Department
ANATHED
Information Management Technology Department
EREEE

Design Cost Purchase Project Marketing Planning Business

Management Control Affairs Management Affairs and Finance Operation Legal Ag?'gﬁ:fgﬁn Other
Department Department Department Department Department Department Department Department pf_ % Departments
et [B%N RiE A =] =t EES TETEED MQH HAbEBPT
EIRED PR =5E EIRED 378 B 755D EEE i
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2012 marked the forth year of the Company’s listing in Hong Kong.
Since its listing, the Company has gradually formed a scientific and
systematic management mechanism for investor relations after
plenty of exploration and practice, which serves as a bridge for
effective communication between the Company and the capital
market. The Company has always attached great importance
to investor relations. Adhering to the disclosure principles of
openness, fairness, transparency and multi-channel, the Company
discloses its financial and operation information to the capital
market timely. It also listens attentively to various suggestions and
proposals from the capital market with regards to the Company’s
management and operation in a proactive, sincere and humble
manner so as to improve the Company’s management quality,
enhance shareholders’ value and maximize their interests.

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE

2012

Price per share of the Company (HK$)
RRAEIGRRE CBE)

Share Price Performance in 2012
From 3 January 2012 to 31 December 2012

180%
160%
140%
120%
100%

80%

60%

=== The Company
RN

“E-CF ARAETAEBTB LTHEN
Fo DB LM AN RRBMIREEBIERIIEL
BTHZNRRNER  ZLKTHE 24
MREEBEREERS RARRMEATS
ZEERETRMNERBR ARA—ESE
ERREEREIE ERAMA 2F &5
ZRENBFEERA MEATESLREREARF
HY BA S AN AR - B TR - AR SRR YRR
EREEATSHARKEEE LNERME
& THEEARRMEEERKE GBRE
TR REBEMERBEROFSEZAL-

ik {8 % 3l

Highest Lowest Closing
Be BIE Y
2.25 1.21 2.25

—E-—FRERR

—E-—H—-HF=RHZE
—E——_H+Z-HA=+-—H

Hang Seng Index
BAEY
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As of 31 December 2012, the total number of shares outstanding
of the Company was 2.88 billion with market price of HK$2.25
each. Based on the closing price as of 31 December 2012, the
Company’s market capitalisation was approximately HK$6.48
billion.

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Company attaches great importance to the shareholders’
views on its dividend policy. The Company determines its dividend
policy with reference to the Company’s financial status, long-term
development needs and potential investment opportunities. The
dividend payout ratio of 2012 is about 34%.

DEPLOYING INTERACTIVE MULTI-
CHANNELLED COMMUNICATION TO
REALIZE EFFECTIVE INVESTOR RELATIONS

Enhancing investor relations management system

The Company has been committed to establishing a scientific and
systematic management system of investor relations. In 2012, the
Company further defined and improved the procedures of major
investor relations practices, including results announcement, non-
deal road shows, disclosure of material information, etc. In 2012,
the Company also further upgraded the investor database with
the support of its established investor relations management
platform, thus standardizing and systematizing the major work on
investor relations, including investor meeting scheduling, investor
information’s collection and classification as well as investor
shareholding analysis.

RZE——ZF+ZA=+—H AR2FBRKRK
R28.81EN BTG EREE225TT - AZF
——F+Z A=+ —HBMNKHENE  AREH
T{EX AE64.81E7T

ik 5 1]

AAREEERERRERENER TE®A
MBS REEREE ﬂ&ﬁ&Lﬁl%X
BEERAIMDALIENR - 2012F M) 41 75kt K
4 E34% °

%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

REEHEMBEBHEEN

TERBEHBEHBEAR

$’A —EBEHRAOREBEINTERE ZHEHR
BEBREEERR - —T——F  AQBIEKE

%EE%E’\J%UIVE PINEBERMHE  FERHHE
BOBAGEEBESNIERR (ET#E—FK
RIEMTE WEEKREERMEEEYERELT
REEEEENE R RS TREEN
SR REFEHNBEMEEARKEE
FREEEREEREEBENERZT(E-
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Facilitating diversified and multi-channelled investor
activities

The Company communicated its development philosophy and
strategies and its latest operation results in the capital market
in a timely manner through various investor communication
channels, including analyst briefings, non-deal roadshows, one-
on-one meetings, investor forums organized by investment banks,
telephone conferences, emails, and investors’ on-site visits as well
as the Company’s website. Meanwhile, according to the needs
and styles of different analysts and investors, the Company flexibly
arranged senior managements with different responsibilities to
participate various investor relations activities. Since the listing,
the Company’s senior managements including Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer have participated in
plenty of investor activities to fully communicate with the capital
market, which truly realized multi-channelled communications.
In 2012, the Company hosted two analyst presentations and
two press conferences on its annual results and interim results
respectively, held seven non-deal roadshows, participated in
twenty international investor forums held by investment banks,
and conducted hundreds of one-on-one meetings and telephone
conferences in the usual course. Throughout 2012, the Company
facilitated interactive communications with investors or analysts
nearly 450 person-time. Upon the request of investors, the
Company also arranged investor and media on-site visits in
2012 to help investors to have a direct communication with the
Company’s operating frontier, and these activities have enhanced
the investors’ understanding on the Company’s businesses and
operations.

Zuft- 2 REMKREHTH

RERBOTENEN G HEXHHE —H—&
#RITEROREEWE ERgS BB
REEBMER RAEUBESZTENREER
BRE MEREATSEET REIERNE
DK REERNRTHENES R
NERBED AT RRE R E H O T R
HOBE IBHZHETEIETRES ATF
BENEEE2EMNRKREERELTE L™
P RRIBEERETF BRIITE MM BMHEE
EREERENSETAENSANKEER
B ROEEAMSETRIR BEEERTEZR
BRAR  —T——F REIHKEBERTRAEN
EEEENMPHEENDTEHEN S MK E
CHERERGERIE  ARBINT ZHIRER
BRITERNREERE BNLAEN—4—8
EMNERGH 2FAETIB0NRNTEEL
DMEETTEIRIR - RAEEIKREENE
KOFERBETERREENEREEN2EE
BOBRREEEBEREEEBHEMER N X
TREEHRRRBGMEE MR T # -
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Attendance Analysis of Investor Relations Activitiesin —F—~ K EHEHA X
2012
5%
NOE— deal ‘roadshow
x5 3096
Results presentation
16%
Investor forum
R Meeting and
Site-visit conference call
FHsHER T % Al Rk
List of investor relations activities of the Company CE-CZHEMBBEERGED
conducted in 2012 —E&
No. Date (dd/mm/yyyy) Location Event
RE BE(B/BA/F) b B EE
1 05-06/01/2012 Hong Kong Nomura China Property Corporate Day
B FNPEEHESED
2 09-11/01/2012 Shanghai UBS Greater China Conference
i W IRITAPESZ
8 16-18/01/2012 Hong Kong Macquarie Asia-Pacific Financials & Property Conference
BB ERBETAEHEEHES S
4 01-08/02/2012 Hong Kong Citi’s 9th Annual Asia Pacific Investor Conference 2012
B EHE012ENERAKREEFS
B 23/03/2012 Hong Kong 2011 Annual Results Presentation
o ONFFEXRBEME
6 24/04/2012 Hong Kong APREA Investor Day Hosted by Macquarie
BB ERBEIFNEAFRMERSKREER
7 25-26/04/2012 Xiamen Nomura China Investor Forum 2012
=1 2 2012F R Bz & & wmig
8 08-11/05/2012 Hong Kong Macquarie Greater China Conference 2012

BB EIRIP2012F KR ED 3%
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No. Date (dd/mm/yyyy) Location Event
REFE BHE(B/B/%) b B SEE
10-11/05/2012 Singapore Citi Asia Pacific Property Conference 2012
I hnsk TETEIR1T20125F T K B M 25 & o
10 10-11/05/2012 Beijing The 10th BOCI Investor Conference
b PIREBRETEREESR
11 21-22/05/2012 Hong Kong Barclays Select: Asia Property Conference
BB ERKaNEhESS
12 29/05/2012 Hong Kong Yuzhou Properties Annual General Meeting
B BN E2012FRRAE
13 13-15/06/2012 Beijing J.P. Morgan’s 8th Annual China Conference 2012
i ERABEN\ETPRFESH
14 05-06/07/2012 Hong Kong Citi HK/China Mini Conference
BB TETEE B /R BX RimiE
15 10-13/07/2012 Hong Kong BofAML Greater China Property Corporate Day
BB FREMARPERERER
16 30/08/2012 Hong Kong 2012 Interim Results Announcement Presentation
i 012F ARG EME
17 06-07/09/2012 Hong Kong UBS HK/China Property Conference
B i #R2012F B /R EE I E F B S &
18 01-02/11/2012 Macau Citi Greater China Investor Conference 2012
BT TEME2012F KR EREE G R
19 07-09/11/2012 Singapore Morgan Stanley Eleventh Annual Asia Pacific Summit
I hnsg ERTAFET—EEARFESH
20 15/11/2012 Xiamen Visiting Group Organized by Nomura Securities-A Field
Trip to Yuzhou Projects
E T BNBFAGER2EEZERRMNER
21 22/11/2012 Xiamen Investors Organized by Guosen Securities Xiamen
Branch-A Field Trip to Yuzhou Headquater
EFT BEZ 5B THRREEEE&MES
22 23/11/2012 Xiamen Visiting Group Organized by BOC International
Holdings-A Field Trip to Yuzhou Projects
EF1 HRIRBIRAMIER 28 EERZIMIER
23 05-07/12/2012 Hong Kong BofAML Greater China Property Corporate Day
BB EREMARPERMENFR
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ADHERING TO TIMELY, JUST, FAIR AND
ACCURATE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company has strictly complied with the information disclosure
requirements for listed companies and made information
disclosure in a timely, just, fair and accurate manner so as to
enhance the transparency of the Company, established smooth
communication channels, and enhanced communications with
the capital market. In 2012, the Company published more than
35 corporate communications such as announcements and
circulars. Such publications have objectively and comprehensively
disclosed information regarding the Company’s results, operating
performance, financial information, dividend payment, the
change of important executive positions and composition of
the Board, poll results of shareholder meetings and certain
other voluntary disclosures. The Company’s IR website
(http://irxmyuzhou.com.cn) is not only a distribution channel for
relevant information dissemination as required by the Listing Rules,
it is also an important means for the capital market to access
information and contact with the Company.

In 2012, the Group published the following information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules:

No. Date (dd/mm/yyyy)
RE BE(B/BR /%)

1 08/01/2012

NERBER

Securities

Announcement & Circular

Bl
i 5

ARBBET EMARMEERERA — 84
R QIE - AEFERE ST LIENA
RIERAE BV BIBREBRE  MREEARN
SR EEER —T— —F QBB T BB
M AL - BREATBM BE FHEMIEE
THREE KERR MBES DLERS
BETHBRBNESSEE RRASREL
R URETERERER - RRINREEBES
vk (http://irxmyuzhou.com.cn) = A Fl{Z B &
!l: - MEZRMREZ— R
- BREERDNAREENEE

Fhe

WIE AR B )

Sy

T F AKRERE RSB M
RARBIEETETET TIMES

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in

ARE - R BRTANEZE S A ®mEK

2 01/02/2012
Securities

AR - RO BEITANRE S

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in

B8 7B

Announcements and Notices — List of Directors and Their Role and Function

Announcements and Notices — Terms of Reference for Audit Committee

3 17/02/2012 Announcements and Notices — Natification of Board Meeting
NERBE -EFE2HRBM

4 17/02/2012
RERBE -ESREFEREACNBGE

5 17/02/2012
RERBE -BRZEENBEEE

6 17/02/2012

Committee

Announcements and Notices — Terms of Reference for Remuneration

NERBS -FHEZEENBERE
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Date (dd/mm/yyyy)
BE (B B/ %)

17/02/2012

28/02/2012

01/03/2012

22/03/2012

28/03/2012

03/04/2012

20/04/2013

20/04/2012

20/04/2012

20/04/2012

02/05/2012

29/05/2012

01/06/2012

03/07/2012

Announcement & Circular

DERBE

Announcements and Notices — Terms of Reference for Nomination
Committee
NERRBE -RRBRZESNREEE

Constitutional Documents — Memorandum and Articles of Association
BEXH -EBERAA MBS EZEIZME

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities
AMEK -BRNBETANELZEH BBE

Announcements and Notices — Results Announcement for the Year Ended
31 December 2011
RERBE -HZ2011F12A31HIELFEEE LS

Announcements and Notices — Closure of Register of Members
RERBE -LENERNBPELFE

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities
Ak - RODBITANESZZE AmE

Financial Statement — Annual Report 2011

W IEREK — 2011 FF =R

Announcements and Notices — Notice of Annual General Meeting
RERBE-BRRAFASRE

Circulars — Re-election of Directors General Mandate to Issue Shares General
Mandate to Repurchase Shares Issue of Bonus Shares and Notice of
Annual General Meeting ("AGM")

K - BRERRITRON —REEBELR G —RREBITARRARE
BERE ([RRAG]) RS

Proxy Forms — Form of Proxy for Annual General Meeting 2012

ZERRER - BAR012FRRBEFRAENRREZERS

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities
A& - RMDBITANERE S ARE

Announcements and Notices — Poll Results of the Annual General Meeting
Held on 29 May 2012
NERBE - R2012F5 A29B BITHRRBF R GNIRER

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities

ARk - R BRITANEZE 8 A ®RE

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities

AR - BROBITANEZES AREK
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No.
RFF

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Date (dd/mm/yyyy)
BE (B B/ %)

16/07/2012

30/07/2012

02/08/2012

30/08/2012

30/08/2012

04/09/2012

07/09/2012

03/10/2012

17/10/2012

18/10/2012

24/10/2012

01/11/2012

29/11/2012

03/12/2012

31/12/2012

Announcement & Circular

DERBE

Next Day Disclosure Return
BHFERE

Announcements and Notices — Notification of Board Meeting
NERBE-EFEIRRA

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities

AHK - ROBTANESEHAHK

Announcements and Notices — Interim Results for the Six Months Ended
30 June 2012
NERBE - EH22012F6 4308 L/~ E B R HEE

Announcements and Notices — Clarification Announcement
DERBE - BEDE

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities
AR - RDBEITANEFEE A ®RK

Financial Statement — Interim Report 2012

Bi sk — 20125 Fh 2R

Monthly Returns — Monthly Return of Equity Issuer on Movements in
Securities

AHK - ROBTANESEEH AHK

Announcements and Notices — Proposed Issuance of Senior Notes
NENAE -ZBRTEAER

Announcements and Notices — Issuance of US$250 Million 11.75% Senior
Notes Due 2017
NERES - BE17R2017F 2 Hi$ 88 A250,000,0003E 7T M 11.75% B St 2B
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HEARING INVESTORS BeREKEE FEHLHES

COMPREHENSIVELY AND REALIZING
INTERACTIVE COMMUNICATIONS

As the Company enhances investor communications and
information disclosure, the Company also attaches great
importance to its investors’ recommendations and opinions. With
a proactive, sincere and modest attitude, the Company collected
and filed the opinions and recommendations on the Company’s
operation and management through different channels of investor
communications. These initiatives also included the provision of
the investor relations electronic mailbox on its website and the
telephone line for investors to express their views. The Company
actively inquired investors of their recommendations on the
Company’s operation and management during investor activities
and forwarded these opinions and recommendations to the
management and supervisors at all levels on a regular and timely
basis, hence enabling a two-way interaction with the investors and
helping the Company to formulate its development strategies and
improve its operation and management.

OTHER NECESSARY INFORMATION FOR
SHAREHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to shareholding, such as transfer of shares,
change of name or address, and loss of share certificates should
be addressed in writing to the Registrar:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628

Facsimile: (852) 2529 6087

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Enquiry hotline during normal office hours:
Telephone: (852) 2508 1018

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts,
please contact:

Corporate Finance and Investor Relations Department,
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Units 4905-06, 49/F, The Centre,

99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2508 1718

Facsimile: (852) 2510 0265
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Independent Auditors’ Report

3 S A% BR R

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=7 Ik

To the shareholders of Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 142 to 256,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

HEMNEEROGARAFRR
(RESHBIMEA BRI A)

RIZEENE B ZF R FE142E256 8 &M E
BROERAR ([EAA]) REMBE QR (5HE
[EEE])NEGEEMBWmE  hneBHREe
FER2012F12 H31H AR & kA R IFAR R 3k
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R ERREBHRREERENER URE
TetHRMEREMBEEEER -
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BERRESERRAREBEREE G AGMREM
MEBMBREENREBE QRGO KER
ERBEEEMAFHEETHREK  REFRA
VENEEASED AERHENGES TR
RIFEBRRRFRERMEBNEAERR
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

1% % R AT
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2013

RZBARE  ZEREVBRERERIBER S
BHRELNEEMAFHRME SRR &
EER2012F12A31BNPHBERRIE E5E
HEZBLFENFBERESRE  YERRE
BRAENNEBEREZBRE -
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HEEE AT
BBHIR
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Year ended 31 December 2012 # 22012412431 H 1 F &

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
h=a ARET T AERETIT
REVENUE 'ON 5 3,893,836 3,839,076
Cost of sales SHE KA (2,350,771) (1,954,615)
Gross profit EH 1,543,065 1,884,461
Other income and gains R N € 5 68,434 93,366
Selling and distribution expenses HE Ko A A (108,361) (116,356)
Administrative expenses TERAX (176,325) (159,762)
Other expenses HERx (4,127) (5,196)
Fair value (losses)/gains on K"EYMEARE
investment properties (BE) s 15 (132,386) 478,180
Finance costs Bl & B R 7 (154,546) (156,238)
Share of loss of FEE—E R
a jointly-controlled entity P2 E AL E 1A (3,174) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B %% A0 R H 6 1,032,580 2,018,455
Income tax expense FifiSfiA X 10 (308,071) (1,025,247)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEFE 724,509 993,208
Attributable to: AR & el
Owners of the Company KARHEE A 11 726,214 941,628
Non-controlling interests IR (1,705) 51,580
724,509 993,208
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARTERBFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY EhEERER (Restated)
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13 (#£&E75)
— Basic (RMB per share) —EEX(BBRARE) 0.25 0.33
— Diluted (RMB per share) —EE (BERARE) 0.25 0.33

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note

12 to the financial statements.

B RABUR R B B R M B R M FE12M

B -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
.»/T n = ﬁ l& Eﬁ i":f

Year ended 31 December 2012 & 2012412431 A 1 % /& 143
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETTT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEFHE 724,509 993,208
Exchange difference on translation of TINETERE 2 B N ERE

foreign operations 9,458 60,789
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEEZHKRATE

FOR THE YEAR 733,967 1,053,997
Attributable to: AT %75 FE 4

Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZZ =N 724,369 1,008,288

Non-controlling interests JEVEAR M = 9,598 45,709

733,967 1,053,997
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31 December 2012 20124 12H31H

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE k& 14 204,508 207,190
Investment properties HEYF 15 3,643,100 3,444,900
Prepaid land lease payments YEN TS 16 437,091 443,874
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity 7 — & £ B2 5| B 8215 & 18 176,498 157,200
Deferred tax assets R IR R E 29 226,875 276,421
Total non-current assets SEMENE AT 4,688,072 4,529,585
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepaid land lease payments TN TS 16 420,000 657,946
Properties under development EEYE 19 9,391,436 8,345,407
Completed properties held for sale BEEEREMR T YR 20 2,024,106 2,030,322
Prepayments for acquisition for land W& + 38 (< 7138 1,155,012 52,900
Prepayments, deposits and other R EZER
receivables H fth fE U R IE 21 787,748 652,376
Prepaid corporate income tax SEANMETIEES ) 29,845 14,585
Prepaid land appreciation tax TE T HEIEE T 31,699 13,453
Financial assets at fair value through R QA R {EFH A B HY
profit or loss TRIEE 6,230 =
Derivative financial instruments SRITETE 26 15,078 =
Restricted cash ZRHIHE 22 398,192 516,159
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 22 3,330,425 1,440,378
Total current assets mENEEEER 17,589,771 13,723,526
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Receipts in advance TEU R IE 23 4,083,019 1,950,571
Trade payables B 5 ENFIEA 24 1,992,076 1,918,845
Other payables and accruals H fth FE 5 5RIE KR FEET & 25 378,069 578,542
Derivative financial instruments SRITET AR 26 - 543
Interest-bearing bank and other FTRIRITER K
borrowings Himfg g 27 2,479,012 1,335,211
Tax payable e TR 765,697 716,178
Provision for land appreciation tax o IR {E A B A 28 919,515 1,169,594
Total current liabilities mMENBEARTE 10,617,388 7,669,484
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFHE 6,972,383 6,054,042
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERARBAMR
LIABILITIES 11,660,455 10,583,627
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Consolidated Statement of Financigl Position (Continued)
GaMBRRE (8)

31 December 2012 20124124315 145
2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5E AR®BT T ARBTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other STERITERK

borrowings Himfg s 27 5,030,219 4,221,547
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFTE 8 (& 29 538,751 706,160
Total non-current liabilities EME B EREE 5,568,970 4,927,707
Net assets BEFR 6,091,485 5,655,920
EQUITY s

Equity attributable to owners of AQTEEAEGEER
the Company

Issued capital BEITIRA 30 250,918 211,528
Reserves R 32(a) 5,518,719 5,061,968
Proposed dividend R L B 12 231,047 77,802
6,000,684 5,351,298
Non-controlling interests FiERER 90,801 304,622
Total equity T MR RE 6,091,485 5,655,920
Lam Lung On Kwok Ying Lan
MER SR
Director Director

EF EE
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146 Year ended 31 December 2012 & F20124 129318 1F /&
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAEEAER
Share Statutory Exchange Non-
Issued premium surplus fluctuation QOther Retained Proposed controling Total
Note capital account reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total Interests equity
& &R SHE
Wi BEARA R BHGER RB G Afbil  REHE ke @i kpRER  EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AR¥TR ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR
(Note 30) (Note 32(a)() (Note 32(a)i)
(I3k30) (Iirs2ean) GERYE)
At 1 January 2011 R011E1A1R 211,528 1,292,181 55,935 88,629 (16,328) 2,711,065 204394 4,567,404 256,625 4,824,029
Profit for the year FEAE = = = = = 941,628 = 941,628 51,580 993,208
Other comprehensive income EFAM
for the year: 2EKE:
Exchange differences on tranglation S 5MER#HAE 2
of foreign operations ERER = = - 66,660 - - - 66,660 (5,871) 60,789
Total comprehensive income FEXEYREE
for the year = = = 66,660 = 941,628 = 1,008,288 45,709 1,063,997
Non-controling interests arising BB EEFEEL
from acquisition of net assets AR ER - - = = - - = = 2,288 2,288
Transfer from retained profits B R AT EaE - - 6,707 - - (6,707) - - - -
Final 2010 dividend declared BEER0I0ERERSE - - - - = -3 (22430 - (243%)
Proposed final dividend REARBRE 12 - (77,802 - - - - 77,802 - - -
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12A318 211,528 1214319 62,642 165,289" (16,328 3,645,986 77,802 5,361,298 304,622 5,605,920
Attributable to owners of the Company
FARERAER
Share Statutory ~ Exchange Non-
Issued premium surplus  fluctuation Other Retained Proposed controlling Total
Note capital account reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
L3} EE HE
Wi BRARA BER  BREE RE&E Rl REWE BRRE a  FBREE  EREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR
(Note 30) (Note 326 (Note 32(afi)
(Kiz30) (HsE2ta)) (Wi&E320)
At 1 January 2012 R201261A18 211,528 1,214,379 62,642 155,289 (16,328) 3,645,986 77802 5351,298 304,622 5,655,920
Profit for the year EEHE - - - - - T2614 - T26214 (1,705) 724509
Other comprehensive income ERAMH
for the year: 2ENE:
Exchange differences on tranglation S9N ER5#AE 2
of foreign operations EXESR - - - (1,845) - - - (1,845) 11,303 9,458
Total comprehensive income FEXEYREE
for the year - - - (1,845) - 726214 - T 9598 733,067
Acquisition of WEE R ER
non-controlling interests - - - - 50,005 - - 50,005 (223,419) (173,414)
Bonus issue B 39,390 (39,390) - - - - - - - -
Final 2011 dividend declared BERO1ERSRSE - - - - - - (17802 (77,802) - (77,802
First interim 2012 dividend BR012ETERS 12 - (47,186) - - - - - (47,186) - (47,186)
Second interim 2012 dividend BEREZR0125
declared PHRE 12 - (231,04 - - - - 231,047 - - -
At 31 December 2012 1201261231 250,918 896,756 62,642¢ 153,444* 33,677 4,372,200 231,047 6,000,684 90,801 6,091,485

- ZERBEREESAVBERIRFRIINEGES
f# A R #5,518,719,0007T (20114F : AR
5,061,968,0007T ) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB5,518,719,000 (2011: RMB5,061,968,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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AR ER
Year ended 31 December 2012 # 2201244 12531H 1F F/&

147

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR¥T T AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 25 AT A1 1,032,580 2,018,455
Adjustments for: MUATHEBEHFE:
Finance costs B & AR 7 154,546 156,238
Bank interest income RITH B A 5 (30,426) (15,022)
Depreciation e 6 9,369 11,332
Amortisation of prepaid land FEAS £ b FH 5 4 £
lease payments 6 19,319 20,582
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE - -BE R
property, plant and equipment RETE B MBS 6 4,240 1,911
Write-down of completed FHIEHERENE TYWE
properties held for sale to WO = Al £ 35 FHE
net realisable value 6 12,706 -
Gain on extinguishment of RS MITERBEH KRS
derivative financial liabilities (543) -
Fair value gain on derivative TRTETAERARERKES
financial instruments 6 (15,078) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEHE AR Rk 6 (11,284) -
Share of loss of a FEAG — & R 42
jointly-controlled entity EBEBE 3,174 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEREYZED
investment properties EiE (Wa) 6 69 (37,025)
Fair value loss/(gain) on wEMEARE
investment properties EiE (Wa) 15 132,386 (478,180)
1,311,058 1,678,291
Increase in properties TE R ZEIE N
under development (287,654) (1,382,909)
Increase in completed properties BIEHEREMNERT
held for sale LES DIl (6,490) (1,514,842)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  JEN R - 154 & E b fE U X
deposits and other receivables |8 ($n) 5/ (135,372) 22,789
Increase in financial assets at fair BEARBEFTABERN
value through profit or loss & B E E LN (6,230) =
Increase in receipts in advance T8 Uk FRIE LE N 2,132,448 40,137
Increase in trade payables B 5 S FIEE N 73,231 1,004,698
(Decrease)/increase in other payables  E i f& {5z 18 [z
and accruals et &R ORd) /1N (185,803) 194,404
Cash generated from operations KEEHEENIRS 2,895,188 42,568
Interest received EEE RS 30,426 15,022
Interest paid EENEESA (641,580) (504,268)
PRC corporate income tax paid BB EREH (255,290) (167,846)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B8 B L g A (404,710) (111,809)
Net cash flows generated from/(used & =&/E8ES, (FTH) &
in) operating activities WEMEFH 1,624,034 (726,333)
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Year ended 31 December 2012 # 22012412431 H 1 F &

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i: ARMTR  ARETR

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETFEEEN

ACTIVITIES RERE
Capital contribution to m—AHRZEHEE 2 HE

a jointly-controlled entity - (6,000)
Advance of loan to M — B EEG E 8

a jointly-controlled entity BIER (22,472) (151,200)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Ui 88 JE 252 A% 48 25 (173,414) =
Payment of land lease premiums ST E R E (129,317) (424,631)
Increase in prepayments for W B - b TR A 038 AN

acquisition for land (1,102,112) -
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER

plant and equipment B lE] (10,927) (39,045)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHE A 33 80,000 -
Additions of investment properties RNEREYE (337,092) (153,572)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash R #1382 w4~ (3 0) 117,967 (502,936)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEFSHIA

investment properties 6,437 110,723
Net cash flows used in investing REEBFARE

activities MEFE (1,570,930) (1,166,661)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RESEERELMN

ACTIVITIES REeERE
New bank and other borrowings g REMEER 3,686,335 2,474,043
Repayment of bank and other EERTEEMEES

borrowings (1,733,862) (1,697,055)
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRREE TS RIA - 543
Dividends paid BERBRE (124,988) (224,394)
Net cash flows from financing BB REELEN

activities Rens#H8 1,827,485 558,137
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BeERBESZEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #®wim, CRd) FE 1,880,589 (1,339,857)
Cash and cash equivalents FNReRREEEY

at beginning of year 1,440,378 2,719,446
Effect of foreign exchange bERF B EFEE

rate changes, net 9,458 60,789
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRER

AT END OF YEAR REZEY 3,330,425 1,440,378
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REeRESEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS by
Cash and bank balances B RIB1TAH 22 3,330,425 1,440,378
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Statement of Financial Position
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31 December 2012 20124 12H31H

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 ARET T ARBFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 BB k& 14 2,717 3,889
Investments in subsidiaries RH B R AR E 17 1 1
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 2,718 3,890
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries e U B B R R FRIE 17 4,108,959 3,631,618
Prepayments, deposits and AR me &
other receivables H b Uk 3118 21 1,914 860
Financial assets at fair value through R A R {EFT A
profit or loss TREE 6,230 -
Derivative financial instruments E@MITET AR 26 15,078 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 22 676,140 13,635
Total current assets mENEEEER 4,808,321 3,646,113
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H b AR ERTE A 25 81,815 48,023
Derivative financial instruments SRIPTET A 26 - 543
Due to subsidiaries FEAST B B A R TR 17 261,376 112,641
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITER R
other borrowings HEiEE 27 803,923 85,777
Total current liabilities mE) B EERE 1,147,114 246,984
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 3,661,207 3,399,129
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HWEERARBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,663,925 3,403,019
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other FTRRITER K
borrowings HEMEE 27 2,728,036 2,021,697
Net assets BEFRE 935,889 1,381,322
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 250,918 211,528
Reserves ki 32(b) 453,924 1,091,992
Proposed dividend KRR 2 12 231,047 77,802
Total equity TS ABER 935,889 1,381,322

Lam Lung On
MER
Director

EFE

Kwok Ying Lan
BB
Director

EF
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31 December 2012 20124 12H31H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in
property development, property investment, property
management and hotel operations in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000) except when
otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit
balance.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
— Severe Hyperinfiation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 12
Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of amendments to HKAS 12, the adoption of the revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of
deferred tax for investment property measured at fair value
and introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax
on investment property measured at fair value should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets,
measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should
always be measured on a sale basis. Prior to the adoption
of the amendments, deferred tax with respect to the
Group’s investment properties was provided on the basis
that the carrying amount will be recovered through use,
and accordingly the profits tax rate had been applied to
the calculation of deferred tax arising on the revaluation
of the Group’s investment properties. The Group has
investment properties measured at fair value and all such
investment properties are held with the objective to consume
substantially all of their economic benefits over time, rather
than through sale. Accordingly, the Group continues to
measure deferred tax liabilities arising from the fair value
changes of their investment properties using tax rate that
would apply on recovery of the assets through use. The
adoption of the amendments had no significant impact on
the financial statements of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.
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HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and

HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
— Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial
Statements?
Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 -
Transition Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) — Investment Entities®

Fair Value Measurement?
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive
Income!

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in June 20122

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

¥ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights to set-off and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect
of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position.
The new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also
apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles
of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions
were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option (“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount
of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the change
in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation
of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk
in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under the
FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39
on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will quantify the effect
in conjunction with other phases, when the final standard
including all phases is issued.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies
to all entities including special purpose entities or structured
entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used
to determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group
to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities
are controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27
and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
addresses the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based on the
preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 10 is not expected
to have any impact on the currently held investments of the
Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting
for joint arrangements with joint control. It addresses only
two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and
joint ventures, and removes the option to account for joint
ventures using proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition
guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from full
retrospective application of these standards, limiting the
requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to
only the preceding comparative period. The amendments
clarify that retrospective adjustments are only required if the
consolidation conclusion as to which entities are controlled
by the Group is different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27
or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of the annual period in
which HKFRS 10 is applied for the first time. Furthermore,
for disclosures related to unconsolidated structured entities,
the amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before HKFRS 12 is first
applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012
include a definition of an investment entity and provide
an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities
that meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment
entities are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather
than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were
made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments
to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The Group expects that these
amendments will not have any impact on the Group as the
Company is not an investment entity as defined in HKFRS
10.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and
HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011), HKAS 28 (2011),
and the subsequent amendments to these standards issued
in July and December 2012 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required to
use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted
under other HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
13 prospectively from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign operations,
net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain
on available-for-sale financial assets) would be presented
separately from items which will never be reclassified (for
example, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans
and revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments will
affect presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces significant
changes in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans
including removing the choice to defer the recognition
of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes include
modifications to the timing of recognition for termination
benefits, the classification of short-term employee benefits
and disclosures of defined benefit plans. The Group expects
to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify
the application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to
settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems)
which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group upon adoption on 1 January 2014.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2013. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some
of the amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Those amendments
that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
policies are as follows:

(@)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period.
An entity must include comparative information in
the related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond
the previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete set of
financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period must be presented when
an entity changes its accounting policies; makes
retrospective restatements or makes reclassifications,
and that change has a material effect on the statement
of financial position. However, the related notes to
the opening statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period are not required to
be presented.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)  HKAS 32 Financial Instruments. Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing
income tax requirements from HKAS 32 and requires
entities to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity holders.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in
which the Group and the other parties have an interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the
assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits
or losses from the joint venture’'s operations and any
distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or
in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@ a subsidiary, if the Group/Company has unilateral
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b)  a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company does
not have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group/Company does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, if the Group/Company holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered
capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a
position to exercise significant influence over, the joint
venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGHHEME )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject
to joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the
jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where
the profit sharing ratio is different to the Group’s equity
interest, the share of the post-acquisition results of the
jointly-controlled entities is determined based on the agreed
profit sharing ratio. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its jointly-
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the jointly-controlled entities, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the Group’s
investments in jointly-controlled entities.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in the
Group’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled
entities are treated as non-current assets and are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
properties under development, completed properties held
for sale, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the income statement in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEGHHEME )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of lease
terms and 20 years
Over the shorter of lease
terms and 5 years

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment
Motor vehicles

2 to 5 years
2 to 5 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND DEPRECIATION (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Property under construction or development for future use as
an investment property is classified as investment property
under construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under construction will
be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
determined or construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement
in the year in which they arise. Any gains or losses on
the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

When the Group completes the construction or development
of a self-constructed investment property, any difference
between the fair value of the property at the completion date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale is determined by
an apportionment of total land and building costs attributable
to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and loans and receivables. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined
by HKAS 39.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and
gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in the income statement. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent
to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes,
the Group may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to
loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or
held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the
assets. This evaluation does not affect any financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option at designation, as these instruments cannot be
reclassified after initial recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in
the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, derivative financial liabilities and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

24 FEGHEME ()

LA

W8 R Kowt 2
BFREGERFIRT I ENEREAE
TEENEAS D /R ANERBERT
EENEMAE ERREFR SBER
B PSR TANITAET R - ANEH
R ERARETESRAEENDE-

BSRABVFRAERR MNE
B ER AR ERBIER KA -

AEENTREBERRESRNFIE K
RN RER BT &R S RITEREN
Kt BRITER R EMER -

B E
SREBEORATEREADFET
HARMT -

8 3k K fi§ 5%

RO HERRE FHERRITERREMEE
HIZABRA EXRBIBK AT E B
BENFEYTEN AIRKAT R 2T
BREABER MABRN R RETHIEG
B Baer RS RER -

B ARG MBS REMTESEE
KBEBRFEA R HER— B H B AR
REFTHE - BRF R EH AR SRR



180

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
Annual Report 2012

Notes to Financial Statements
W% % Mgk

31 December 2012 20124 12H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive, and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwiill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entity, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entity, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)

from the sale of completed properties, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to the buyers, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the completed properties, that
is when the construction of the relevant properties
has been completed and the properties have been
delivered to the buyers pursuant to the sale agreement,
and the collectability of related receivables is
reasonably assured;

from the rendering of services, when the services are
rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 31 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Pension scheme (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in RMB. The
Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. In the
opinion of the directors, as the Group’s operations are mainly
in the PRC, the use of RMB as the presentation currency
is more appropriate for the presentation of the Group’s
results and financial position. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising from settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB.
As at end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income statements
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (Continued)

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management in determining whether
a property is designated as an investment property or a
property held for sale. The Group considers its intention of
holding the properties at the early development stage of the
related properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted for as
properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after its completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current assets
if the properties are intended to be held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the
properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale and are stated at cost,
while the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to investment properties and are
subject to revaluation at each reporting date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Valuation of properties under development and
properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The
estimated net realisable value is the estimated selling price
less selling expenses and the estimated cost of completion
(if any), which are estimated based on the best available
information.

Allocation of construction cost on properties
under development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to
the development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such
phase. Costs that are common to each phase are allocated
to each phase based on the saleable floor area of each
phase as a percentage of the total saleable floor area of the
entire project. The cost of the unit sold is determined by the
floor area in square meter sold during the year multiplied by
the average cost per square meter of that particular phase of
the project.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. As a
result of the fact that certain matters relating to income taxes
have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective
estimate and judgement based on currently enacted tax
laws, regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact on the income
tax and tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for
LAT is based on management’s best estimates according to
its understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects. The Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the
tax authorities for certain property development projects. The
final outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and any differences will have impact on the
land appreciation tax expense and the related provision in the
period in which the differences realise.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction are
revalued at the end of the reporting period on a market value,
existing use basis by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimation, information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date are used.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the property development segment engages in the
development and sale of properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in properties
for their rental income potential and/or for capital
appreciation;

(c) the property management segment engages in the
provision of management services to properties;

(d) the hotel operation segment engages in the
development and operation of hotels; and

(e) the others segment comprises corporate income and
expense items.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that interest income and finance costs are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid
corporate income tax, prepaid land appreciation tax,
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial liabilities,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, tax payable,
provision for land appreciation tax and deferred tax liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

During the year, no revenue from transactions with a single
external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

BaniE R 8

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2012 B Z2012F128318 L FE
Property Property Property Hotel
development investment  management operation Others Total
LESE WERE NEEE BELE Hity Fot
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB00  RMB'000  RMB00O
AR%TR AR%TR ARBTF T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Segment revenue: pan: 1 O
Sales to external customers MINPE PR AHER 3,784,421 48,245 61,170 - - 3,803,836
Other revenue L ON 5,122 1,702 2,673 - 2,149 11,646
Total @z 3,789,543 49,947 63,843 - 2,149 3,905,482
Segment results SPEE 1,270,646 (114,626) 8,022 (52) (7,200) 1,156,700
Reconciliation: ik
Interest income FEWA 30,426
Finance costs BERKAK (154,546)
Profit before tax B B ATFIE 1,032,580
Tax BIE (308,071)
Profit for the year FEME 724,509
Segment assets ST HEE 21,563,916 3,808,090 94,602 397,946 2,613,127 28,477,681
Reconciliation: ik
Elimination of intersegment i 2 5 e B U 3R
receivables (10,216,874)
Corporate and other unallocated CEREMANEEE
assets 4,017,036
Total assets BELR 22,277,843
Segment liabilities FHEE 13,856,658 239,831 73,672 235,530 2,264,346 16,670,037
Reconcilation: k-
Elimination of intersegment payables #5738 i & (4 3 (10,216,874)
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMAIEERE
liabilities 9,733,195
Total liabilities afges 16,186,358
Other segment information: HittpHER:
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 26,387 437 754 - 1,380 28,958
Capital expenditure* BARRT 132,369 337,092 1,527 5,745 603 477,336
Fair value losses on investment BREMENDAEESE
properties - 132,386 - - - 132,386
Share of loss of B —HERREHEREE
jointly-controlled entity 3,174 - - - - 3,174
Investment in a jointly-controlled R—AXFEHERRE
entity 176,498 - - - - 176,498
Write-down of completed properties ~ # i E B RR Y%
held for sale to net realisable value MR Z Al # R FE 12,706 - - - - 12,706

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment, additions to investment properties and additions
to prepaid land lease payments.

: ERRAXBERBEYE BB R&E R
BERBVERABENLIWES -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Y- $ 85 - )

(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE2011F128318 ILFE
Property Property Property Hotel
development investment management operation Others Total
MERE MERE MEER BIEEE At B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Segment revenue: DY
Sales to external customers MNBEPELAHER 3,735,365 51,411 52,300 - - 3,839,076
Other revenue E A 1,065 2,333 1,796 - 1,055 6,249
Total a5 3,736,430 53,744 54,096 - 1,055 3,845,325
Segment results SPEE 1,670,156 518,943 9,004 (152) (38,280) 2,159,671
Reconciliation: ik
Interest income FEKA 15,022
Finance costs BEKA (156,238)
Profit before tax BRE% AT A E 2,018,455
Tax HIE (1,025,247
Profit for the year FERME 993,208
Segment assets AHEE 22,550,893 19,956,224 129,651 634,317 5,400,770 48,671,855
Reconciliation: ik
Elimination of intersegment receivables i f&l /& 1 5% (32,679,740)
Corporate and other unallocated assets (% & E Rk D& E 2,260,996
Total assets BESE 18,253,111
Segment liabilities AHEE 17,622,927 14,410,315 117,772 471,515 4,505,169 37,127,698
Reconciliation: HiE:
Elimination of intersegment payables 1 #4725 & JE 15 3¢ (32,679,740
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMASEAR
liabilities 8,149,233
Total liabilities BELH 12,597,191
Other segment information: HitrpBEH:
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 30,006 230 406 - 1,182 31,914
Capital expenditure* BARY" 443,175 155,123 2,276 10,831 5,843 617,248
Fair value gains on investment REMENDABKEE
properties - 478,180 - - - 478,180
Investment in a jointly-controlled R—ALREHERRE
entity 157,200 - - - - 157,200
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and - BEARTBIERBEME BEKEHE

equipment, additions to investment properties and additions EREVMERABRN MBS -

to prepaid land lease payments.
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o.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND .

GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the gross proceeds, net of business tax, from the sale of
properties; gross rental income, net of business tax, received
and receivable from investment properties and property
management fee income, net of business tax, received and

receivable during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

WA~ 3l A B i ER

WATBARBEFANEEE  HYEH
ENREXMRABHRALER  REME
MR R E R R R A WA R
B REERERRENEEEERA-

AEBMBOWA - B A RS0 DTS

is as follows: HIEATE -
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Revenue KA
Sales of properties Y HE 3,784,421 3,735,365
Rental income HEBUA 48,245 51,411
Property management fees MEERE 61,170 52,300
3,893,836 3,839,076
Other income and gains HAeb g A R Wz
Bank interest income RITA B A 30,426 15,022
Rental income from properties REFEHEMENHS WA
held for sale 2,698 8,126
Fair value gain on derivative SRITETEARBEYS
financial instruments 15,078 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EH B AR A ks 11,284 =
Gain on disposal of investment B EREMERN RS
properties - 37,025
Others Hth 8,948 33,193

68,434 93,366
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. KB A Al i
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REEMBRFATFNE R 0ER  (GEA) LA
(crediting): THRIBREW:
2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET R ARBTT
Cost of properties sold B EWEKAR 2,295,027 1,917,203
Amortisation of prepaid land TE A 1t 7H 5 4 55 16
lease payments 19,319 20,582
Depreciation e 14 9,639 11,332
Loss on disposal of items of HEME KE R
property, plant and equipment REBIEE R EE 4,240 1,911
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEREME
investment properties B (M=) 69 (37,025)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ H & — BB A sl H U 33 (11,284) =
Fair value gain on derivative MESHBIARN
financial instruments AERE (15,078) =
Minimum lease payments THREFEEHEETH
under operating leases RIREE K
for land and buildings 10,281 9,580
Auditors’ remuneration 2 BX Al 357 2,500 2,500
Write-down of completed FEHEREMNRIYE
properties held for sale to iRk 2= A B35 R (E
net realisable value 12,706 -
Employee benefit expense REBAZH
(including directors’ and chief (BREEERITHRERKZ
executive’s remuneration (note 8)) M (Ki:E8) )
Wages and salaries IENHS 51,265 38,121
Retirement benefit scheme RORAE T ET 2R
contributions 6,412 4,743
57,677 42,864
Direct operating expenses HIHSREMEELEN
(including repairs and BEELES N
maintenance) arising on rental- (BIERERERE)
earning investment properties 11,287 11,326
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7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

of the Hong Kong

Group
rE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Interest on bank loans wholly BERATERNZBEER
repayable within five years RITERBF B 232,735 168,430
Interest on bank loans wholly ERAFREHEEEN
repayable beyond five years PITERBOF A 48,138 43,789
Interest on other loans HiEZaF 8 360,707 294,561
Total interest expense on financial TEARBRERTERD
liabilities not at fair value SHEENHNE X HExE
through profit or loss 641,580 506,780
Less: Interest capitalised BB AN B (487,034) (350,542)
154,546 156,238
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERATHAHEGTM
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BIEEBHERIMEBRARES LM

Al (TEMARA) BB RBEGIFE16115
BENESRITRERFEFHOT :

Group
RE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AERETIT
Fees e 486 498
Other emoluments: H b =R B -
Salaries, allowances and Ho R REMET
benefits in kind 4,357 6,898
Pension scheme contributions ROKAE A 5T 8] 50 45 57
4,402 6,955
4,888 7,453
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EHERMAHMAZFM 2
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)
During the year, certain directors and chief executive were REA REBAARERESS - &T=
granted options, in respect of their services to the Group, ERTHREZEESRARNEBRE 2R
under the share option scheme of the Company, further HmERERE BEE—PFBEHRRY
details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial BWMEMES cZERREZAABETIR
statements. The fair value of such options, which has REBHET HEREBHEURERN
been recognised in the income statement over the vesting R BAER2012F12A31B R FES
period, was determined as at the date of grant. The share RATHAER, - RE 2201212 318 IE4F
options were granted to the directors and chief executive B EERERI N EMESE RITHRAR
on 31 December 2012. No share option expense has been B T UARER
recognised in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2012.
The remuneration of each of the directors and chief executive BEEERITHABHNEZE20125F12431H
for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below: IEFEHFMETIAT
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
£k i1 RIKER
Fiok RENEF TEMS At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR%TRn  AR®Tx AR¥TR
Executive directors: HWITESE:
Mr. Lam Lung On* Mo ot - 1,570 1 1,581
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan PRBRL - 1,570 12 1,582
Mr. Lin Longzhi MEREE - ™ 11 752
Mr. Lin Conghui IR % & - 476 11 487
- 4,357 45 4,402
Independent non-executive directors: By FFHITES
Mr. Gu Jiande ERELLE 162 - - 162
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu WEKIEE 162 - - 162
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EfEEEE 162 - - 162
486 - - 486
486 4,357 45 4,888

*

Company.

Mr. Lam Lung On is a director and the chief executive of the

: MR EERARNBREETRRITHAH -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(Continued)

EHERITHAEZTH 90

BEERITHAZNEZE2011F12 4318
IEFERE ST -

The remuneration of each of the directors and chief executive
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out below:

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

e 28 RIKEA
we  REDEH STEIH Mems
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors: HWITES:
Mr. Lam Lung On WERELE - 1,581 12 1,593
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan PERBERL - 1,581 15 1,596
Mr. Huang Zhibin (appointed on EHRAE (R2011451A
20 January 2011 and resigned on 0B ER T R20114
31 December 2011) 12 A31 B EHE) = 2,491 = 2,491
Mr. Lin Longzhi MERLE - 733 15 748
Mr. Lin Conghui MIBE L4 - 512 15 527
- 6,898 57 6,955
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITE S :

Mr. Gu Jiande ERELE 166 - - 166
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu WEREE 166 - - 166
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang HRBLE 166 - = 166
498 - - 498
498 6,898 57 7,453

RER MESEFRNTHREHBEXRE
PREATAR 37 B B 2 Bk

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
four (2011: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2011: one) non-director, highest paid
employee for the year are as follows:

9.

htmm#HAL

RERN - A& fxmH AT BFENE (2011
FNE)EE ZEFEENFHMFBIR
EXHE8 o8 N — % (201145 : — &) 3F
EERRTSEENFEFHOT

Group

RE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 285 & B #1187 681 1,071
Pension scheme contributions RRGEFIET B3R 11 =
692 1,071

The remuneration of the non-director, highest paid employee
for the year fell within the band of RMB500,001 to
RMB1,000,000 (2011: RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000).

ZEIEEERFTEENFETHN T
A R #500,0017 £ A K #1,000,0007T
(20114 : AR¥1,000,001TTE AR
1,500,0007T) 2 [ °
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10. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax

the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong during the year (2011: Nil).

the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China is calculated at
the applicable tax rates on the taxable profits for the year.

An analysis of the income tax charges for the year is as

10. Fr 15 i

has been made as

The income tax for

Pl 5 25 5 5 4 O 3 4 1 5 S A A A
BB - B AR BB AIE B B
(20114 + 1) o O B AR A8 4 O I 22
) 40 8 AR 1847 P 0 3 B4 ) 503
GESIE

FEMBRHHDHTAT :

tax bureaus in the PRC the computation for the LAT of
property development projects that had been completed and
sold in previous years. As a result of the local tax bureau’s
assessments, the Group has reversed and recognised an
overprovision for LAT on the relevant property development
projects of RMB240,912,000 (2011: Nil) to the consolidated
income statement for the year.

During the year, the Group has reversed the deferred tax
liabilities of RMB128,331,000 (2011: Nil) on withholding
tax provided in prior years on distributable profits retained
in subsidiaries in Mainland China as, in the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that the PRC subsidiaries will
distribute their earnings in the foreseeable future.

follows:
Group
KE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
Current: BIER :
PRC corporate income tax B AT 289,549 423,761
PRC land appreciation tax (note 28) B+ 3 3B (E B (BT EE28)
— Charge for the year —FEXH 377,297 528,595
— Overprovision in prior years* — BT EBRERE (240,912) -
425,934 952,356
Deferred (note 29): RAE (F5E29)
Current year REE (49,760) 72,891
Reversal of withholding tax provided BRERBEFERREBR
in prior years on distributable profits Bt 12 2 B A9 AT i 5 g A
retained in subsidiaries* ATIR R TE AL (128,331) -
Reversal of deferred tax assets on BEgRNBEFEERE
LAT overprovided in prior years Bt R T i I E R AR LT
MIBE E 60,228 =
(117,863) 72,891
Total tax charge for the year FEMEX NEE 308,071 1,025,247
* During the year, the Group filed and agreed with the local * REA - A& B ) B E b B S R iR

VRZBNEREFEECERLELZY
FERIBE 2 T HIRET o KB A B
BEL G AEEERFEARARYE
BRIEE B KRR G E R B
5 AR #240,912,0007T (20114 : ) &=
AWK -

RER AEEERBREFER BRHE
A 2 Y 2 B R B2 2 ) o0 e )R 18 5
EFIE B & A K #128,331,0007T (2011
F8) REERRTEMBARTK
AT REAS R AT TR R R SR D BCE &R
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation
of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the
effective tax rates for the year, are as follows:

10.

P 5 B can)

FR FKAARBREBREHNE AT
FITHE RDARE IR BOORE B R 5T BB A BR X
AIAMBERRIAR S B ERR R EOH
AR B H R - A RE R B R (BIAE
R)ERBERBEAEERMAT -

Group
A&EH
2012 2011
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBTR ARBTT

Profit before tax KR 750 31 71 1,032,580 2,018,455
At the statutory income tax rate BREEMEHEFE 258,145 25.0 504,614 25.0
Lower tax rate for specific provinces 1€ & 17 8k J5 1 A A

or local authority BEH = - - (24,476) (1.2)
Tax losses utiised from HFEA T SRR EER

previous periods (14,686) (1.4) (26,688) (1.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax NAMB X 61,527 6.0 86,489 43
Tax losses not recognised REATIAEE 29,127 2.8 32,975 1.6
Effect on withholding tax on the BRASEMTEBARN

distributable profits of the A DB EBNH

Group’s PRC subsidiaries i0b2 - - 55,887 2.8
Reversal of prior years’ withholding tax B E1#Z i@ A F 2 A £ @A)

on the distributable profits of REHB AR D

the Group’s PRC subsidiaries FEm &R EMH (128,331) (12.5) = =
Reversal of overprovision for LAT ROBAFEE L HEERN

in prior years BEE R (240,912) (23.9) - -
Reversal of deferred tax effect on REBEFE DL ETN

overprovision for LAT in prior years R R EHIRTEHES 2 60,228 5.8 = =
LAT THEBET 377,297 36.5 528,595 26.2
Tax effect on LAT THREERRETE (94,324) (9.1) (132,149) (6.6)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRASEERF R EHOH

effective rate ELE Y 308,071 20.8 1,025,247 50.8
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11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 11. A A & # & A JE {5 Fl
OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the NATHEB AEE2012F12A31 B IEFE
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes FEiERE T B eE—TE ARES14,513,000
a loss of RMB314,513,000 (2011: RMB288,228,000) gL 2 B 18 (20114 : A R #288,228,000
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the T0) ' 2B R E R AR B B 3Rk A R B
Company (note 32(b)). (Pt E32(b) ) °
12. DIVIDEND 12. |k &
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
First interim — HK2 cents (2011: Nil) F-RPHBRE-ERTBRA
per ordinary share 27l (201148 : 4&) 47,186 -
Second interim — HK10 cents (2011: Nil) 5 — )X HIRR & — B R L@ A
per ordinary share 10751l (20114 : £#) 231,047 =
Proposed final — Nil (2011: HK4 cents)  #t)& & Hii% 8 — B A% L @B A
per ordinary share # (20114  4784L) - 77,802
278,233 77,802

On 28 February 2013, the board of directors of the Company
declared a second interim dividend of HK10 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2012 payable to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 5 April 2013.

The board of directors of the Company proposed a bonus
issue of 2 bonus shares for every 10 existing shares held
for the year ended 31 December 2012 being subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

2013F2H28R AR A E B MK
2013F4 A5 B ARRKRRA M AR
AR EREZE2012612A31BIEFEZ
8 2R HARR B E 1081l -

AAREEENEZE2012F12HA31H IEF
EEm B A 10/3R B I n R K254 A% -
ARARERRNEERFRBEFTAS i
SfE o
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
for the year ended 31 December 2012 is based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of RMB726,214,000 (2011: RMB941,628,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,880,000,000 (2011: 2,880,000,000, as restated) in issue
during the year, as adjusted to reflect the bonus issue during
the year (note 30).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 December
2012 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding during the current year had no dilutive
effect on the basic earnings per share amount presented in
the current year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 December
2011 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the warrants
outstanding during the prior year had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic earnings per share amount presented in the prior
year.

13. 7 2 &) 4 @ £ 8 \ A & ik

% Al

HE2012F12A31HIEFENBRER
B CBENERARNBIEEEB ARESF
A FE A R #726,214,0007T (20114 :
AR #941,628,0007T) R F AL BT E R
A% hn#E 37 5 £r2,880,000,0000% (20114 :
2,880,000,0008% * £ &%) 515 - WAL R
LA R BREF QB ITAT AL 2 S22 (FT3E30) ©

HAREZE2012612A31 B L FE R ERT
FEERESRNEE2INEREREZT
BN EECE U E - M EERAFERZ
P FREARBFIEL AR

BRREZE2011F12 431 B IEFE AR ARTT
FRREZHEFL2INEREARTE
HARBENE W EHREFEY
B ZRRE AR R FIE L FHEE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

14. W% - K BE X

i

GROUP & &
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELTH HE BR-£E
REF MEEE RELERE RE HRIB @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBTT ARBT T ARBT T ARBTTT ARBT T
31 December 2012 2012%12A318
At 1 January 2012: 201261818
Cost AR 5,820 3,726 24,824 43,083 170,193 247,646
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (2,179) (1,948) (13,507) (22,822) - (40,456)
Net carrying amount HRE S8 3,641 1,778 11,317 20,261 170,193 207,190
At 1 January 2012, net of 201251 A18 « Mk
accumulated depreciation 2EITE 3,641 1,778 11,317 20,261 170,193 207,190
Additions NE 710 439 2,888 1,145 5,745 10,927
Depreciation provided during FRFRONE
the year (287) (508) (3,210) (5,364) - (9,369)
Disposal HE (1,991) (226) (1,699) (324) - (4,240)
At 31 December 2012, net of R20124 128318 Mk
accumulated depreciation ZiE 2,073 1,483 9,296 15,718 175,938 204,508
At 31 December 2012: R2012F12A31H ¢
Cost A 4,431 3,690 25,129 43,836 175,938 253,024
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,358) (2,207) (15,833) (28,118) - (48,516)
Net carrying amount BREFRE 2,073 1,483 9,296 15,718 175,938 204,508
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. W%~ BB ka0
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
GROUP (Continued) A EE (g)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and office Motor Construction
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELH HE i %8
RiEF NEEE  RBAERE AE TEREIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TT

31 December 2011 20115124318
At 1 January 2011: R2011E1A18 :
Cost AR 4,963 2,826 15,347 28,202 159,362 210,720
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (1,736) (1,086) (9,752) (16,758) - (29,332)
Net carrying amount HREFE 3,227 1,740 5,595 11,464 159,362 181,388
At 1 January 2011, net of 20111 A18 - Bk
accumulated depreciation 2iE 3,207 1,740 5,595 11,464 159,362 181,388
Additions RE 1,439 900 11,014 14,861 10,831 39,045
Depreciation provided during FRFRONE
the year (443) (862) (3,969) (6,064) - (11,332)
Disposal e (582) - (1,329) - - (1,911)
At 31 December 2011, net of 2011124318 « 1k
accumulated depreciation ZiE 3,641 1,778 11,317 20,261 170,193 207,190
At 31 December 2011: R20114E128318
Cost A 5,820 3,726 24,824 43,083 170,193 247 646
Accumulated depreciation i E (2,179) (1,948) (13,507) (22,822) - (40,456)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,641 1,778 11,317 20,261 170,193 207,190

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings included above X FTEiER) AL B E + i M AE F 1567 A
are situated in Mainland China and are held under long term B K[ Wiz REFHERFAH °
leases.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. W¥ - B & fii (o)

COMPANY AN T
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEME B #E
£ RBLERE AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
31 December 2012 201251248318
At 1 January 2012: R2012%1 418
Cost KA 1,256 50 3,697 5,003
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (455) ) (650) (1,114)
Net carrying amount R 801 41 3,047 3,889
At 1 January 2012, net of R201261 818 - 1%
accumulated depreciation ZEtE 801 M 3,047 3,889
Depreciation provided during the year FRzHRA T E (404) (10) (758) (1,172)
At 31 December 2012, net of R®2012612A318 - ik
accumulated depreciation 2EHE 397 31 2,289 2,117
At 31 December 2012: R2012%128318 :
Cost PR 1,256 50 3,697 5,003
Accumulated depreciation e (859) (19) (1,408) (2,286)
Net carrying amount HREEEE 397 31 2,289 2,717
31 December 2011 201151248318
At 1 January 2011: R2011E1A18
Cost KA 1,167 - - 1,167
Accumulated depreciation 2EE - - - -
Net carrying amount R 1,167 - - 1,167
At 1 January 2011, net of R2011E1 18 1k
accumulated depreciation 2EtE 1,167 - - 1,167
Additions NE 89 50 3,697 3,836
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERHEA T E (455) ) (650) (1,114)
At 31 December 2011, net of R2011E128318 Mk
accumulated depreciation ZEtE 801 M 3,047 3,889
At 31 December 2011: R2011E128318 :
Cost KA 1,256 50 3,607 5,003
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (455) o) (650) (1,114)
Net carrying amount RS 801 M 3,047 3,889
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. &K&W ¥

GROUP A 5
Under
Completed construction Total
B%T T At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARBTTT AR T T
Carrying amount at R201141 B1 B EREEE
1 January 2011 2,483,400 407,347 2,890,747
Additions NE 6,273 147,299 153,572
Transfer to completed EE S ER
properties held for sale W TYE (31,111) = (31,111)
Transfer from prepaid ERAEMN LA
land lease payments - 27,210 27,210
Disposal k- (73,698) - (73,6998)
Transfers R 170,927 (170,927) -
Net gains from fair value NAEFARNEFE
adjustments 34,109 444,071 478,180
Carrying amount at R2011412831H &
31 December 2011 and 2012F1 H1BH
1 January 2012 AREE 2,589,900 855,000 3,444,900
Additions NE 154,301 182,791 337,092
Disposal HE (6,506) - (6,506)
Transfers 23 257,705 (257,705) -
Net gains/(losses) from fair AREABFHE,
value adjustments (B8) 58 (232,300) 99,914 (132,386)
Carrying amount at R2012412A31 H &Y
31 December 2012 AREE 2,763,100 880,000 3,643,100
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China and are held under the following lease terms:

15. % &Y% =)

AREBNREYEDMUN T BARE  WIR
THEBEA

Group

KE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
Long term leases REAFEE 202,600 176,400
Medium term leases FREEE 3,440,500 3,268,500
3,643,100 3,444,900

The Group’s completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were revalued on
31 December 2012 by DTZ Debentam Tie Leung Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open
market, existing use basis.

At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s completed
investment properties of RMB2,847,561,000 (2011:
RMB1,744,000,000), were pledged to banks to secure the
loans granted to the Group (note 27).

The Group’s completed investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 37(a).

AEENERTREERTEEREYE
EEBYEXEERHEMEERITER
AAEIR2012F 12 831 BIZR AR BRI TE
REES -

R2012F12R318 A& B HE TEEA
AR #2,847,561,0007T (20114F : A R &
1,744,000,0007C) 2% TR E WS K
WY RITIERARNEEERE FAER (F
FE27) ©

AEBENERIREMERBLLHEE
HEFE=7 ESHMEFBHNMT
37(a) °
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. 78 1 + s Hl 2

Group
rE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARET T
Carrying amount at beginning of year ~ FE{IERE & 58 1,101,820 1,012,685
Additions during the year FARNE 129,317 424,631
Amortised during the year F N (19,319) (20,582)
Transfer from prepayments for a4 B W RS - TR R
acquisition for land - 170,566
Transfer to properties under RS EYE
development (354,727) (458,270)
Transfer to investment properties EREEEKEYHE
under construction - (27,210)
Carrying amount at end of year FREA TR 857,091 1,101,820
Current portion BN EAEE 2 (420,000) (657,946)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 7 437,091 443,874
The Group’s leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and AEBAE LR B ARE WiE R
is held under the following lease terms: FIFHERFS A -
Group
rE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
Long term leases KEAEE 634,962 872,785
Medium term leases hHHEE 222,129 229,035

857,091 1,101,820
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16.

17.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. #ft L Ml & (=)
(Continued)
Included in the Group’s non-current balance of prepaid land AEBENBEMN I MBSHNIENBHLELE
lease payments is a parcel of land for property development FE—BEMERZEIE B A i - M20124
project in an amount of RMB437,091,000 as at 31 12 A31H #) & 8 & A K #437,091,0007T
December 2012 (2011: RMB443,874,000) in connection with (20114 : AR#£443,874,0007T) * Jii8 &
which the Group has experienced delays in commencing Hz TR DR R & T EE BHAEE
construction due to the uncertainty over the plot ratio of the /O b T 38 B 3T - AL /EZZE W SRR B
land. As at the date of approval of these financial statements, H AEEERRBABEHEEEEIME
the Group has begun the application process for the permits SKEET ] 35 - AN S [ 3P 4 R JE 2B 1 L
required to commence the construction of the relevant W21 g th B 4 P A (F r] 5 58 A ok 4 L
project, and the Group has not received from the local land HRERMEE AT B EERNSI K AR
bureau any warning notice or been subject to any penalties AEBERBESEFFARIIZE THE
in the nature of idle land fees for its delay in commencing EHBEHMBTAIENEBEFE BEM
construction. As the Group has begun the application EZEVBEHRRBS NRAREERAED
process for the permits required for the commencement of AMZ T IR EE T E B B iR
construction of the relevant project in accordance with the U B 3 445 o
normal procedures, the directors of the Company consider
that no provision for idle land fees or land forfeiture regarding
the land is required up to the date of approval of these
financial statements.
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. M B A Bk &
Company
PN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Unlisted shares, at cost i AR _E A - FRAK AR 1 1

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in
the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of
RMB4,108,959,000 (2011: RMBS,600,821,000) and
RMB261,376,000 (2011: RMB112,641,000), respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The loan
to a subsidiary of RMB30,797,000 as at 31 December 2011
bore interest at a rate of 6.48% per annum and matured in
2012.

W REMHEB RN ED A
AARMARBEERRBDAGBAR
#4,108,959,0007T (20114F : AR ¥
3,600,821,0007T ) & A & 261,376,000
T (20114 : AR #112,641,0007T) ' #%
ERBERERR 2ERAEARERKE
BoN2011E1I2AIBA THBATNE
KA R #30,797,0007T 1% £ | R6.48%51
B 2012 F 8 -
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(Continued)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

17. B 2 5 /% & (s

TEMBARNFBIIEHMT

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and paid up Equity interest
registration share/registered attributable to
Company name and operations capital the Company Principal activities
BRI/ EBTR
BRI ES BRRE/ NG
NCET o3t 2 R AEE FEfa I TEEH
Direct Indirect
=k B
Xiamen Yaozhou Real Estate Development The PRC RMB10,800,000 = 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. ** (Note)
ERENEREREERAR (FE) H AR#10,800,0007C - 100% MR
Xiamen Gangyi Real Estate Marketing Agent The PRC HK$5,000,000 = 100% Marketing
Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EMEEREE HREARA A (M) H 7 85,000,0007C - 100% 21
Xiamen Yuzhou Commercial Investment & The PRC HK$5,000,000 - 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. ** (Note)
EMBNEEREERARA A (M) HE 715,000,007 - 100% MEERE
Xiamen Diyuan Bonded Storage and The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 98% Property development
Distribution Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EMSETRREERRAR () HE AR¥20,000,0007T - 98% NER%E
Xiamen Kim International Realty Development The PRC US$113,600,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. ** (Note)
EFeERESRRERAR (F3) HE 113,600,0005 . - 100% Lk
Xiamen Richville Development Ltd. *# (Note) The PRC US$55,000,000 — 100% Property development
EFMEERIEREERAR (F:T) HE 55,000,000% 7 - 100% NERE
Xiamen Gangyi Real-Estate Co., Ltd. ** (Note) The PRC RMB160,000,000 = 100% Property development
EFBRERERAF" (M) HE AR ¥160,000,0007 - 100% MR
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. 7 W B 2 5 i & (a0
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBRAMFFHESIEDT : (8)
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and paid up Equity interest
registration share/registered attributable to
Company name and operations capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ EETR
HMREE HEREK/ NG|
ARER o3t B HEMBRAEE FE{5 R A8 TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Xiamen Fengzhou Real-Estate Co., Ltd.™ (Note) The PRC HK$18,000,000 = 60% Property development
EFRENEXERAF (M) H 7518,000,0007C - 60% MERE
Xiamen Yuzhou Hotel Invest & Manage The PRC RMB400,000,000 = 100% Hotel operation
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
EMBNBEREERERA A (Fiz) HE AR %400,000,00070 - 100% BERE
Xiamen Yuzhou Group Realty Invest Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB1,500,000,000 - 100% Property development
(Note)
EFBNEEnEREBRA R (M) H AR #1,500,000,0007T - 100% MERE
Xiamen Skyplaz Realty & Development Co., Ltd. * The PRC US$25,000,000 - 100% Property development
(Note)
EMEXREHEREERAR (FE) H 25,000,000 75 - 100% MR
Hefei Yuzhou Real Estate Development The PRC US$90,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. ** (Note)
AEBNEEREERAR (F) 0 90,000,000% 75 - 100% MERE
Xiamen Huagjiao City Real Estate Co., Ltd. * (Note) ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100% Property development
EMZEBREHEREERAR" (F) HE AR #20,000,0007 - 100% ELEES
Anhui Overseas Gity Construction & The PRC US$3,000,000 - 100% Property investment

Development Co., Ltd. *# (Note)
ZHEGHEXERAERAR" (F:E) H 3,000,000 7% - 100% mERE
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(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. B 2 5 /% & (s

TEMBRARNFEBIIENT : (&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and paid up Equity interest
registration share/registered attributable to
Company name and operations capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ EBTR
kg BEREK/ LN
DRER iopioks AR AEE FEfh I TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Xiamen Yuzhou Group Ltd. *® (Note) The PRC RMB116,064,000 = 100% Property investment
EMsMEERBBRAR® (fiz) HE AR116,084,0007T - 100% NERE
Shanghai Kangtai Real Estate Development The PRC RMB30,000,000 = 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
TERRRHEREFRAR (F) HE AR#30,000,0007 - 100% MR
Shanghai Jinyue Real Estate Development The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
rEeREwEREARAR® (FT) HE A& %100,000,00070 - 100% MERE
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate Investment Co. *@ The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
(Note)
HEgNEEREERAR (Fi) HE AR 100,000,007 - 100% ESES
Shanghai Yanhai Real Estate Development The PRC RMB48,450,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *@ (Note)
HERERNERELEAEREERA® HE AR 48,450,007 - 100% NERE
(BzE)
Shanghai Liyade Property Investment Co., Ltd. *® The PRC RMB42,000,000 - 100% Property development
(Note)
FENESREEZBRAAC (Fiz) HE AR F42,000,0007T - 100% MER%E
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. 7 W B 2 5 i & (a0
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARMFEINELT : (&)
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and paid up Equity interest
registration share/registered attributable to
Company name and operations capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ EBTR
B E HEREK/ LN
ARER iopioks AR AEE B I TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Shanghai Yuzhou Hotel Management Co., Ltd. *© The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Hotel management
(Note)
FEBMEEERERAR® (fiz) HE AR #2,000,0007 - 100% EEER
Xiamen Huagiao City Real Estate Management The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property management
Senvice Co., Ltd. “@ (Note)
EMEBHNEE2REBRARC (M) HE AR 10,000,007 - 100% NEER
Xiamen Yuzhou Property Development The PRC RMB23,600,000 = 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *®(Note)
EMBNEHEREERAR® () H AR #23,600,0007 - 100% MERE
Fujian Yingfeng Real Estate Investment The PRC RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property investment
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
RERYHERERRARC (i) H AR¥50,000,0007 - 100% NERE
Fujian Big World Huaxia Real Estate Development The PRC RMB40,000,000 = 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
BEAEREERMEERDAC (Fz) HE A K #40,000,0007T - 100% MERE
Fujian Wanlong Property Management The PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100% Property management

Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
RESENEERRBERAR® (M) HE A #5,000,0007 - 100% NEERE
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. 7 W8 2 5 i & (a0
(Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARMFEIELT - (&)
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and paid up Equity interest
registration share/registered attributable to
Company name and operations capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ EBTR
EYE S BEREK/ LN
ARER o3t 2 AR AEE FE{5 R A8 TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Hefei Ludong Real Estate Development The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
AREEREHEREEREERA (M) HE AR #:80,000,0007 - 100% NERE
Hefei Kangli Realty Co., Ltd. *® (Note) The PRC RMB10,080,000 = 100% Property development
AETRBERAR AR (M) HE AR¥10,080,0007 - 100% MERE
Goastal Greenland Development (Fujian) The PRC US$10,000,000 - 60% Property development
Limited ** (Note)
WEREREERE (BR)BRAR (M) HE 10,000,000 7T - 60% MER%E
Xiamen Shunzhou Real Estate Development The PRC RMB300,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EFRNEEREERAR (K5) H AK#300,000,0007 - 100% NEFE
Xiamen Yuzhou Seaview Property Development The PRC RMB1,200,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
EfglERREERRAR® (Hiz) H AR #1,200,000,00070 - 100% MERE
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate Development The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development

Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
HEsNEwERZEERA R (M) A AR 100,000,007 - 100% MERE
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. W B A 8 B & & ()

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBARMNFBINEINT : (B)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and paid up Equity interest
registration share/registered attributable to
Company name and operations capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ EETR
HMREE HEREK/ NG|
ARER o3t B HEMBRAEE FE{5 R A8 TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Shanghai Nankai Realty Development Ltd. *® (Note) ~ The PRC RMB90,000,000 - 100% Property development
LEEAEXERARARC (i) HE AR 90,000,007 - 100% EES
Shanghai Kangyi Real Estate Development The PRC RMB48,714,300 = 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
FRREEEREERAR® (FF) HE ARE48,714,3007 - 100% MERE
Yuzhou Properties (Beijing) Co., Ltd. *® (Note) The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
BMEERERDE® (M) HE AR H100,000,0007 - 100% MERE
Yuzhou Properties (Quanzhou) Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB150,000,000 - 100% Property development
(Note)
BMEFEMERRR® (M) H AR 150,000,007 - 100% MERE
Xin Yi Fang Tian (Quanzhou) Construction The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Trading of building
Materials Co., Ltd. ** (Note) materials
HEAREMBENRERAR" (i) HE AR #10,000,0007C - 100% EBERENH
Tianjin Yuzhou Jinhai Real Estate Investment The PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Property development
Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
RESNZEHEREER AR (M) HE AR #200,000,0007 - 100% MERE
Xiamen Xiang'anwan Baseball and Softball The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 76.25% Property development
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. *® (Note)
EFAREREREXREARAFC ()  +E AR#10,000,0007 - 76.25% MERE
Xiamen Gangyi communication Co., Ltd * (Note) The PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100% Property development
EFMERRAERAR® (M) HE AR #5,000,0007 - 100% MERE
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. 7 W8 A & /% & (80

(Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARMFEIELT - (&)

(Continued)

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and paid up Equity interest
registration share/registered attributable to
Company name and operations capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ BEETR
kg BERE,/ YN
NGRS 3t 2 AR AEE B R TEER
Direct Indirect
B B

Xiamen Junyu trade Co., Ltd * (Note) The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100% Trading of building

materials

EMEFESERA A (M) i AR #50,000,00070 - 100% EEREMH

Xiamen Xin Cheng Li Da Trading Co., Ltd. *® (Note) The PRC RMB20,000,000 = 100% Trading of building

materials

EFEREEHERR R (i) i AR #20,000,0007 - 100% EBEREMH

Longyan Yuzhou Real Estate Development The PRC RMB500,000,000 = 100% Property development

Co., Ltd. *® (Note)

ERRMEHEREERAF (H) H AR ¥500,000,0007 - 100% VELEE

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member . WIBBBL KGR EBEA KD
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. DR 2 M E MK B R R EZ

t Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the 4 REBEPENEEAMAIEBEE RS-
PRC law.

e Registered as domestic limited liability companies under the o BEFRBEEFM AR BREEAT -
PRC law.

Note: The English names of these companies represent the best fizt: AR ZE AR ARFEMEMERRXH
effort made by management of the Company to directly B EEEX BB OARRRERESRN
translate their Chinese names as they did not register any BEEMEEPXEEMmEE -
official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, EREBIEERE T EHFEXEESE

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results FESHERAEEFEETEROHNAA

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets AB AR -EERAHIEAMME QA
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in HFAER RN LK.

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-

18. 7 — [] 3t [l 4 W1 8 K 1 & &

CONTROLLED ENTITY

Group

A
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARBTT
Share of net assets EihEEFE 2,826 6,000
Loan to a jointly-controlled entity — A FL A2 ) B R 8 B 5K 173,672 151,200
176,498 157,200

The loan to the jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion
of the directors, the loan is considered as quasi-equity

investment in the jointly-controlled entity.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows:

HT HEANERSEER 28
HE. BERBH -ZFF=RE ZERW
RARERZEG BB EREEERE -

HREZEGEREFBNT:

Percentage of

Registered TH&EMEEA
and paid-up Places of Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Company name capital of registration interest power sharing  activity
ARER EMRMERE  EMbE FEEER REE SRR TEEHR
Xiamen Vanke Maluan Bay RMB30,000,000 The PRC 20% 20% 20%  Property
Properties Limited *® (Note) development
EFmENSREER AR%E  PHE 20% 20% 20% MERE
AR (HiE) 30,000,0007T
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member * WIERBBLKEFTMEBKLKE
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. BB 2 E R EMK B ARIERZ
e Registered as a domestic limited liability company under the @ BERBEEEEM AR BRETAR]

PRC law.

Note: The English name of the company represents the best effort
made by management of the Company to directly translate its
Chinese name as it did not register any official English name.

sk - A R R MM ER # XA B
WEEXEBNAANEERENEE
BRER X AEAEH -
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18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entity:

18. 7 — [ 3t [l 42 W1 8 k1 & &
()

TREITAE BRI 85 AR
e

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
Share of the jointly-controlled entity’'s DG L REEHI B A EEKR EE -
assets and liabilities:
Current assets MEEE 378,876 308,400
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,046 =
Current liabilities mENAE (377,096) (302,400)
Net assets BEFE 2,826 6,000
Share of the jointly-controlled DRI EEEE
entity’s result:
Total expense FEAE Y (4,151) =
Tax BiIA 977 -
Loss after tax B2 B 1R (3,174) -
19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. i & ¥ ¥
Group
rE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Properties under development TEERRA LA T AR 38 T /97 25 -
expected to be completed:
Within normal operating cycle BERRBEENATLER
included under current assets HEA 9,391,436 8,345,407
Properties under development expected FBEAR A T B § 48 < E R
to be completed within normal W% T KAl Y E HfE
operating cycle and recoverable:
Within one year —FNR 7,758,706 3,592,386
After one year —Fi& 1,632,730 4,753,021

9,391,436 8,345,407
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19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

20.

(Continued)

The Group’s properties under development are situated in
Mainland China and are held under the following lease terms:

19. £ & W ¥ ()

REBNMBEZYESIR T BALE
Wiz FHNHOFE

Group

RE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Long term leases RHEFE 4 8,277,680 6,364,055
Medium term leases R HEAFE 49 1,113,756 1,981,352
9,391,436 8,345,407

At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s properties
under development of RMB5,823,746,000 (2011:
RMB2,965,126,000) were pledged to banks to secure the
loans granted to the Group (note 27).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located in
Mainland China and are held under the following lease terms:

R2012F12A318  AEBE T A
A R #5,823,746,0007T (20114F : A R &
2,965,126,0007T ) B 7E £ ) 5 B 17 T iR
T UERBETAEEMNER (Kiz27)

20. FFEHEMR TY X

REBFEHENR TYESUNPE KR
BE - WiR TIEARE

Group

rE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Long term leases RHEAFE A 1,025,276 1,215,519
Medium term leases FREAFR A 998,830 814,803
2,024,106 2,030,322

The completed properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

FrVESH & RO MR T W) 1945 Ak AR B A] B 75 )
BEZBREETIR-
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21.

22

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 21. FAfH K~ #% 2 T H At JE Y 7k T
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
X&E N
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETTT ARETR ARETTL
Prepayments IR 283,824 185,506 1,324 819
Deposits and other receivables Be REMEK R 503,924 466,370 590 41
787,748 652,376 1,914 860

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s other receivables as at 31 December
2012 are amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
of the Group’s subsidiaries of RMB14,178,000 (2011:
RMB14,293,000). The balances with the non-controlling
shareholders are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

PR BEEMREARIORE  BER LS
PR B 2 BT HANY B R R B Y FE UL
HBR-

REBP2012512 31 B Hy E b B UL /B
BIEREWAEENE QR FIEIE R R A
RIE B AR #14,178,0007T (20114F : A
R#14,293,0007T ) ° ELIEIEAZ A% R A &5 84
BIEESHE EER 28 HEETE
/TAE/HH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. e kB LEFHY
Group Company
AxEE VNG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETH
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEER 3,728,617 1,956,537 676,140 13,635
Less: Restricted cash (notes) W XRERS (K (398,192) (516,159) - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 3,330,425 1,440,378 676,140 13,635
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily SRITTF AR IE S B IR 1T17 30 F R4 02 B
bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and A B o fﬁi&i@@%fﬁ%ﬂ’\]ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁi
cash equivalents approximate to their fair values. ERARERE
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB2,758,959,000 (2011: RMB1,916,520,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Notes:

(@) According to relevant documents issued by the Xiamen
Municipal Land and Housing Administrative Bureau, certain
property management companies of the Group are required
to place part of their management fees received at banks
as guarantee deposits for the public maintenance fund of
the related properties. The deposits can only be used for
the maintenance of the relevant properties. At 31 December
2012, such guarantee deposits amounted to RMB16,103,000
(2011: RMB3,649,000).

(b)  According to the relevant mortgage facility agreements
signed by certain subsidiaries of the Group with their banks,
the subsidiaries are required to place at designated bank
accounts certain amounts as deposits for potential default
of mortgage loans advanced to property purchasers. Such
guarantee deposits will be released after the property
ownership certificates of the relevant properties have been
passed to the bank. As at 31 December 2012, such deposits
amounted to RMB38,531,000 (2011: RMB1,622,000).

(¢)  According to the relevant loan facility agreements signed
by certain subsidiaries of the Group with the banks, the
subsidiaries are required to place the pre-sale proceeds of
their properties at designated bank accounts. The deposits
can only be used for the payment of property development
cost incurred by the subsidiaries and the repayment of the
relevant loans. As at 31 December 2012, such deposits
amounted to RMB210,228,000 (2011: RMB274,488,000).

(d)  Certain subsidiaries of the Group are required to place certain
amounts at specific bank accounts as guarantee deposits for
the use of the loan proceeds. As at 31 December 2012, the
aggregate amount of such deposits was RMB133,330,000
(2011: RMB236,400,000).

2. Be kB 2FED =)

RNBREHEERE AEENE S
RBETEHUARBTFE BAR
#2,758,959,0007T (20115 : AR
1,916,520,0007T) ° A R#& Al B | 4 i
REAM T AT AR IR B K RE Y SN EE
BRI R AERE  EERNEFTERT -
INER B B i i 1T NP TS RO SR
THARBHBEHMEK -

fif i

@ WREEMATIHWEEEEREMNAERS
X AEBETYEETEARBEBIES
HFEMNEREBETARIT EABED
¥AHBEESHERES - ZSERE
A ARG B0 45 - R2012F 12 A
318 ' ZEEREE B AR16,103,000
7 (20114 : AR #3,649,0007T ) °

() WBEAEEETHBRAREHERFITEE
AR IBRE s XS B R AAR
ETHENRBATEAKEERTEREL £
AMEE XA REER I MIRITIRIBER
WiRE - ZSHEFREEBENEBVENE
ERR TRITET O] B o R20124F12
A318 %% k4e A ARES38,531,0007T
(20114 : AR#1,622,0007T) °

) BEAEBETHBARESEITER
WEBERRE RS SWBAREAR
B EYENTEE B RIBTRIERETE
TERFR -EETRERRAEFBNE
ARAEEMNMERERAREER B
B R R2012F12A31H  ZEFR 5
A R #210,228,0007 (20114 : AR ¥
274,488,0007T ) °

@ AEENETHERRNEREERT
IRETFEAETSBIERERIES - LR
EREIERR - R201256F12831H %%
% ¢ 45 A A R #133,330,0007T (2011
& : AR#236,400,0007T) °
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23.

24.

2.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 23.

Receipts in advance represented amounts received from
buyers in connection with the pre-sale of properties during
the year.

TRADE PAYABLES 24.

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

LN

1§

BRHBERFAR RBEVEMAE T

Y B B 3R

I o

B 5 M AF 5k A
IRIEE R A RS HR A R O E 5

FERTSRIRHI BRER D AT LA T

Group

rEH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
Due within 1 year or on demand 1FERNRBREREFEE 1,767,382 1,333,536
Due within 1 to 2 years 122FNAEE 224,694 585,309
1,992,076 1,918,845

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.
The carrying amounts of these balances approximate to their
fair values.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BEHRNRAESTHBREBER -ZEH
BOEESEREEANERE -

25. H il & 1 5% TH R JE & &

Group Company
A& VNG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETxH
Accruals [E5T & 91,547 57,698 882 =
Other payables H {115 58 286,522 520,844 80,933 48,023
378,069 578,542 81,815 48,023
The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals HMEM AR ETERNERSEEE
approximate to their fair values. RNAERE -
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26.

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s other payables as at 31 December
2012 are amounts due to the non-controlling shareholders
of the Group’s subsidiaries of RMB6,084,000 (2011:
RMB6,084,000). The balances with the non-controlling
shareholders are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2.

26.

St M8 AT K TE K HE G A
()

&

REER2012F12 A31 B K E M B (S 50IA
BIERENAS BB QT8 IEE AR AR R &
RIE - A AR #6,084,0007T (20114 : A
R #6,084,0007T) © £ 3F 122 A% Ak 51 A4 45 4
BEEZUHE EER 2 HLEETEE
FEH -

cRmELR

Group and Company

AEBRARDT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Assets EE
Call Options R 15,078 =

In October 2012, the Company issued 11.75% senior notes
(the “2012 Senior Notes”) with an aggregate principal value
of US$250,000,000 (approximately RMB1,575,000,000). The
Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of the
2012 Senior Notes (the “Call Options”) at any time prior to
the maturity date at the redemption price (principal amount
plus applicable premium) plus accrued and unpaid interest
up to the redemption date. Further details of the 2012 Senior
Notes are detailed in note 27(e) to the financial statements.

M2012F10R " NRARBETAR S
#{E250,000,000% T (4 AR
1,575,000,0007T ) H)11.75% & %& F &
(T2012FBARE]) - AARIAEREIA
RIBER ARE BB (BN AR @A = E)
MEEEE R B H /- m A F B BIE
fE B 2 3 2B p2012F B A 2K ([REBE
HE]) o 2012F B ZIE 23— LB IR
IS KM 27 (e) M it -
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. € #f fir & T B (9

(Continued)
Group and Company
AEBERAAT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARBTT
Liabilities =K
Warrants RIIEE - 543
In 2011, the Company issued 72,000,000 warrants at a price R2011FE - RNRA R IR T RREE B
of HK$0.01 per warrant to certain independent third parties. 0.017TM & FH/ILEE = J5 3 4772,000,000
Each warrant carries the right to subscribe for one ordinary DRIRIETE - BHRRIEE AN HEEF 8
share at a price of HK$2.82 per share for a period of 12 ETHHRE12(8 A A RNERGRAEE
months commencing from the date of issue. The warrants 2RTTRE—REBER RBRESTNFER
were expired during the year. &R
e 4= A X B AR
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27. st BRAT B K H b 1§ &
OTHER BORROWINGS
Group
AEE
2012 2011
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’'000
BHAIE(%) A AR¥TR  EBEF=E) 28 E ARETTT
Current B
Bank loans - unsecured BOER—EER 3.89 - 8.31 2013 174,822 3.00-7.74 2012 243,073
Bank loans - secured ROTEF-FEA 6.15 - 8.65 2013 1,110,267 5.64 - 8.31 2012 592,138
Other loans - unsecured HEH—EER - - - 12.00-16.00 2012 200,000
Other loans - secured Hin &R —FER 10.00 - 13.50 2013 1,193,923 8.30 2012 300,000
2,479,012 1,335,211
Non-current FEBN
Bank loans - unsecured BOER—EER 831  2014-2015 380,000 564-7.04  2013-2014 500,000
Bank loans - secured BIER-BER 6.40-832 2014 -2023 1,707,683 540-846  2013-2023 1,699,850
Other loans - unsecured HEH—EKH 9.50-16.00  2015-2017 2,942,536 14.71 2015 1,211,259
Other loans - secured EER—FER - - - 10.00 2013 810,438
5,030,219 4,221,547

7,509,231 5,666,758
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27. BT BEHR K H b5 B
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) (%)
Company
KT
2012 2011
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RVB'000
BRAIE(%) A AR®ETR BRI (%) Epail= ARETT
Current k0]
Bank loans - unsecured ROTER-BER - - - 3.00 2012 85,777
Other loans - secured HinER—HER 10.00 2013 803,923 - - -
803,923 85,777
Non-current FEEN
Other loans - unsecured HiEH—EHKH 1243-1471  2015-2017 2,728,036 14.71 2015 1,211,259
Other loans - secured EER—FER - - - 10.00 2013 810,438
2,728,036 2,021,697
3,531,959 2,107,474
Group Company
PN | NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT AR®TF R AREFTL
Analysed into: AT :
Bank loans repayable: REERTERMER :
Within one year or on demand INEANET B 1,285,089 835,211 - 85,777
In the second year RE2E 1,090,913 712,948 - =
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RESFEESF
(BEEEME) 811,864 1,220,400 - =
Beyond five years 5F 1% 184,906 266,502 - -
3,372,772 3,035,061 - 85,777
Other loans repayable: BEBEMERREBR
Within one year or on demand MERREE K 1,193,923 500,000 803,923 -
In the second year RE2F - 810,438 - 810,438
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REIFEEFHF
(REEEME) 2,942,536 1,211,259 2,728,036 1,211,259
4,136,459 2,521,697 3,531,959 2,021,697
7,509,231 5,556,758 3,531,959 2,107,474
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are
secured or guaranteed by:

M

(i)

)

(iv)

mortgages over the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying value at
the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB5,823,746,000 (2011: RMB2,965,126,000);

pledges over the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying value at the end
of the reporting period of approximately
RMB2,847,561,000 (2011: RMB1,744,000,000);

corporate guarantees executed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group to the extent of
RMB1,229,822,000 (2011: RMB856,400,000);

joint and several personal guarantees executed
by Mr. Lam Lung On (“Mr. Lam”) and Ms. Kwok
Ying Lan (“Ms. Kwok”), directors of the Company,
to the extent of RMB953,923,000 as at 31
December 2012 (2011: RMB960,438,000); and

a corporate guarantee executed by Xiamen
Zongheng Group Construction and Development
Company Limited (“Zongheng Co.”), to the extent
of RMB129,822,000 as at 31 December 2012
(2011: RMB12,000,000). Zongheng Co. is a
company controlled by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

27.

BB AT 58 2K R 3 1 18 8

(%

f)

(@)

AEENETRITERMAEMESR
TR AN 7 NI s P2 1R -

U)

(i

)

(v)

AEBAREBEALER
B RELENAEARE
5,823,746,0007C (20114F : A
R #2,965,126,0007T ) # 7£ 12
VI RIRTB

AREEBEBRBSEBHMBEER
B RERAENEARK
2,847,561,0007T (20114F : A
R #1,744,000,0007T ) B 1% &
VIR E R

AEEETHBAREZEZENS
A AR #1,229,822,0007T
(20114 : A R #856,400,000
TT) B A R ER

MR2012F12 318 AR Al &
EMBELEE([MEELE]D R
BEFLZT ([Frt+])EE
# & 58 A ARK953,923,0007T
(20114 : A R #960,438,000
JC) By [E R AE R E AR K

EFftEEERSRAZEERA
A ([#e =2 A ) 2012512
ABIRZENESHEAARE
129,822,0007T (20114 : AR
#512,000,0007T ) H) 2 & HELR °
HiE A E A —E B E L R
TR AF
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

(@)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are
secured or guaranteed by: (Continued)

(vi)

In July 2010, the Company issued and sold
bonds with a face value of HK$700 million
(approximately RMB594,985,000) to China Life
Trustee Limited (“China Life”). The Company
issued and sold an additional tranche of
bonds, with a face value of HK$300 million
(approximately RMB254,994,000), to China Life
in November 2010 (collectively the “China Life
Bonds”). The China Life Bonds are guaranteed
by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok. The China Life Bonds
have a term of three years and bear an interest
rate of 10% per annum. Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok
collectively pledged an aggregate of 604,800,000
shares in the Company held by them as security
for the punctual payment of all sums payable
under the China Life Bonds. Under the terms and
conditions of the China Life Bonds, Mr. Lam and
Ms. Kwok shall collectively maintain an ultimate
beneficial shareholding of not less than 51% in
aggregate of the total issued share capital of the
Company.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings with
carrying amounts of RMB3,847,449,000 (2011:

RMBS,386,965,000),

RMB902,977,000 (2011:

RMB810,438,000) and RMB2,758,805,000 (2011:
RMB1,359,355,000) are denominated in RMB, Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars, respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings

approximate to their fair values.

27. st BRATH AR R H At s B

(
(@)

(b)

Sl

)

AEENETRITERREMEES
Tyl AT MK ER: ()

(vi) AR BIR2010%7 A\ FE A
SETARAR([FE])E
77 % S5 B % 700,000,000
7T (49 A\ R #5594,985,0007T )
HE% W HR20105F11 A B X
MASBETRHEE—HEE
75 #300,000,0007T (A R #E
254,994,0007T ) K (& % (£ 78
[RHES]) -hSEHFHME
ERBLTRBER A=F
HAE 5 00 12 6 F =10%:T B ©
A R Eh 2 - HE B LA AT
AH)A $£604,800,0008% 2 2 7]
B IEIRVE BIR T AR 25
hEEFTHMERENRE:
RIS EHF IR R
W‘ai&%ﬂﬁziﬁ#&ﬂ%hﬂi
NAZHEBEITRAFE ER
DRI NH R ERIFRE -

rEBEREEDE2BAEAREK
3,847,449,0007T (20114 : A
R #3,386,965,0007L) * A R
#902,977,0007t (20114 = A
R #810,438,0007T) & A R #&
2,758,805,0007T (20114 : A R#&
1,359,355,0007T ) HIR1T R EMEE
TR RIAARE - B¥E REITTFHE

AEEEFRNEOEBEEEQAARE
HE -
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

28.

(d)

In December 2010, the Company issued 13.5%
senior notes (the “2010 Senior Notes”) with an
aggregate principal value of US$200,000,000
(approximately RMB1,317,467,000). The net proceeds,
after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$191,669,000 (approximately
RMB1,261,267,000). The 2010 Senior Notes will
mature on 15 December 2015. The Company, at its
option, can redeem all or a portion of the 2010 Senior
Notes at any time prior to the maturity date at the
redemption price (principal amount plus applicable
premium) plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the
redemption date.

In October 2012, the Company issued the 2012
Senior Notes with an aggregate principal value of
US$250,000,000 (approximately RMB1,575,000,000).
The net proceeds, after deducting the issuance
costs, amounted to approximately US$243,790,000
(approximately RMB1,535,877,000). The 2012 Senior
Notes will mature on 25 October 2017.

27. st R MAT B AR Kb &

RNAAK2010F128 %17 A &
#2 fE200,000,0003% T (#J A R #&
1,317,467,0007C ) M13.5% & %
ZH (20100 BEAREK]) - &
NMBRBETERAERNMESRIEBTE
#)/191,669,000% 7t (KA R #&
1,261,267,0007T) ° 20104 /& %&£ =
B A5 R20166 12158 B Hf - AR
A A]fE 2 Bf B pipERy ABE B (E (BN
SEEMERGE) MEZEER A K
FERT M AR AT FI B BY IS E 2] & 3P =k 3B
192010 B 5L K -

MR2012F12H A RAREITA S
4 {8250,000,0003% Jt (#) A R ¥
1,575,000,0007T ) #J20124F (& %&£ &
IR KRBT B RENERIEF
B8 #9 /5243,790,0003% 7T (4 A R
1,585,877,0007T ) ° 2012 18 £ &
B R2017510 8258 2 8 -

PROVISION FOR LAND 28. + b # H B A
APPRECIATION TAX
Group
rE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARET T
At 1 January M1 A1R 1,169,594 776,741
Charged to the consolidated income FARERE W &R
statement during the year (note 10) (HI5E10) 377,297 528,595
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBEEE (240,912) =
Payment for the year FEMNK (386,464) (135,742)
At 31 December W12 H31H 919,515 1,169,594
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28. PROVISION FOR LLAND 28. L b B {5 B85 e (s

APPRECIATION TAX (Continued)

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT (% A R H A0 £ i 12 B H 17
1&5) effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT (R #E AR HERME + 8 EH GTIEGIE
4R 81| ) effective from 27 January 1995, all gains arising from
the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings
and their attached facilities in Mainland China are subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, with an exemption provided for the sale
of ordinary residential properties (& BIZ%E(FE) if their
appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the
total deductible items.

The Group has estimated, made and included in taxation
a provision for LAT according to the requirements set forth
in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis
on which the provision for LAT is calculated.

RIZFE1994%1 B1BBRAEMA (hEAR
FHANE A IS EREITIER) & E1995F
1H27 AR AR (R EE A KRB £ i
REHETEAERAR) WRE £
BIAPEL Bk ERA T RAE EF
REMGREELENERE  BiZN T
1A E(ERIS0% E60%H R i T K& M 1
HIZER  SEEBETBBEHAI B
JHEB @BMr20% Al BEEFENHEE
A EA G S A = b 3R (B o

AREE D ARBEMEE T EREABERPTE
MIE - AR FE RERBEAR A Li1g
ENEE BRI EERAGASD
ERBERERTIR ARBEREE M
BEE R TRAEAKEFE LR E
Ty R

29. DEFERRED TAX 20. % %t Bl
Net deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the RERE M IEAR R R R R AR LT I &
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: REEFEEET
Group
E
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREF T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in ~ FA4R & B AR L R R #E R A
the consolidated statement of IR I8 & BT 58
financial position 226,875 276,421
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE BT HS AR R AR FER Y
the consolidated statement of BRI E R
financial position (538,751) (706,160)
(311,876) (429,739)
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 20.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year are as follows:

ik W BLTE ()

FREEHRREERABNESHNT

Revaluation
Withholding on investment Provision
tax properties of LAT Total
it
BB REWEER W BEHEE Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARBTT AREKTE  ARBTR
At 1 January 2011 ®2011E1 418 (72,444) (470,822) 186,418 (356,848)
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated  FRRA&A WE R A/
income statement during (k%) (BzE10)
the year (note 10) (55,887) (107,007) 90,003 (72,891)
At 31 December 2011 and 20114128318 &
1 January 2012 201241 A18 (128,331) (577,829) 276,421 (429,739)
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated  FRRERA WERT A/
income statement during (f0B%) (PBzE10)
the year (note 10) 128,331 39,078 (49,546) 117,863
At 31 December 2012 20126124315 - (538,751) 226,875 (311,876)

The Group had unutilised tax losses of approximately
RMB321,096,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB263,332,000) that can be carried forward for five years
from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the tax entity in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward only to the extent that the realisation of
related benefits through future taxable profits is probable. The
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets on unutilised
tax losses arising in the PRC of RMB321,096,000 as at
31 December 2012 (2011: RMB263,332,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

REB 2012612 A31B M A B B F 18
BSR4 5 A R #321,096,0007T (20114F :
AR ®263,332,0007T) * 2 EHIBEE A
HEBEEHENFEREERF  NIKHETY
REENHEEERRNERTAE &
EFHTEEERSERBENEE SRR
RERRABERES SRR BEEDN
TR I8 B 18 o B A0 AR SR FI B /9 A B] TEDRI M
R2012F 128318 AEE W RRARE) A
RIEEBEANERRFEEENELEHEE
B A A R%321,096,0007T (20114 : A
R #263,332,0007T) °

IRIBF I SEAERE P B RREK LAY
INE B EMINE B E TR AR B BB R
10%H) TB HIF4 © 5% 45 £ B200841 A1 8 &
AR 2007612 831 B R IEF A A
B R o fis P B K BE EA 5% SN 45 & 2 BT 7E A
EERB BRI BIFEAD B RE(E T X
HMWTEHH Bt ASE AR BBEEF
30 A e X S A BT BB 2 B] 5200841 A1 H #2
ESHAEFNT IR EHRNIBEIFR -
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As 31 December 2012, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary difference
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognized
totally approximately RMB4,030,917,000 as at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB1,283,310,000).

The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities on
withholding tax arising from undistributed profit in Mainland
China as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB1,283,310,000)
as, in the opinion of the directors, it is not probable to
distribute the earnings in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

29, % 1 B IE (@)

R2012F12A31H * WEFL A EE K F K
X BE X S R BB A B FE A A K BB HH & A
(ZEBRTEINTL) FTEE &£ M TR0 iR IR KT
RE-ZEF2RE ZEMBRRNA R
RAKRAIRED IR A B & F - 18201212 B
31H WARBEFRKRENBRARKES
R E b =R TE A B AEL
A AR #4,030,917,0007T (20114F : AR
#1,283,310,0007T ) °

R2012%12 318 » NEE I g A
AEEANARDEF EHERNH (2011
& AR #1,283,310,0007T ) FE 32 4 1 71
HAEE NHAREERAERAIERERT
AAIBED IR FTE & F

AR R R FOR A I8 S 575 B e

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. (2o
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. ik &
SHARES 1 1
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Authorised: SEIE
100,000,000,000 (2011: 100,000,000,0004% (20114 :
100,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 100,000,000,000f% )
HK$0.1 each SRR EES0.17TH
LA 8,813,679 8,813,679
Issued and fully paid: BEEITEERE:
2,880,000,000 (2011: 2,880,000,000% (20114 :
2,400,000,000) ordinary shares 2,400,000,0000% ) &%
of HK$0.1 each H{EB 0.1 B IR 250,918 211,528

During the year, the Company made a bonus issue of
two ordinary shares for every ten existing shares held by
members on the register of members on 13 July 2012,
resulting in the issue of 480,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

There were no transactions involving the Company’s issued
ordinary share capital during the prior year.

ER - ARRQ T AR2012567 B138 £ 51| iR
REMORREST TREEFRDIEE®
B B AR R R ITAI IR B 7T - E B3
#7480,000,0000% & % T 8 & #50.170 /9 IR

{/‘\ ®

REF BESRARADHTEBRRK
RLZR 5
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors and other employees of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 24 May 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of
offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if
earlier.

31. M Mk HE st &1

RNARRAE—EBERER S ([&Ze18l]) -
EEMAREBEB ZKNELERZE
BER2HEEREREREN - ZirElzE
BIRSEEREARAESTRASEEM
B8 - :ZatE8I2010F5 A24 B £ K
FEEUHSIEE] - BRI EZ B B +F
NRFEB R

RIFZ A BIRF AR 2 RTTRBREZ
=8B RITER S RFNAR R MEMR
R i 2 1T 210% ° PAMEA + Z @ A
HER REZTERTEAERZEE
ZIBRAER TRIT RN B RAR
AMEAATRHR 2 BTN 2 1% BB - K i
BULIR $ 2 AF T At BB AL 29 R R IX
BRERAE L4 -

BRYFARRES TTRAHREZREL
BT E AL 2 BRRASE T IE
TEEHAHE N REM+Z@EA
HIRA - MR TAAE E ERRHBEILIE
HITEERRETMHBA T 2EMER
FERBIE AN A BRI B R 2 B 31 TR%150.1%
SARBERE L BBARRRGERTEZ
(B R BB 155,000,0007T » BII BB R D
BREARE EFE#E-

BREBEREZZNANREN R BE
“HNARABARAX N REREEEA
TLR T AR - IR BB 2 TR H TS
HEFEE YRETHERAG kKT
ERBREZN B MES +FXZAAEE
M TEAE (AR FEERE)
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

B M E BT & (s

BREZITEERESET  ETSER
NTz&eE: ((ARAROHRBREE
#) B HIE I R P 2 T (B R (i) AN & R
RERZH YR AER S B ER P
Z U THE

FERAE Y IR TR A MR B AR
RERRZHER -

AT BREAREZ A BIM m RITE 2B
P HE -

2012

Weighted

average
exercise Number of
price options

A3
TEE BREHER

HK$

per share

BRABET

Granted during the year and at REARMKI12A31BIFE
31 December

2.25 36,690,000

No share options were exercised during the year.

RERBEITEREIRE -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. R B (2)

The exercise price and exercise period of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

RmEMRARITE 2 BB ITEER
TTEHREMT :

follows:
2012 2012
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHAR TEE" THEEE

HKS$ per share

BERBE T
14,676,000 2.25 01/01/2016 — 31/12/2022
11,007,000 2.25 01/01/2018 — 31/12/2022
11,007,000 2.25 01/01/2020 — 31/12/2022

*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was RMB9,550,000 (ranged from RMBO0.238 to RMB0.305
each), of which the Group did not recognise share option
expense during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model

© BRETEEARE GBS RE TR
ARERA 2 HAELI S B E -

FARELNEREAABERARK
9,550,0007T (/> F &) A R #0.23870 &
AR H0.30570) " Bhlt - REBREZEZ
T+ A=+ —HLEFEIERER
FERERS

R PSR M BR A A SR R A AL T
BOJ B AR 2 Y 48 2 4 PR AR M0 1
R AT AR - TREBIIFRAER
GEY'E

used:

2012
Dividend vield (%) 1% B K (%) 6.000
Expected volatility (%) T8 BB 1 (%) 30.250
Historical volatility (%) JE 528 18 (%) 30.250
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 [ B2 1) 2 (%) 0.598
Expected life of options (year) BRENMMETE A (F) 10.000

Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IEFEHRE (FRB%T) 2.250
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be
the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
36,690,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 36,690,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of RMB2,950,000 and
share premium of RMB6,600,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 36,690,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.3% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES
(A) GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 146 of the financial statements.

(i) Statutory surplus reserve

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory
surplus reserve were made in accordance with
the relevant PRC rules and regulations and
the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC, and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.

(ii)) Other reserve

Certain amount of goodwill arising on the
acquisition of non-controlling interests was
recognised as other reserve.

31.

32.

B M E BT & (s

BRI A FHAROIR R A RELERMNTT
66 45 132 = T8 HA R 8 S AR JEE SEURY 1 AT AR R R
KBENBRR BIFRLABERER-

HE QA BRI RE BRI R
fio gt o

RBEHR ARAaZAEEBETE
36,690,00017 & I e RIEAT (R - IRIBA R
AR B AN BEITHE M ARITERER
T % 38 BUER 1N EE 7736,690,0000% AN A &) &
PR M EE A RSN AN A R 2,950,0007T K.
f& 1735 B A R #6,600,0007T ( RINFREEST
) e

REERBRREMEZ R KAAFRIHE
36,690,00017 &% a1 &I T T A A 17 £ B8 Ak
- HEREHARRRIDBEITRO B
1.3% °

fif i

(A) A& &M
AEBNAFEIBEFENRHE
TEMEEHIFENAMBFHRERE
146E RO EmEE K-

(i) & & K
BIREB A BB AT RS
{88 7o 18 e B4R B3R B RLR AR
BA B 2k 73 B A BB S0 B
DAMABERBANEL - 3
EEEaNEFRIE-

(i) H A Gk
T M 8 3 4 R A 2 1 2 A 0
TR B WA AL
e
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32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. fik i (a0
(B) COMPANY (B) A& /A 5]
Share Exchange
premium fluctuation Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
ROGER HNERBRE E4y @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ~ ARBTE ARETE ARETR
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1 1R 1,657,057 (74,455) (50,422) 1,532,180
Total comprehensive income  FE2HE R A58
for the year - (74,158) (288,228) (362,386)
Proposed final dividend BRARHR S (77,802) - - (77,802)
At 31 December 2011 and ~ M2011F12A318 K%
1 January 2012 R2012%1 818 1,579,255 (148,613) (338,650)* 1,091,992
Total comprehensive income ~ FE2E R A B8
for the year - (5,932) (314,513) (320,445)
First interim 2012 dividend 2012 5 — )RR IR & (47,186) - - (47,186)
Second interim 2012 ER012FFEZRFHKRE
dividend declared (231,047) - - (231,047)
Bonus issue AN &3 (39,390) - - (39,390)
At 31 December 2012 R2012%12A31H 1,261,632* (154,545) (653,163)* 453,924
2 These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s * ZEREBREIEAQT A HoIR
reserves available for distribution amounting to 7 &% 8 & A R #608,469,0007T
RMB608,469,000 (2011: RMB1,240,605,000). (20114 : A R #1,240,605,000

JT)°
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33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

|

33. & — R KB 2

|

2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBTT

Net assets disposed of: FrhE&EEFE:
Properties under development Y= 83,386 =
Other payables and accruals H b B K ERTE A (14,670) =
68,716 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — &M B A Fl &y Wi 6 11,284 =
80,000 -

Satisfied by: TRAR:

Cash He 80,000 =

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

FRLE—HNBAR RS RRSEE

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: MERALZ DT -
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
Cash consideration HeRE 80,000 =

Cash and bank balances disposed of

P& 2 B & RIRITAEER - -

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary

ERLE—HKEAR.Z
ReRREEEZ
HRA 80,000

34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

34. W W% — [ KB A 6]

In June 2011, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement and a supplemental share transfer agreement with
an independent third party for the acquisition of a 76.25%
equity interest in Xiamen Xiang’anwan Baseball and Softball
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (“Xiang’anwan Co.”) at an
aggregate cash consideration of approximately RMB8.8
million. Up to the date of acquisition, Xian’anwan Co. has
not carried out any significant business transactions. The
acquisition was completed in June 2011 and Xiang’anwan
Co. then became a subsidiary of the Group.

201166 A - REERUBRESRELHA
R #8,800,0007c B E I L B B Bk =
XIREBRAF ([HLERQF])76.25%
BAESR—BBLE= I LRHDE
EERERRNERBZ -BHEWER
H - BN EETEREREBR
5 ZWHE B R2011F6 AEAK - MR &
RAHERAAEENHBEAR-
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35. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group had the following financial guarantees as at the
end of the reporting period:

Bt % 1 &

7N 5 B 70 ¥ 5 A A 45 SRR B B IS HE AR 4R
T

Group
rEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARBTT
Guarantees in respect of the mortgage MAEEMENE TER
facilities provided to certain purchasers RHERBEERMmMELD
of the Group’s properties =R 5,531,124 4,171,657

At the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon
default on mortgage payments by these purchasers, the
Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were
pledged to the banks as security on the mortgage loans.
Upon default on mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and can
realise the pledged properties through open auction. The
Group is obliged to repay the banks for the shortfall if the
proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot cover the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant
of the relevant mortgage loans, and ends upon the earlier
of () the issuance of real estate ownership certificates to
the purchasers, which will generally be available within one
to two years after the purchasers take possession of the
relevant properties; and (i) the settlement of mortgage loans
between the mortgage banks and the purchasers.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the guarantees is not significant, and in the case of default
on payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties.
Therefore, no provision for the guarantees has been made in
the financial statements.

R & R RE - AEEHE TRTA
AEEMENETERRENRIBERIE
HIELR - RIBFER G Wz FEFTREE
BEERBHRR AIAKEERERENE
RRMBITHORBERBASER BT
BB e

BB EZHE BEEMECERIEBER
MERERTHRET - MZSERREESR
RIBRIE RISRITAEEBUEEERE I
AEBARPE SR YE - (A
B/ NEELRAEAEENRBASE
BEMERSH AAEEEEE MR
TEETEEHE

AEENERABR L ARREERMA
HOEUATRERHNRERRRL: ()R
BRFEHLEHEMERE (FHEMEE

ERREFZEGEBYFERIEZ2FAH
H) R BRBRTERER 2 MrRiS

ARAEERARSERNANELITE
R HE R RN FRIE - HEAMERR]
SR FERNEHEEMRIZBAEER
RETH B R E R B B R A &
RZEERIELEE-
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36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s banks loans which are secured by the
assets of the Group, are included in note 27(a) to the financial
statements.

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(A) AS LESSOR

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty
years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and to provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

36.

37.

¥ 4

DAL BEEEFERIFNASBRITERF
BER B SRR KT 5E27(a) °

KEME <k

(A) 1E B A A
AEERELEHELHHBERR
BEWx (M&E15)  BEREE RN T
E20F N F - ZFHEMERK— RN
ZRABMAZINRES L RIEE R
TSR E RHAEEE -

R20126F12 A31H * A& B 1R & &2
A AR T3 EAE BT
AREEEREMEKRA AR D
HeBEIT :

Group
rEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
Within one year 1ER 28,345 26,277
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

37. ®REME L8 @)

(Continued)
(B) AS LESSEE (B) fERAMA
The Group leases certain of its office properties and AEERBELEHELHBERAET
office equipment under operating lease arrangements. NE Y EYSE ) N R E e
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to BN F1EIFERE -
three years.
At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future 20126128318 - AEBEHRER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable THEEBRR BN N HEECEEE
operating leases falling due as follows: R BIARRE D HSEFRIAT
Group Company
X&E NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT  AR®TxR ARETTT
Within one year 1ER 2,166 3,344 828 2,005
In the second to fifth years, ~ 2Z5F R (BHEERE
inclusive M) - 835 - 835
2,166 4179 828 2,840
38. COMMITMENTS 38. ki
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B 5 8 A £ ST 5E37(0)HY 45 & FH B & IR
in note 37(b) above, the Group had the following capital N REBRRE ARG RGN E N RE
commitments as at the end of the reporting period: R
Group
rE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Contracted, but not provided for: EHESEE S LE
Investment properties under construction  fEEIRE W E RIEE Y
and properties under development 1,302,536 1,518,497
Acquisition of land use rights U B £ 3t 55 PR A 252,720 110,700
1,555,256 1,629,197
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have R

any significant commitments.

B

TR

SHIRGERE  ARR L EEFNEXN
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had

39. HEH RS

(A) BEZZHBHRRABIBD A
SIH) R 5 R AE BRI - AR E R

the following transactions with related parties during BHHRZIT o
the year.
Group
rEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
Service fees paid to Xiamen S FEMAES
Zongheng Group Communication BEXBERAA
Management Co., Ltd. (‘Zongheng  ([#tEE XA F])
Communication Management Co.”) KRS 2 6,841 1,645

The service fees were incurred for the design,
installation and testing of intelligence systems provided
by Zongheng Communication Management Co. in
relation to properties held for sale, at rates determined
in accordance with the terms and conditions set out
in the contracts entered into between the relevant
parties. Zongheng Communication Management Co. is
a company controlled by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL OF THE
GROUP

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the directors
and the chief executive of the Company represented
the key management personnel of the Group and
details of the compensation of whom are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

ZIRTG B RAHEE X R BB RE
EMFRBEEERFHR LR
ARER REAESTRIINEL
TR AV IR R IR B - MR E R
RAEEHMIEE R L HEH]

(B) ﬁ%@i%‘e%"ﬂ%}\%ﬁ‘]%ﬁ

ARABEERR ARAEFERITH
BEEAEENTEEREAS K
FHVF BN BN B A IR RES o
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

40.

(€)

(D)

As at the end of the reporting period, certain bank
and other borrowings of the Group in the amount of
RMB953,923,000 (2011: RMB960,438,000) were
guaranteed by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok, directors of
the Company, and in the amount of RMB803,923,000
(2011: RMB810,438,000) were secured by a share
charge over 604,800,000 shares in the Company held
by Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

As at the end of the reporting period, certain
bank borrowings of the Group in the amount of
RMB129,822,000 (2011: RMB12,000,000) were
guaranteed by Zongheng Co., a company controlled by
Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

Other than derivative financial instruments being classified
as financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss as disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements and the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss designated as such upon initial recognition, all
financial assets and liabilities of the Company and the Group
as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are loans and receivables
and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost, respectively.

39.

40.

GRS 8

(C) REEHMLRE AQAESHK
EERBZTAEAEBHE TR
TREMEE ARKIS3,923,000
7T (20114 = A R #960,438,0007T )
EH &R - H & A R #803,923,000
7c (20114 : AR %810,438,000
TL)AMEERBLTAFED
604,800,0000% 2 A 7] A% 15 LA % 12
HEy 7 AR o

R E A RE - SE A7 (—
MEMEERBLLEROAA)
EBAEENE TRITEEARE
129,822,0007T (20114 : AR ¥
12,000,0007T ) {E H &R °

RN eI R

BrEr ISR R A26FT BN D B AIRA
ARERBEFRENESREERSHBE
e BITETATR T ERIIEE AL
BRIzEAAERERPRENE/EE
Hh - 720124 K 2011F12 8318 » AR A
EAREENMEcREERBEDAE
TR ER FE R IE MR SE N RN AR 2 B

=
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 41. A R fE R & 5t 1l 8 %
HIERARCHY
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s R2012F K2011F12A318 » REE KA
financial instruments as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are NEEMTEMEEEREQNBERS-

approximate to their fair values.

The Group and the Company uses fair values measured AEEBRARREELFESRTANRD
based on valuation techniques for which any inputs which nE BEFENERYMREEAREREE
have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are A8 2 ) A BRI A B & sk @i
observable, either directly or indirectly for determining and BIR 2B F L - R20128E12A318 » &
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments. As at 31 SEeRmT A (BREBITETARER
December 2012, the Group’s financial instruments which AREREETFEENEREE) DIZAR
comprise derivative financial instruments and the financial BFr2 WEBTERAFE2RESRIT A

assets at fair value through profit or loss were measured at
fair value and determined as level 2 financial instruments.

The Group and the Company did not have any financial REBRAARHR20116E12 531 B W (T
assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2011. AR ARBEFENSHEE -
The Group and the Company did not have any financial AEB KRAARR2012512 31 B W £(T
liabilittes measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012. AR ALNEFENCHARE-

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, BB A b B B0 B R R BUK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank AEENTECRTABFERITRAME
and other borrowings and cash and short term deposits. The EUARBREREHFR - ZEEBIT AN
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance FTEZEENRMBAEEESELLEES A
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other SEREEsEAMEREERAE  fl0
financial assets and liabilities such as trade payables, which HREhEEREENE S ENZKE-

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments AEERNESRITAMSIBWEZRR AT
are market risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit HE - FERER - INERR  EERR R
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and mEEERR EFEEMITREFHEERE
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are FEZERRAECR  2dm T o

summarised below.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK

The Group’s assets are predominantly in the form of prepaid
land lease payments, investment properties, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale. In the
event of a severe downturn in the property market, these
assets may not be readily realised.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Other than deposits held at banks, the Group does not have
significant interest-bearing assets. Restricted deposits were
held at banks in Mainland China at the same saving rate
as unrestricted deposits throughout the year. The Group’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings
with floating interest rates. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk,
and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest
rate, with all other variables held constant, would have no
material impact on the Group’s profit during the year and
there would be no material impact on other components of
the Group’s equity.

B R B e B HRE R OBUR
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i 5% A g

ARBEENEERR BEMLHS -
RAME ERMERFEHERRNR
Iie E%%ﬁ%+“1%m%%T'
REAETLTHER -
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AEEH RS RAREERSHRETE
TISFIR BB - RBTERZIN A
EEYBEAT L EEREAEEN
h B ARE SR TR IR HI 1 SR B SR B
BB IR AR I - A S A AT I R
BBEREERARERIHRIRT &
B4R 7T TR Bt 42 07 B - 7 0 3 4 45
) 2 4 R DA S0 L PR LR - f 4
B 16 % SR AR R AR o

H R )& 32 A] BE X B 18 2 50 B &2 (Fr
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

All of the Group’s turnover and substantially all of the
Group’s operating expenses are denominated in RMB,
which is currently not a freely convertible currency. The
PRC Government imposes controls on the convertibility
of RMB into foreign currencies and, in certain cases, the
remittance of currency out of Mainland China. Shortages in
the availability of foreign currencies may restrict the ability
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to remit sufficient foreign
currencies to pay dividends or other amounts to the Group.

Under the existing PRC foreign exchange regulations,
payments of current account items, including dividends,
trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, can
be made in foreign currencies without prior approval from
the State Administration for the Foreign Exchange Bureau by
complying with certain procedural requirements. However,
approval from appropriate PRC governmental authorities
is required where RMB is to be converted into a foreign
currency and remitted out of Mainland China to pay capital
account items, such as the repayment of bank and other
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

Currently, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries may purchase
foreign currencies for settlement of current account
transactions, including payment of dividends to the
Company, without prior approval of the State Administration
for Foreign Exchange Bureau. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
may also retain foreign currencies in their current accounts to
satisfy foreign currency liabilities or to pay dividends. Since
foreign currency transactions on the capital account are still
subject to limitations and require approval from the State
Administration for Foreign Exchange Bureau, this could affect
the Group’s subsidiaries’ ability to obtain required foreign
exchange through debt or equity financing, including by
means of loans or capital contributions from the Company.

2. W B R Be B A HBE R BUR

(

b ¥ A Be
AEBEMBEMNEEXRBRKRE D LERAXH
MARBE MAREBRLIERAB
HABRNER - P BB HARE L #®
RONE R (RMBEBRT) BEEELHE
RBEHEANE o AT A SIS B 52 R 7] BE R I
A& E 1) P BB A B R 5951 LA A
ANER B S R S EL SR IR RO BE

5

)

RIBFBENPESNEZSR KEREADN
3 (BHERE - B 5 MERISIAEAINE
RZ)EETETRERFERKEA AIMNE
1T MEABRRIMNEEE R ELILE-
A BARE LR SINE REHHBER
BEAX B ARRIA R (LLanfE & PASMNERT
BENRITERMEMEES) K AESHRE
o B R A A4 R O HE A o

B Al ANEESTEMNEQE R BEINE
NHEBRERPRS (BREAARRXM
BE) MEABRINEEERNELM
- AEENFEMBAR T ELERE
RPHEBEFINEABEEINE B BRI
B BRERKRPHIINER ZARZIR S
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities including certain
amounts due from/to related parties denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, certain short term deposits denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and certain bank and other borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars are subject to foreign currency risk. Therefore, the
fluctuations in the exchange rates of RMB against foreign
currencies could affect the Group’s results of operations.

There are limited hedging instruments available in Mainland
China to reduce the Group’s exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations between the RMB and other currencies. To date,
the Group has not entered into any hedging transactions in
an effort to reduce the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
exchange risk. While the Group may decide to enter into
hedging transactions in the future, the availability and
effectiveness of these hedges may be limited and the Group
may not be able to hedge the Group’s exposure successfully,
or at all.

A reasonably possible change of 1% in the exchange rate
between the Hong Kong dollar or United States dollars and
the Renminbi would have no material impact on the Group’s
profit during the year and there would result in an increase/
(decrease) in other components of the Group’s equity by
RMB16,812,000 (2011: RMB20,627,000) in 2012.

2. W B PR AG HOBE R BLK
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

It is the Group’s policy that all customers are required to
pay deposits in advance of the purchase of properties. In
addition, the Group does not have any significant credit risk
as the credit given to any individual or corporate entity is not
significant. There is no significant concentration of credit risk
within the Group.

On top of the credit risk arising from the financial guarantees
provided by the Group as detailed in note 35, the credit risk
of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly comprise
cash and short term deposits and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
and other borrowings. In addition, banking facilities are
available for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2. W B R Be B A HBE R BUR
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. W5 8 b & B HOE R Bk
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) mEE L R )
Group A% H
At 31 December 2012
20121283180
On demand
or within In the 3to5 Beyond 5
1year second year years years Total
RER
R1ER F2ER 3E5E 5F 4L @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR AR®TR ARBTR AR®T:R

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings s BR{TREMEE 3,137,701 1,579,003 4,543,186 216,225 9,476,115
Trade payables B SN 1,767,382 224,694 - - 1,992,076
Other payables and accruals Hi A RIERE &R 378,069 - - - 378,069

5,283,152 1,803,697 4,543,186 216,225 11,846,260

Financial guarantees issued: BEHERER:
Maximum amount guaranteed (note 35) ~ H S &R S E (Ki:35) 5,531,124 - - - 5531,124
At 31 December 2011
#®2011412A31R
On demand
or within Inthe 3to5 Beyond 5
1year  second year years years Total
REX
FIER EpLaN 3E5F 5 @ar
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARET:R
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 88817 R i & 1,791,143 1,861,245 2,824,695 296,795 6,773,878
Trade payables B SN 1,333,536 585,309 - - 1918845
Other payables and accruals Hi A RIERE &R 578,542 - - - 578,542
3,703,221 2,446,554 2,824,695 296,795 9,271,265
Financial guarantees issued: BEHERER:

Maximum amount guaranteed (note 35) B RS (fFs5) 4,171,657 = = - 4,171,657
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42, M B Fe B H R R BOR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) mEE 2 R )
Company A2 H

At 31 December 2012

#2012F12A31A
On demand
or within In the 3to5
1year second year years Total
REX
FIER F2ER 3ZE5F @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR AR®TR  AR%®TR

Interest-bearing bank and FEROIRAMEE
other borrowings 1,187,236 341,685 3,387,476 4,916,397
Other payables and accruals HiEMN B RETER 81,815 - - 81,815
Due to subsidiaries e H B R AHE 261,376 - - 261,376
1,530,427 341,685 3,387,476 5,259,588
At 31 December 2011
R2011412A318
On demand
or within In the 3t0b5
1 year second year years Total
REX
FIER E2ER 3E5F Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ~ ARETE ARETE ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and AERATREMEE
other borrowings 330,848 1,022,585 1,631,131 2,884,564
Other payables and accruals HibENRBERESER 48,023 - - 48,023
Due to subsidiaries M B A A 112,641 - = 112,641

491,612 1,022,585 1,531,131 3,045,228
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total equity of the Company. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

42,

Bt o R B B A E R K BSR
()
%A A

AEEEAEENEEBRRIBERARE
FBKENREN BRRRMNERL XN
SIREER ARABBRERE AR -

AEEEREENREYL HELENRR
HEHHFENHE - RERRHBEARR
B AEEARERAEN TRRAKRE R
BERNTRRABETHR -AREARE
A SN ER A D) B AR ZSKET AR - FNE B
BAMBER BRIEFLEETMAES-

AEBEREREBLEREREERN 7L
EREBFRARUAARR R 2 e 258t
B-ERFREBEAERITERLEME
E BARER G RBREEBYNZES
Re RBERRAERFEERAEL XN
T

GROUP A&
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBTT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings  &F 2 R1T R EMEE 7,509,231 5,556,758
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReMEeEEY (3,330,425) (1,440,378)
Less: Restricted cash R FIER S (398,192) (516,159)
Net debt B FEE 3,780,614 3,600,221
Total equity of the Company AD RSB 6,091,485 5,655,920
Gearing ratio BEARABHE= 62.1% 63.7%
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@)

In January 2013, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with an independent third party
for the acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Anhui
Shenghe Property Co., Ltd. (“Anhui Shenghe”) and
Anhui Shengtian Property Co., Ltd. (“Anhui Shengtian”)
at an aggregate cash consideration of approximately
RMB441.1 million. Up to the date of acquisition, Anhui
Shenghe and Anhui Shengtian has not carried out any
significant business transactions except for holding
four parcels of land in Anhui, the PRC. The acquisition
was completed in January 2013 and Anhui Shenghe
and Anhui Shengtian then became subsidiaries of the
Group.

In January 2013, a subsidiary of the Company won
a bid to acquire a parcel of land located in Hefei, the
PRC, through public bidding. The consideration of the
land is RMB1,306,000,000, of which the subsidiary has
paid RMB652,809,000 as of the date of approval of
these financial statements.

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2013.

43. #

M2013F1 A AREBE - EVE
=HEIVREERGE NERE
REHAREAE41108 TR EZL
HENEXER AT ([ZEEAM])
REBRREBEARAR ([RRR
K1) EI100% R A 1 25 o B E W BE B
HiE BRRPREZHEE ME L
I REBMREZHERT ERART
AIEREBR S - ZWEE R20135F
1A MEBRMERLZBRERE
A AR EERKE A A

73@013%1)% AR E KB AR

AABFRESUNFEE B
—fpaaitﬂz o ZIE TR EA/ARE
1,306,000,0007T * H # % M8 A A
ERMEZEMBHREBHZMA
R #652,809,0007T °
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and
the prospectus of the Company dated 20 October 2009, is set out

below:

NTEAEERBEREMBREENEEAR
BE BENEERESRHE  HEkE S T3
$EF A% B TS R 3R LA R AN B H B8 £2009F10 A
20H M HRRER -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRL ARETT ARETT AR®Tr ARETRH
RESULTS S
REVENUE WA 3,803,836 3,839,076 4,265,558 1,991,801 1,759,803
Cost of sales HEMAK (2,350,771) (1,954,615  (2,488,175)  (1,003,672)  (1,010,236)
Gross profit E7 1,543,065 1,884,461 1,777,383 988,129 749,567
Other income and gains =N E 68,434 93,366 18,402 5,410 6,499
Selling and distribution costs SHE RS S A (108,361) (116,356) (64,426) (48,038) (42,398)
Administrative expenses TEBIX (176,325) (159,762) (106,225) (57,213) (61,396)
Other expenses Hif% 4,127) (5,196) (3,789) (21,955) (24,357)
Fair value gains/(losses) on REMEDLE
investment properties Wiz / (51R) (132,386) 478,180 276,015 932,094 108,088
Finance costs BERKAK (154,546) (156,238) (39,187) (1,158) (12,854)
Share of loss of a fEE—FE LR
jointly-controlled entity I EEER (3,174) - - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B& 1 A1 A1) 1,032,580 2,018,455 1,858,173 1,797,269 723,149
Tax A (308,0711)  (1,025,247) (892,368) (703,237) (354,053)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 724,509 993,208 965,305 1,094,032 369,096
Attributable to: A& EN:
Owners of the Company ARRIERA 726,214 941,628 963,601 1,101,042 292,178
Non-controlling interests RS (1,705) 51,580 1,704 (7,010) 76,918
724,509 993,208 965,305 1,094,032 369,096
As at 31 December
W12A318
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE 8EK
NON-CONTROLLING FERES
INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BESD 22,277,843 18,253,111 14,592,592 11,141,799 7,273,465
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERAE (16,186,358)  (12,597,191)  (9,768,563) (7,312,382) (6,260,225
NON-CONTROLLING R
INTERESTS (90,801) (304,622 ( 256,625) (124,173) (134,144)
6,000,684 5351298  4567,404 3,705,244 879,096
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MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TERED X
Attributable
interest of
Project Location Use Tenure the Group
EH A= R HE AEBEEGES
The Mall of Yuzhou World Trade Phase | of Yuzhou World Trade Center on Commercial and car Medium term 100%
Center Phasg | Lot No. 75, Xiahe Road, Xiamen, Fujian parking space lease
Province, the PRC
Bl e B L —HEH hEERERMATERKESR RSN A REEA RHRE 100%
% B — 2
The Mall of Yuzhou World Trade Phase Il of Yuzhou World Trade Center on Commercial and car Medium term 100%
Center Phase |l Lot No. 76, Xiahe Road, Xiamen, Fujian parking space lease
Province, the PRC
Bl e B L ZHiEH HEERERMTEREE6% MR BRREEN hHEE 100%
il BB = 5
The Commercial Podium of Yuzhou  Phase Il of Yuzhou Jingiao International, Commercial Medium term 100%
Jingiao International Phase | No. 333 Jingang Road, Pudong New Area, lease
Shanghai, the PRC
il £ —HHEE B TRR TR &5 K333% [l hHEE 100%
BN EBRE—H
The Commercial Podium of Yuzhou  Phase | of Yuzhou Jingiao International, Commercial Medium term 100%
Jingiao International Phase I Lane 50 Jinyu Road, Pudong New Area, lease
Shanghai, the PRC
il SIRER —HEE HE EETARATE S RH007F M hHEE 100%
Bl eBER — 5
The Commercial Podium of Yuzhou  Phase IIl of Yuzhou Jingiao International, Jinyu ~ Commercial Medium term 100%
Jingiao International Phase | Road and Jinxian Road, Pudong New Area, lease
Shanghai, the PRC
B« REIR=HRE HEEETRRE SRR REER i RHHE 100%
BNEBRE=54
Lot A of Yuzhou Haicang WTC Mall Lot A of Yuzhou Golden Seacoast, West Commercial Medium term 100%
of the Xinggang Road, Haicang District, lease
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
Bill e BEt EEHAR HEREEEMTEEREERANALR  BA hHEE 100%
BNERLERE—H
Lot B of Yuzhou Haicang WTC Mall Lot B of Yuzhou Golden Seacoast, West Commercial Medium term 100%
of the Xinggang Road, Haicang District, lease
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
Bilf e B8t B BR TEEREEMTERREBKARBLE &R hHEE 100%

BNEReER 1
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Schedule of Major Properties

FTEWE-ER
259
MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
» AY | 72
FEAEY X
Expected Attributable
Stage of completion interest of
Project Location Use Site area GFA  Completion date the Group
(sqm,) (sqm,) KEE
HE B i} EEE BEAE RIRR EHRIRA EfhEm
(F5%)  (FHK)
Yuzhou Oriental Venice Longjiang Village, Chengmen Town, Residential and 706,397 365,512 Under- December 2014 100%
Cangshan District, Fuzhou, commercial development
Fujian Province, the PRC
B A BUEH TERREBMNTALBRMAEIN FEERER 706,397 365512 T 20145128 100%
Yuzhou International Hotel East of Hull Avenue, South of Huandao Hotel and 60,018 125,221 Under- March 2014 100%
Road, Huli District, Xiamen, commercial development
Fujian Province, the PRC
B« BB E HERREENTHERRERE EIEREA 60,018 125201 ERE 2014437 100%
IAEH 2 RIE AR
Yuzhou Center North of Minggong Building, Hubin South  Office and car 3,333 60,130  Under- December 2013 100%
Road, Siming District, Xiamen, parking space development
Fujian Province, the PRC
B HEEREEM TR ARERE RAERBEN BIE8E 60,130 R 20135124 100%
BEAELEA
Yuzhou Golf Maqing Road, Haicang District, Xiamen, Residential and car 55,986 129,187 Under- March 2013 100%
Fujian Province, the PRC parking space development
Bl e m@% TERREEMTEERSFR EEREEL 55,986 129,187 EE 2013537 100%
Yuzhou Shoreline Area of 05-11, East of Xinggang Road Residential and 107,622 473,184 Under- April 2014 100%
and North of Jiaosong Road, commercial development
Haicang District, Xiamen, Fujian
Province, the PRC
BBk HERREEMTSRR-1TAE: EERER 107,622 473,184  EE 2014547 100%
BB AR AR
Yuzhou Central Coast Area of 11-10, East of Xingbin Road and Residential and 123,240 663,537  Under- December 2014 100%
North of Xingdong Road, Jimei District, commercial development
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
Biffe gz HERREEMTRERN-10FE EERER 123,240 663,537 TR 20145128 100%
BEBRRA BREILA
Yuzhou Riverside City Town  Area of 12-07, North of Movie & TV City, Residential and 284,414 512,600  Under- November 2013 100%
South Wuxian Area, Tongan District, commercial development
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC
Bl e 3R il HERREEMTRZEI-07HE FEREA 284,414 512,600 &R 2013F11A 100%
REEREZHL
Yuzhou Center Qiu 3/6, Qiu2, No 9 Street, Jingiao Export  Office and 6,818 35,837 Under- May 2014 100%
Processing Zone, Pudong New Area, commercial development
Shanghai, the PRC
B HELETERMREBHANIE BAEREA 6,818 35837 1R 2014457 100%
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FTEWR-BE

MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued)
FTEABEYE @)

Expected Attributable
Stage of completion interest of
Project Location Use Site area GFA  Completion date the Group
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) r&EE
EH fig R#& b mEE BEER RKRIKR BEHRIRY 3 43
(F5K)  (FHK)
Yuzhou Skyline West of Songlin Road, Northeast of Residential and 446,757 1,230,259 Under- January 2016 100%
Planning Road, Ranfang Village, commercial development
Taohua Town, Feixi County, Hefei,
Anhui Province, the PRC
B e X5 TEZHERETEREZR AN  EERER 446,757 1,280,259 TR 2016517 100%
BEAES AN NI
Yuzhou City Plaza Phase | South New Zone of Huian County, Residential and 125,000 491,800  Under- May 2014 100%
Quanzhou, Fujian Province, commercial development
the PRC
B ATES 4 HERRERMNTRRENEANE EERER 125,000 491800 TR 201454 100%
Yuzhou Palace Country South of Behua Road, East of Guihua Residential and retail 135,173 320,374 Under- June 2015 100%
Chunxi Avenue, Jinghai New Town, development
Tianjin, the PRC
B e BfF HERET SR E R A EERTE 135,178 320374 FE 2015%67 100%
REFRERA
MAJOR COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
y oo v .
FEFEHENR LY X
Expected Attributable
Stage of completion interest of
Project Location Use Site area GFA  Completion date the Group
(sq.m. (sq.m.) bS]
EH g i} B EE BEERE RIKR HEHRIAH 30 3
(¥5HK) (FHK)
Yuzhou University City Tongji Road, Xike Town, Tongan District, Residential and car 90,750 480,252  Completed N/A 100%
Xiamen, Fujian Province, the PRC parking space
Bl e KRB TERREEMTRZRENAREE ETREEL 90,750 480252 BRI TER 100%
Yuzhou Gushan No. One Niushan Vilage, Yangli, Gushan Town, Residential and car 234,160 88,287  Completed N/A 60%
Jinan District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, parking space
the PRC
B e S —%% TERREBMTEZRILETE EEREEL 234,160 88287 BRI TER 60%
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Principal administration and Principal place of business

management center in the PRC in Hong Kong

FEEETHRREEPL BEBETEEE I

39 West Hubin Road Units 4905-06, 49th Floor

Xiamen Fujian The Center

People’s Republic of China 99 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong
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